Public Document Pack

Dear Councillor
The next meeting of the POLICY AND FINANCE Committee will be held at 6.30 pm on
TUESDAY, 18 JANUARY 2022 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe,
BB7 2RA.
I do hope you can be there.
Yours sincerely

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS (Pages 5 - 16)
MEETING AND THE EMERGENCY COMMITTEE

3.

DECLARATIONS
OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY,
OTHER
REGISTRABLE
AND
NON-REGISTRABLE
INTERESTS
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda.

4.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEMS FOR DECISION
5.

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22

(Pages 17 - 30)

Report of Dircetor of Resources enclosed.
6.

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23

(Pages 31 - 46)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
7.

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
Report of Director of Resources enclosed.

(Pages 47 - 52)

8.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS

(Pages 53 - 64)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
9.

CORPORATE DEBT POLICY

(Pages 65 - 76)

Report of Director or Resources enclosed.
10.

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23

(Pages 77 - 86)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
11.

COVID-19 ADDITIONAL RELIEF FUND (CARF)

(Pages 87 - 122)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
12.

COVID-19 BUSINESS GRANTS

(Pages 123 - 126)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
13.

REFERENCES FROM COMMITTEES - IF ANY
Director of Resources will report on any received.

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
14.

QUEEN'S PLATINUM JUBILEE

(Pages 127 - 132)

Report of Chief Executive enclosed.
15.

REVENUES AND BENEFITS GENERAL REPORT

(Pages 133 - 136)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
16.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING 2021/22

(Pages 137 - 150)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
17.

MINUTES OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP 18 AUGUST (Pages 151 - 152)
2021
Copy enclosed.

18.

MINUTES OF JOINT WORKING GROUP - CLIMATE (Pages 153 - 154)
CHANGE AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Copy enclosed.

19.

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE
BODIES
None.

20.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

FOR DECISION
21.

ANNEX TO AGENDA ITEM 6 - ORIGINAL REVENUE (Pages 155 - 162)
BUDGET 2022/23
2
Report of Director of Resources enclosed.

Electronic agendas sent to members of Policy and Finance – Councillor Stephen
Atkinson (Chair), Councillor David Berryman, Councillor Susan Bibby, Councillor Alison
Brown, Councillor Judith Clark, Councillor Stewart Fletcher, Councillor Mark French,
Councillor Gaynor Hibbert, Councillor Jonathan Hill, Councillor Mark Hindle, Councillor
Stuart Hirst, Councillor Simon Hore (Vice-Chair), Councillor Kevin Horkin MBE,
Councillor David Peat and Councillor Robert Thompson.

Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Minutes of Policy and Finance
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 9 November 2021, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor S Atkinson (Chair)

Councillors:
D Berryman
S Bibby
A Brown
J Clark
S Fletcher
G Hibbert
J Hill

M Hindle
S Hirst
S Hore
K Horkin
D Peat
R Thompson

In attendance: Chief Executive, Director of Resources, Director of Community
Services, Director of Economic Development and Planning and Senior Economic
Development Officer
443

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received from Councillor M French.

444

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

445

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
Councillors A Brown, S Fletcher, G Hibbert, J Hill, D Peat and R Thompson declared
an other registrable interest in Agenda Item 5 – Platinum Jubilee - as members of
parish councils
In response to a question regarding membership of the Clitheroe Town Team the
Chief Executive informed councillors who were members of the Town Team group
that in his view they did not need to declare any interests as the group has no
standing.
Councillor K Horkin as a owner of several businesses in Clitheroe did not declare any
interest in agenda item 6 – ARG Funding as he would not be making any applications
to the fund.

446

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.
During the next item Councillors A Brown, S Fletcher, G Hibbert, J Hill, D Peat and R
Thompson declared an interest in the parish grant element of the report and left the
meeting for that part.

447

CELEBRATING THE PLATINUM JUBILEE
The Chief Executive submitted a report asking members to consider how to celebrate
and commemorate the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee in June 2022.

Page 5

He informed members that all councils had been requested by Pageant Master,
Bruno Peek LVO OBE OPR to light a beacon and he suggested this be done at
Clitheroe Castle as had been done on previous occasions.
He also suggested that a grant be awarded to each parish council to encourage them
to take part in the celebrations in their area.
Other suggestions had been made by members of staff and councillors that included
several ideas. The Chief Executive also informed members that in the week prior to
the celebrations the Duke of Lancaster’s Regiment would be doing a Freedom March
through the streets of Clitheroe, that would be a fitting start to the jubilee celebrations.
The Chief Executive said that the project(s) were one off items that could be funded
from reserves. However the Council would still need to set a budget for the Jubilee
celebrations and the Freedom March.
Members considered the ideas put forward and felt that a permanent living
fixture/reminder would be the most appropriate. It was suggested a task and finish
group be set up to move forward with plans.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Agree to have a Beacon lighting at Clitheroe Castle;
2. Agree to give a grant of £500 to every parish council who provides a letter of
intent to use it to commemorate the Platinum Jubilee;
3. Agree to set up a task and finish group consisting of Councillors S Atkinson, K
Horkin, J Clark, S Fletcher and R Thompson to finalise the plans for
commemorating the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee
Councillors A Brown, S Fletcher, G Hibbert, J Hill, D Peat and R Thompson returned
to the meeting.
448

ARG FUNDING - NEXT STEPS
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report asking
committee to consider the allocation of the second top-up of Additional Restrictions
Grant (ARG) funding.
Following the last meeting of this committee, the task and finish group comprising of
councillors Atkinson, Peat, Bibby, Fletcher and Thompson had met to discuss
potential options and were now making recommendations of how best to allocate the
funding to assist businesses with their recovery from the impacts of the pandemic.
Three schemes were proposed –




Travel Agents - £1000 to those based at home and £5000 to those who have
a business premises/shop and are registered for business rates in the Ribble
Valley;
Business Recovery – businesses seeking to invest in their premises or
facilities as a direct result of the pandemic who had not received a Restart
Grant.
Business Growth – to support businesses in recovering from the impact of the
pandemic and to support businesses in expanding and adapting their
businesses to support long-term sustainability and the Council’s Climate
Change Strategy.

Page 6

A scale of eligible expenditure was outlined with the minimum expenditure being
£5,000. The grant would provide up to 50% of any eligible expenditure with a
maximum grant of £25,000. Eligible expenditure would count from 1 July 2021 for
those businesses based in Ribble Valley who were trading on 1 April 2021 and
registered for business rates.
Members were supportive of the recommendations made by the task and finish
group.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Agree to providing an additional one-off fixed grant to Travel Agents in
accordance with the report;
2. Agree to the remainder of the additional restrictions grant being used to fund
the Business Recovery grant and the Business Growth grant in accordance
with the details in the report and the Grants Policy outlined;
3. Delegate to the Director of Economic Development and Planning and the
Director of Resources, in consultation with the ARG task and finish group, any
minor amendments to the scheme that arise during the administration of the
scheme.
449

REFERENCES FROM COMMITTEES

450

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - PLAYING PITCHES AT EDISFORD
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to consider a request
from Community Services committee in respect of approval to help improve the
playing pitches at Edisford.
As a result of the housing development at Low Moor a commuted sum of £18,784 had
been given to the council as the developer contribution for the improvement of off-site
leisure provision and it was planned to use this funding to improve the drainage at the
Edisford playing pitches site.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the request for additional capital budget of £18,780 in respect of drainage
works at Edisford Playing Pitches and that this be funded from the S106 monies from
the housing development at Low Moor.

451

LOCAL TAXATION WRITE OFFS
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking for committee’s approval to write
off three cases of business rates where the companies had been dissolved.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the writing off £13,001.25 in Business Rates and £300.00 costs where it has
not been possible to collect the amounts due.

452

REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES
The Director of Resources submitted a report seeking member approval on proposals
to increase this committee’s fees and charges with effect from 1 April 2022.

Page 7

These proposals were the first stage in the review of this committee’s budget for the
forthcoming 2022/23 financial year.
The council’s latest budget forecast allows for a 3% inflationary increase in the level
of income raised from fees and charges and the review aims to increase budgeted
income for 2022/23 by this amount as a minimum.
After applying this percentage increase, proposed charges had generally been
rounded up or down to minimise any problems with small change. This inevitably
impacts on the individual percentage rise for each separate charge, particularly when
the current charge is low.
Following discussions between financial services, heads of service and budget
holders a proposed set of fees and charges for implementation from 1 April 2022 had
been produced for this committee for members to consider.
The Director of Resources reported that when considering the fees and charges the
Head of Legal and Democratic Services had recommended the introduction of new
fees to cover extensive administrative processes, complex legal agreements and a
charge for providing a proof of life service. It was also proposed to increase charges
for S106 agreement review and completion work by 20.6%.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the proposed fees and charges as set out in the report for implementation
from 1 April 2022.
453

REVENUES AND BENEFITS GENERAL REPORT
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on debts outstanding for
business rates, council tax and sundry debtors. It also updated members on benefits
performance, including benefits processing times and overpayment recovery.

454

COUNCIL TAX BASE 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the council tax base
for 2022/23. The council tax base is set each year between 1 December and 31
January and is an important calculation which sets out the number of dwellings to
which council tax is chargeable in an area or part of an area. The tax base is used for
the purposes of calculating the band D council tax for the billing authority and also
major precepting authorities and parish councils.
The council tax base has increased steadily over the period 2007/08 to 2013/14,
however since then it has averaged overall increases of 1.5% to 2.5% each year. The
Council Tax Base for 2022/23 is 24,553.

455

REVENUE MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the position for the
period April to September 2021 of this year’s revenue budget as far as this committee
was concerned.
The main variations were highlighted. The comparison between actual and budgeted
expenditure within service cost centres shows an underspend of £188,176 for the
April to September period of the financial year 2021/22. After allowing for transfers
to/from earmarked reserves there was an underspend of £203,496.

Page 8

The balance of grant funds accounted for within coronavirus specific cost centres of
£920k have increased the underspend within this committee to £1.16m. Whilst for the
period to September coronavirus funding had had a significant impact that had
created a large underspend on the net cost of services within this committee, many of
the variances would resolve as the year progresses and grant funds are either paid
out or allocated to specific coronavirus response activities.
456

OVERALL REVENUE MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the overall position
for the current financial year for the half year position up to the end of September
2021.
There is an overall net underspend to the end of September 2021 of £1,148,776.
However, this is skewed by income and expenditure on covid response cost centres,
where the variance will resolve itself as the year progresses. When the variances for
the usual service cost centres are examined, there is a net underspend of £188,131.
It was pleasing to report that the refuse collection vehicle repair and maintenance
costs have returned to be closer to budgeted costs.

457

CAPITAL MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the progress on this
committee’s 2021/22 capital programme for the period to the end of September 2021.
At the end of September 2021 £19,623 had been spent or committed. This was
10.9% or the total approved capital programme budget for this committee.
Of the eight schemes in the capital programme at the end of September 2021, one
scheme was complete, two schemes were currently on-track to be completed in-year,
two schemes would not be completed in-year and it was unclear whether three of the
schemes would be completed in-year.

458

OVERALL CAPITAL MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the progress on the
Council’s approved 2021/22 capital programme for the period to the end of
September 2021.
At the end of September 2021 £669,102 had been spent or committed. This was
19.5% of the overall capital programme budget for 2021/22. Of the 30 schemes in the
capital programme it was reported that two schemes were complete, ten schemes
were currently expected to be completed in-year, it was unclear whether six schemes
would be completed in-year, four schemes were unlikely to be completed in-year and
six schemes would not be completed in-year. Two further schemes were on-going
housing related grant schemes.

459

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a monitoring report for information on the
treasury management activities for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021.
This included temporary investments, interest on investments, local government
bonds agency, borrowing, borrowing requirements, prudential indicators, approved
organisations, recent events and exposure to risk.

Page 9

460

ANNUAL OMBUDSMAN REPORT
The Chief Executive submitted a report for information on the referrals to the Local
Government Ombudsman for the period to 31 March 2021. The Ombudsman had not
carried out any detailed investigations during this period or upheld any complaints
during the period.

461

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

462

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next items of business being exempt information
under paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting.

463

LOCAL TAXATION WRITE OFFS
The Director of Resources submitted a report requesting committee’s approval to
write off a council tax debt where the debtor had passed away.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve writing off £984.45 of Council Tax debts plus £110.00 coasts where it has
not been possible to collect the amount due.

464

REFERENCES FROM COMMITTEES

(i)

Personnel Committee - Review of Pay and Conditions
The Director of Resources submitted a report for members to consider a request
from Personnel committee to improve the pay and conditions of staff.
Personnel committee had agreed to the recommendations made subject to
budgetary approval and acceptance from the union.
The Director of Resources outlined the options available to committee to fund the
recommendations bearing in mind that the outcome of the Draft Local Government
Finance Settlement had not yet been received.
She reminded members that as the Section 151 officer, she was required to give
the council formal advice on the robustness of the estimates and adequacy of
reserves.
She explained that whilst the Council was currently benefitting from significant
levels of earmarked reserves it would be possible to fund the costs arising from the
pay review from these, however this was not recommended in the long term. She
reminded members that the best use of earmarked reserves was to fund one off
items eg the capital programme or non-recurring revenue items.
She suggested that cost of the pay review covering the next three years be
transferred from the Business Rate Growth reserve and as a matter of priority
recurring funding be identified when the outcome of the Draft Local Government
Finance Settlement was known.
The Director of Resources also referred to other budget growth items which would

Page 10

need to be considered by members in the budget cycle and also assessed as to
whether the Council could afford them.
Members discussed this in some detail.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Agree to fund the extra cost by transferring funding of £1,078,000 from the
Business Rate Growth reserve to finance the cost over the years 2022/23 to
2024/25 and fund the part year cost from the underspends on salaries due
to vacant posts delegating the maximum flexibility on financial planning to
the Director of Resources;
2. Identify ongoing sustainable funding for this item once the outcome of the
Draft Local Government Finance Settlement is known, and
3. Approve the two decisions above subject to the Union accepting the
proposals.

The meeting closed at 7.47 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Emergency
Meeting Date:
Present:

Monday, 29 November 2021, starting at 4.15 pm
Councillor S Atkinson

Councillors:
A Brown

S Hore
S Fletcher

In attendance: Director of Economic Development and Planning, Director of
Resources and Chief Executive
Also in attendance: Councillor J Rogerson
492

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence for the meeting.

493

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE OR
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

494

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information
under Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting.

495

HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report for members
to consider the allocation of the Household Support Fund that would be received from
LCC.
The grant would run from October 2021 to 31 March 2022. Ribble Valley’s funding
allocation is £90,000.
Members were informed of the details of other similar grants received previously and
how these had been allocated.
The report outlined the eligibility criteria and the areas of spend that were eligible in
respect of this scheme along with suggestions of how the funds might be allocated
either directly be the Council or via partners.
After discussion it was agreed that if we were to passport our funding to partner
organisations to administer a scheme instead then this should be done directly from
the County Council whose responsibility it was for the Household Support Fund.
Members discussed the various options and decided to set a scheme which was
straightforward which could therefore be easily and promptly administrated.

Page 13

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE
Confirm that the Council award recipients of Local Council Tax Support (prioritising
families with children) a voucher for food from the Household Support Fund received
from LCC and that a 5% administration fee be charged.

The meeting closed at 5.00 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, .

Page 14

Minutes of Emergency
Meeting Date:
Present:

Friday, 10 December 2021, starting at 9.00 am
Councillor S Atkinson

Councillors:
S Fletcher

S Hore
R Thompson

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Director of Economic Development
and Planning, Director of Resources and Chief Executive
513

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

514

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE OR
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

515

POSTPONEMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING DATED 14 DECEMBER 2021
The Chief Executive informed committee that following attendance at a meeting with
LGA and Public Health officials and also the Prime Minister’s decision to move the
country to Plan B regarding the situation with the Covid 19 pandemic it was clear the
potential transmission and infection rates for the new Omicron variant were a major
concern. It was acknowledged that the safety of both staff and councillors was
paramount, and he recommended the date of the next Council meeting scheduled for
14 December 2021 should be postponed.
An alternative date of 25 January 2022 was suggested which was already earmarked
for an extraordinary meeting to discuss the County Deal. However, the Government
was still being lobbied heavily to allow remote meetings to take place so this might
also be an alternative in due course.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Agree to postpone the date of the Council meeting from 14 December 2021 to
25 January 2022 (thus displacing Licensing committee to 1 February 2022),
and
2. Delegate to the Chief Executive in consultation with the three Leaders any
alternative date or method of meeting subject to current information available.

516

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

The meeting closed at 9.05 am
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, .

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

02-22pf

1 of 14

18 JANUARY 2022
REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
VALERIE TAYLOR

Page 17

Cost Centre
and
Description

Original
Estimate
2021/22

Movement
in
Expenditure

Movement
in Income

Movement
in Support
Services

Movement
in Capital
Charges

Revised
Estimate
2021/22

2,257,180

-27,270

-51,700

126,550

4,100

2,308,860

24,100

-57,640

61,850

0

0

28,310

2,281,280

-84,910

10,150

126,550

4,100

2,337,170

0

1,874,810

-2,254,980

247,200

0

-132,970

0

-59,790

192,760

0

0

132,970

Net coronavirus
specific budgets

0

1,815,020

-2,062,220

247,200

0

0

Total for this
Committee

2,281,280

1,730,110

-2,052,070

373,750

4,100

2,337,170

Service specific
budgets
Associated
movements in
earmarked
reserves
Net service
specific budgets
after movements
in earmarked
reserves
(base budget)
Coronavirus
specific budgets
Associated
movements in
earmarked
reserves

02-22pf

2 of 14

Page 18

Cost Centre and
Description

Original
Estimate
2021/22
0

11,420

0

0

-81,040

1,560

79,480

0

0

0

10,410

-10,410

0

0

0

0

5,340

0

630

1,460

7,430

62,100

-9,010

0

750

0

53,840

CIVST: Civic Suite

0

660

-3,880

2,840

380

0

CLOFF: Council Offices

0

-1,010

-60

3,590

-2,520

0

381,900

560

-20,650

8,930

0

370,740

CLTAX: Council Tax

Movement
in Income

Movement
in Capital
Charges
0

Revised
Estimate
2021/22

Movement
in Support
Services
0

BYELE: District By-Elections
CEXEC: Chief Executives
Department
CIARA: Storm Ciara
Response
CINTR: Clitheroe
Interchange
CIVCF: Civic Functions

Movement in
Expenditure

11,420

COMPR: Computer Services
CORPM: Corporate
Management
COSDM: Cost of Democracy

0

-24,460

0

24,460

0

0

353,190

0

0

13,650

0

366,840

506,740

-5,270

-50

8,240

2,740

512,400

CSERV: Corporate services

171,400

-8,520

0

170

0

163,050

DISTC: District Elections
ELADM: Election
Administration
ELECT: Register of Electors

0

17,060

0

0

0

17,060

34,910

-1,270

0

3,540

0

37,180

109,510

-24,910

0

4,260

0

88,860

65,300

-250

0

4,780

0

69,830

0

1,960

-1,940

0

0

20

46,730

14,050

1,560

-14,830

4,850

52,360

175,640

300

0

680

0

176,620

125,630

10,300

-23,400

2,680

0

115,210

7,650

-7,650

0

0

0

0

13,100

-3,600

-3,200

6,250

0

12,550

LICSE: Licensing

40,750

-3,200

9,860

15,030

0

62,440

LUNCH: Luncheon Clubs
NNDRC: National Non
Domestic Rates
PARIS: Parish Elections
QPJUB: Queen's Platinum
Jubilee
RESOR: Resources
Department
SUPDF: Superannuation
Deficiency Payments
Service cost centre
movements

16,250

0

0

150

0

16,400

53,320

1,350

-3,590

4,970

0

56,050

0

10,300

0

0

0

10,300

0

20,000

0

0

0

20,000

0

44,010

2,500

-43,700

-2,810

0

93,060

-4,800

0

0

0

88,260

2,257,180

-27,270

-51,700

126,550

4,100

2,308,860

EMERG: Community Safety
ERNET: Emergency Radio
Network
ESTAT: Estates
FGSUB: Grants &
Subscriptions - Policy and
Fin
FMISC: Policy & Finance
Miscellaneous
FREED: Freedom of the
Borough
LANDC: Land Charges

02-22pf

3 of 14

Page 19

Cost Centre and
Description

Original
Estimate
2021/22

Movement in
Expenditure

Movement
in Income

Movement
in Support
Services

Movement
in Capital
Charges

Revised
Estimate
2021/22

Associated Movements in Earmarked Reserves

FNBAL/H230: Election
Reserve
FNBAL/H269: Revaluation of
Assets Reserve
FNBAL/H294: Cyber
Resilience Reserve
FNBAL/H325: Vat Shelter
Reserve
FNBALH328: Repairs and
Maintenance Reserve
FNBAL/H335: Invest to Save
Fund
FNBAL/H337: Equipment
Reserve
FNBAL/H372: Parish Grants
Reserve
FNBAL/H376: Business
Rates Growth Reserve
FNBAL/H377: Two Way
Radio Reserve
Service centre net after
movements in earmarked
reserves

30,000

-37,510

38,780

0

0

31,270

2,190

230

0

0

0

2,420

-13,600

13,600

0

0

0

0

0

0

23,150

0

0

23,150

0

-5,260

0

0

0

-5,260

5,510

0

-80

0

0

5,430

0

-2,000

0

0

0

-2,000

0

-20,000

0

0

0

-20,000

0

-6,680

0

0

0

-6,680

0

-20

0

0

0

-20

2,281,280

-84,910

10,150

126,550

4,100

2,337,170

Movement
in Support
Services

Movement
in Reserve

Revised
Estimate
2021/22

Coronavirus response category

Original
Estimate
2021/22

Movement in Movement
Expenditure in Income

Contain Outbreak Management Fund

0

242,880

-435,980

193,100

0

0

General response –
direct costs

0

54,200

0

0

-54,200

0

Grants received for distribution where
this council acts in the role of Principal:
- Additional Restrictions Grants
(ARG) £1.48m
- Self-Isolation Discretionary
Payments £67k
- Household Support Fund £85k

0

1,577,230

-1,639,390

0

62,160

0

New burdens funding

0

500

-179,610

54,100

125,010

0

0

1,874,810

-2,254,980

247,200

132,970

0

Total movements relating to
pandemic response

02-22pf

4 of 14

Page 20

Service
Specific
Cost
Centres
Draft Revised Estimate
2021/22

FNBAL/H230
Election Fund

FNBAL/H269
Revaluation Reserve

FNBAL/H325
VAT Shelter Reserve

FNBAL/H328
Repairs and Maintenance
Reserve

FNBAL/H335
Invest to Save Fund

02-22pf

5 of 14

2,308,860

31,270

2,420

23,150

-5,260

5,430

Coronavirus
Specific
Committee
Total
Cost
Centres
-132,970

0

0

0

0

0

Reason for Movement on Earmarked
Reserve

2,175,890

31,270

Reserve established from monies set aside on
an annual basis to smooth out the cost of the
local elections held once every four years.
This contribution represents the annual
amount for the financial year 2021/22.

2,420

Reserve established from monies set aside on
an annual basis to smooth out the cost of the
full revaluation of the council’s assets carried
out once every five years.
This contribution represents the annual
amount for the financial year 2021/22.

23,150

Forecast VAT shelter income to be received in
the current financial year from Onward Homes.
To be transferred to the VAT shelter
earmarked reserve.

-5,260

Release of funds set aside in this reserve for
the cost of painting the council offices. This
movement is for final expenditure on the
project that occurred during the current
financial year.

5,430

Reserve established to fund capital schemes
that will generate recurring future savings as a
result of the expenditure incurred. Additional
income/ savings generated are repaid back to
the fund from completed capital projects up to
the value of the original capital expenditure.
Repayment to the fund this year for estimated
additional rental income to be received as a
result of the completed Queensway Garages
capital scheme, the cost of which was
originally funded from this reserve.

Page 21

Service
Specific
Cost
Centres

FNBAL/H337
Equipment Reserve

FNBAL/H372
Parish Grants Reserve

FNBAL/H376
Business Rates Growth
Reserve

FNBAL/H377
Two Way Radio
Reserve

FNBAL/H379
Covid-19 Earmarked
Reserve

02-22pf

6 of 14

-2,000

-20,000

-6,680

-20

0

Coronavirus
Specific
Committee
Total
Cost
Centres

0

0

0

0

-54,790

Reason for Movement on Earmarked
Reserve

-2,000

Release from reserve to fund 2021/22
expenditure on a business continuity software
update and associated training, that was
originally planned during 2020/21, but that was
postponed due to the pandemic.

-20,000

In November 2021 this Committee resolved to
agree to give a grant of £500 to every parish
council that provides a letter of intent to use it
to commemorate the Platinum Jubilee and a
budget has been established at revised
estimate for the maximum amount payable.
The expenditure is to be funded from the
Parish Grants Reserve.

-6,680

Movement in reserve of £5,180 to fund final
consultancy costs of implementing Microsoft
365 that fell into the current year (approved at
Policy and Finance Committee in November
2020).
Release of £1.5k from reserve for the
commissioning of One Carbon World (Policy
and Finance Committee March 2021).

-20

Reserve established to set aside funds
received from various organisations for the
upkeep of the Lancashire Emergency Radio
Network. Release from reserve to balance
current year net expenditure.

-54,790

Release of funds set aside in this reserve
during the 2020/21 financial year. The
majority of the funds released at £54,200 are
estimated current year direct costs associated
with the general coronavirus response. The
balance is for payment of grant support that
was received last year for food and essential
supplies, but that was distributed during
2021/22.

Page 22

Service
Specific
Cost
Centres

Coronavirus
Specific
Committee
Total
Cost
Centres

Reason for Movement on Earmarked
Reserve

Contribution to reserve of un-ringfenced new
burdens grant funding that the council has
received or been notified of at the time of
reviewing the revised estimate. Set aside in
reserve to contribute towards the future costs
of the ongoing coronavirus response.
FNBAL/H379
Covid-19 Earmarked
Reserve

0

125,010

125,010

FNBAL/H382
Self-Isolation
Discretionary Grant Fund

0

62,750

62,750

Total movements on
Earmarked Reserves

28,310

132,970

161,280

Committee Net Cost
of Services after
Movements on
Earmarked Reserves

2,337,170

02-22pf

7 of 14

0

2,337,170

Page 23

Note that this does not include general local
authority Emergency Funding for Covid which
is accounted for at a corporate, rather than
committee level and was received in tranches.
Various tranches of this unringfenced
emergency funding for local authorities for
Covid related spending pressures were
received, and we received £242,180 for
2021/22, £779,419 for 2020/21 and £23,853
for 2019/20

Net balance of estimated unallocated
discretionary grant payment funding for the
2021/22 financial year, to be set aside in
reserve in order to meet future ongoing
associated expenditures.

Description

Variance
Original
Estimate
2021/22 to
DRAFT
Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£

Substantial movements within service specific cost centres
Elections
The estimated cost of local by-elections for the 2021/22 financial year.
CEXEC: Chief Executive's Department
Council staffing budgets at original estimate assume average vacancy
underspends of 4% across the authority on estimated costs. Actual
vacancies within the Chief Executives Department have exceeded the
estimate built into the budget, bringing about an underspend for the
year. Following a full analysis at revised estimate of year to date
expenditure and estimated recruitment timescales the budget estimates
have been reduced.
Budgets incorporate backdated changes to the council’s payline from
October 2021 as approved by this Committee in November 2021.
The underspends above have been partially offset by the engagement
of consultants within the environmental health section to ensure
continuation of the service during a period of recruitment issues.

38,780

-96,290

25,950

CLTAX: Council Tax
Increase in the estimated income generated for recovery of costs
associated with issuing summonses.

-20,260

COMPR: Computer Services
Reduction to estimated expenditures within the computer services section.
There is a -£10k reduction for the computer services share of Microsoft
365 licences costs, which following review have been charged direct to
other service areas.
A full review of costs has been undertaken across computer services
budgets, reducing estimates by a further -£14.5k. Whilst some budget
movements offset, the main reductions to costs are in the areas of
communications (-£7k) and software maintenance (-£7.5k).

-24,460

ELECT: Register of Electors
The Cabinet Office have introduced changes to the annual canvass that
reduces the number of Household Enquiry Form reminders that are
required to be issued. The estimated cost of postages for the year has
therefore been reduced by -£9.5k.
As a result of the reforms the number of in person household visits has
also reduced, bringing about a reduction to the cost of this year’s annual
canvass by -£8k.

-17,370

02-22pf

8 of 14

Page 24

Description

ESTAT: Estates
Unplanned and unavoidable expenditures within the estates repairs and
maintenance budget has caused an overspend on this year’s original
estimate. £7k of funds have been diverted from other repair and
maintenance areas, with the remainder being an unavoidable increase to
repairs and maintenance budgets at revised estimate overall.
FMISC: Finance Miscellaneous
Increase to the external audit services estimated expenditure following
approval of revision to fees at Accounts and Audit Committee in July 2021.
Net of Public Sector Audit Appointment fees rebate of -£6k.
The value of VAT shelter income to be received in the current financial
year from Onward Homes has been forecast and a budget established.
The actual amount received will be transferred to the VAT shelter
earmarked reserve at the end of the financial year.
LICSE: Licensing
Taxi licensing income for the year is estimated to be lower than the original
estimate by £11k as a result of the ongoing impact of covid-19 on the night
time economy.
QPJUB: Queens’ Platinum Jubilee
A budget of £20k has been established for the maximum cost of grants to
be paid to parish council’s that provide a letter of intent to use it to
commemorate the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee (Policy and Finance
Committee November 2021).
The cost of the grants is to be met from the Parish Grants Reserve.
RESOR: Resources Department
Departmental employee cost estimates have been increased at revised
estimate following a review of salaries and associated national insurance
and superannuation costs. The budget estimates incorporate changes to
the payline approved by this committee from October 2021, and ensure
budget provision is available to meet the cost of engaging external
consultants to undertake the council’s internal audits following a prolonged
period of recruitment issues within the internal audit section.
The estimated budget for software maintenance costs has been increased.
This is mainly due to a requirement from one of the council’s suppliers to
upgrade the Civica Icon Payments System in order to ensure continuing
compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards
(£18k). Without the upgrade the chip and pin machines would cease to
work from March 2022 and the council would be unable to accept card
payments.

02-22pf

9 of 14

Page 25

Variance
Original
Estimate
2021/22 to
DRAFT
Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£

13,160

15,270

-23,150

11,450

20,000

19,850

20,450

Description

Variance
Original
Estimate
2021/22 to
DRAFT
Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£

Support Service Costs
There is a net increase to inter-departmental recharges to this committee
following changes to various departmental cost allocations. This is mainly
due to a reduction in the net expenditure of the Chief Executives and
Computer Services cost centres, which in turn has reduced the
accountancy recharges out to other service areas.

126,550

Substantial movements within coronavirus specific cost centres
Coronavirus - Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF)
The Contain Outbreak Management Fund provides funding to local
authorities for activities that help to reduce the spread of coronavirus and
support local public health.
The council received £670k of COMF grant funding during the 2020/21
financial year, of which £373k was unallocated and carried forward into the
current financial year. A further £63k of funding has been received during
2021/22, which brings the total amount available for the current year to
£436k.
It is anticipated that the grant funds will be fully expended/ allocated to
associated activities by March 2022. A budget to recognise the income
has therefore been established at revised estimate.

-£435,980

Expenditure budgets have been established to allocate grant funds to
activities associated with containing the outbreak, for example test and
trace, compliance and communications.

435,980

Coronavirus General Response – Direct Costs
Estimated expenditures on direct, additional costs to be incurred during the
2021/22 financial year on the general coronavirus response. These are
estimated additional costs to be met from un-ringfenced, general,
coronavirus funding that is held in earmarked reserves. After movements
in reserve the net cost is nil.

54,200

Coronavirus Grants - received for distribution to residents and
businesses (Principal)
Under accounting regulations, the council is required to recognise grant
income and associated expenditures where the council has discretion over
the grant award criteria.
-£1.6m of discretionary grant income has now been brought into the
council’s budgets at revised estimate.
The majority of the income (-£1.48m) shown here is for Additional
Restrictions Support Grant funding (ARG) that is to be fully expended by
March 2022.
Also accounted for is -£67k of Self-Isolation Discretionary grant funding
and -£85k of income from the Household Support Fund.

-1,639,390

Estimated expenditures in respect of the above. The majority of the
expenditure at £1.48m is the allocation of ARG funding. The council’s
budgets assume that the Household Support Fund will be fully expended
by the end of the financial year through the distribution of food vouchers.
02-22pf

10 of 14

Page 26

1,577,230

Description

Variance
Original
Estimate
2021/22 to
DRAFT
Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£

It is estimated that £62k of the self-isolation discretionary grant fund will be
unallocated by the end of the financial year, with the balance to be set
aside in earmarked reserves to meet the cost of future associated
expenditures.
Any grant funding to be received or distributed in respect of the omicron
variant was unconfirmed at the time of preparation of the revised estimates
and so is not included within budget estimates.
Coronavirus Grants - New burdens funding
The council has received various grants to help with the cost of
undertaking specific new functions during the coronavirus response.
-£125k of the income is financial support for the processing of various
grant scheme payments and -£54k has been received for resources
expended on outbreak management and support.

-£179,610

Accounting adjustment to allocate outbreak management and support
funding to associated activities.
The balance of the income and expenditure of £125k is to be set aside in
the covid-19 earmarked reserve, to be available to help meet the future
cost of the council’s ongoing response to the coronavirus pandemic.

£54,100

7.1

The difference between the revised and original estimate is an increase in net expenditure of
£55,890 after allowing for transfers to and from earmarked reserve.

8

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications
- Resources: approval of the revised estimate would see a decrease in net expenditure of
£81,290 or an increase in net expenditure of £55,890 after movements on earmarked
reserves.
- Technical, Environmental and Legal: none identified
- Political: none identified
- Reputation: sound financial planning safeguards the reputation of the Council
- Equality and Diversity – Equality and diversity issues are considered in the provision of all
Council services.

02-22pf

11 of 14

Page 27

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

PF2-22/VT/AC
6 January 2022

02-22pf

12 of 14

Page 28

ANNEX 1
ACTUAL TO THE END OF NOVEMBER 2021 WITH ORIGINAL ESTIMATE 2021/22 AND PROPOSED
REVISED ESTIMATE 2021/22

Cost Centre

Description

Original
Estimate to
End
November

Actual and
Commitments to
the End
November

Full Year
Original
Estimate

Proposed
Revised
Estimate

Service specific cost centres
BYELE

District By-Elections

0

11,383

0

11,420

CEXEC

Chief Executives Department

782,122

695,483

0

0

CIARA

Storm Ciara Response

0

2,500

0

0

CINTR

Clitheroe Interchange

0

0

0

7,430

CIVCF

Civic Functions

36,775

27,364

62,100

53,840

CIVST

Civic Suite

22,771

18,730

0

0

CLOFF

Council Offices

143,621

140,323

0

0

CLTAX

Council Tax

41,270

36,307

381,900

370,740

COMPR

Computer Services

82,146

84,781

0

0

CORPM

Corporate Management

0

-2,416

353,190

366,840

COSDM

Cost of Democracy

199,150

187,912

506,740

512,400

CSERV

Corporate services

20,916

3,820

171,400

163,050

DISTC

District Elections

0

-13,264

0

17,060

ELADM

Election Administration

0

-1,274

34,910

37,180

ELECT

Register of Electors

63,020

34,788

109,510

88,860

EMERG

Community Safety

5,712

3,928

65,300

69,830

ERNET

Emergency Radio Network

-680

18

0

20

ESTAT

-25,773

-12,047

46,730

52,360

164,115

143,126

175,640

176,620

FMISC

Estates
Grants & Subscriptions - Policy
and Fin
Policy & Finance Miscellaneous

54,311

29,119

125,630

115,210

FREED

Freedom of the Borough

5,104

0

7,650

0

LANDC

Land Charges

-38,294

-44,226

13,100

12,550

LICSE

Licensing

-71,269

-69,518

40,750

62,440

LUNCH

Luncheon Clubs

13,970

1,625

16,250

16,400

NNDRC

National Non Domestic Rates

8,592

7,206

53,320

56,050

PARIS

Parish Elections

0

10,275

0

10,300

QPJUB

Queen`s Platinum Jubilee

0

2,000

0

20,000

RESOR

Resources Department
Superannuation Deficiency
Payments

1,446,476

1,391,290

0

0

60,281

41,513

93,060

88,260

3,014,336

2,730,744

2,257,180

2,308,860

0

-200,163

0

0

FGSUB

SUPDF

Service specific budgets before movements in
earmarked reserves
Coronavirus specific cost centres
Contain Outbreak Management
Fund £435k expenditure and
VARIOUS
associated grant allocation - to
net to nil by year-end
02-22pf

13 of 14

Page 29

ANNEX 1
ACTUAL TO THE END OF NOVEMBER 2021 WITH ORIGINAL ESTIMATE 2021/22 AND PROPOSED
REVISED ESTIMATE 2021/22

Cost Centre

VARIOUS

VARIOUS

VARIOUS

Description
Other direct costs associated
with the coronavirus response to be funded from the Covid-19
earmarked reserve
Grants received for distribution
to residents/ businesses - where
council acting as Principal,
balance to add to Covid-19
earmarked reserve to meet
future associated expenditures
Grants received to help the
council with the administrative
burden of the coronavirus
response, balance to be added
to the Covid-19 earmarked
reserve

Coronavirus specific budgets before
movements in earmarked reserves
Committee total before movements in
earmarked reserves

Original
Estimate to
End
November

Actual and
Commitments to
the End
November

Full Year
Original
Estimate

Proposed
Revised
Estimate

0

45,395

0

54,200

0

-614,204

0

-62,160

0

-173,367

0

-125,010

0

-942,339

0

-132,970

3,014,336

1,788,405

2,257,180

2,175,890

Add movements in earmarked Reserves
FNBAL/H230

Election Reserve

0

0

30,000

31,270

FNBAL/H269

Revaluation of Assets Reserve

0

0

2,190

2,420

-12,400

0

-13,600

0

0

0

0

23,150

0

-5,260

0

-5,260

5,510

5,430

5,510

5,430

FNBAL/H29:4 Cyber Resilience Reserve
FNBAL/H325

Vat Shelter Reserve
Repairs and Maintenance
FNBALH328
Reserve
FNBAL/H335: Invest to Save Fund
FNBAL/H337

Equipment Reserve

0

-2,000

0

-2,000

FNBAL/H372

Parish Grants Reserve

0

-2,000

0

-20,000

FNBAL/H376

Business Rates Growth Reserve

0

-5,180

0

-6,680

FNBAL/H377

Two Way Radio Reserve

0

-18

0

-20

0

0

0

70,220

0

0

0

62,750

-6,890

-9,028

24,100

161,280

3,007,446

1,779,377

2,281,280

2,337,170

FNBAL/H379

Covid-19 Earmarked Reserve
Self-Isolation Discretionary Grant
FNBAL/H382
Fund
Subtotal Earmarked Reserves
Committee total after transfers from/ to
earmarked reserves

02-22pf

14 of 14

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

DECISION

18 JANUARY 2022
ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
VALERIE TAYLOR

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To agree the draft revenue budget for 2022/23, for consideration at Special Policy and
Finance Committee.

2

BACKGROUND - COUNCIL'S OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION
3 Year Budget Forecast

2.1

The Council’s three-year budget forecast was presented to Policy and Finance Committee in
September. We were awaiting the outcome of the planned review of local government finances
reforms and therefore predicting our budget forecast was extremely difficult with any certainty.

2.2

Our forecast in September predicted the following budget gaps; £82k in 2022/23, £139k in
2023/24, £230k in 2024/25, after allowing for the use of general fund balances. However since
then there have been a number of significant changes affecting our budget.
Changes since the September Forecast

2.3

We have seen significant rises in inflation. CPI rose to 4.2% in October from 3.1% the previous
month. In November it rose further to 5.1% and the Bank of England now expect it could peak
at 6% next April which is three times higher than the target. Consequently the Bank of England
announced an increase in interest rates to 0.25% in December. We had allowed for inflationary
increases of 2% for pay and 3% for general price increases in the budget forecast which is
significantly lower than the current level. Already we are seeing extra inflationary costs of
around £300k more than we had allowed for in the forecast in areas such as fuel, energy and
utilities.

2.4

The Government announced national insurance contributions will increase by 1.25%. For
Ribble Valley we anticipate this cost will be around £90k next year.

2.5

A new pay line has been agreed and implemented with effect from October 2021. The
estimated cost of this is:

Pay line increase
2.6

03-22pf

1 of 11

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

£75k

£296.1k

£369.8k

£412.1k

Following a submission by the staff involved CMT have recently carried out a rescoring of
refuse collection driver posts under the Council’s job evaluation scheme. The posts have been
re-evaluated at grade Scale 5 as opposed to Scale 4. The impact of this would further increase
costs by:

Refuse drivers pay increase
2.7

2021/22
Estimate
Part year

2021/22
Estimate
Part year

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

£11.5k

£31k

£39k

£47k

On a more positive note, our council tax base has now been calculated at 24,553 which is
higher than that allowed for in our budget forecast. We had assumed a 1.5% increase. The
actual increase is 2.3% which will result in extra income of £29k each year.

Page 31

2.8

In summary therefore the budget gap is estimated to increase next year to £487k before any
additional growth requests are put forward by service committees. This is set out below.
2022/23
Estimate
£
Extra Inflation costs – at least
Pay

71k

Prices

62k

Fuel etc

180k
313k

National Insurance

90k

Refuse Drivers

31k

Council Tax Base increase
Previous Shortfall
Budget Gap

-29k
82k
£487k

3

2022/23 PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT SETTLEMENT

3.1

On 16 December 2021 the Government announced the provisional finance settlement. They
have pushed back the review of local government finance another year and announced a one
year only settlement. This is the fourth one-year settlement in a row, but it is expected to be
the last one before the Government consult on changes to future funding allocations.

3.2

Nationally there is 6.9% increase in Councils’ core spending power in cash terms between
2021/22 and next year.

3.3

The headlines for Ribble Valley are

03-22pf

2 of 11

•

Our core spending power is set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m.

•

Our Business Rates Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the current
year, however we will receive £111k compensation due to the loss in income we will
received due to the freezing of the business rates multiplier.

•

We been allocated a small amount of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite
RSG increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation.

•

Our Rural Services Delivery Grant will be £113,250 which is the same as the current year

•

We will receive an allocation from the Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from
£57,696. We expected this to be a one year only grant last year

•

A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m. This is to
provide funding for all tiers of local government in recognition of our services and includes
the costs of the increase in NI contributions. Ribble Valley will receive £93,368.

•

New Homes Bonus (NHB) – The Government have allowed a new round of NHB
allocations in respect of 2022/23 which will not attract any future legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which we were aware of
and had allowed for. Next year we will therefore receive £741k for 2022/23 along with the
legacy payment of £464k ie a total of £1.2m. However we are relying on NHB of £1.1m
to fund the revenue budget each year. This seems very much a one year only deal for
NHB and it does appear the scheme will end next year.

•

The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue.

•

We will be allowed to increase our council tax next year by £5

Page 32

3.4

Factoring the grant settlement into our budget forecast we are better off due to the business
rate multiplier compensation (£111k) and the new 2022/23 Services Grant (£93k). We are
also better off as a result of the Lower Tier services grant of £60k as we had assumed this was
a one year only grant for 2021/22. In total therefore this reduces the budget gap from £487k
to £223k.

3.5

We expect there will be transitional protection alongside the implementation of finance reforms
going forward. However transitional protection is usually against a council’s core spending
power. It is important to note the income we receive from business rate growth does not form
part of our core spending power. The Government have also made it clear the new one-off
2022/23 Services Grant will not form part of any transitional protection.

4

BUDGET PROCESS

4.1

The fees and charges for this committee were approved at your last meeting, and the
consequential impact of these have been incorporated in to the service budgets shown within
this report.

4.2

When all committees have approved their detailed estimates the overall position will be
considered by Budget Working Group.

4.3

The Budget Working Group will then make recommendations in order to produce a balanced
budget for consideration at the Special meeting of Policy and Finance Committee. The final
budget report will then be presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
will also be approved.

5

2022/23 DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET

5.1

As far as your budget is concerned, the estimates have been prepared on the current levels of
service, and they allow for pay increases at 2% and price increases at 3%.

5.2

Within this report the budget is shown in the same manner in which they are reviewed.
Each costs centre within the report is shown individually. Behind each cost centre is a
great deal more subjective level detailed budgets, but for the purposes of this report they
are summarised in to the standard local government CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
basis.
• Employee Related: this group includes the cost of employees, both direct and
indirect to the council.
• Premises Related: this group includes expenses directly related to the running of
premises and land.
• Transport Related: this group includes all costs associated with the provision,
hire or use of transport, including travelling allowances.
• Supplies and Services: this group includes all direct supplies and service
expenses to the council.
• Third Party Payments: a third party payment is a payment to an external
provider which is operating independently, in return for the provision of a service.
•

Transfer Payments: this includes the cost of payments to individuals for which no
goods or services are received in return by the local authority. A key item here
would be the payment of housing benefits.

• Support Services: charges for services that support the provision of services to the
public. At this council the main support service cost is the support from staff based at
the council offices building and the building's associated cost.
• Depreciation and Impairment: this is the revenue impact of capital items shown in
the service revenue accounts of the council.
• Income: this includes income from fees and charges, grants, donations and
contributions. Also shown here is the associated 'income' to a support service from
the redistribution of its costs to those providing services to the public.
03-22pf

3 of 11

Page 33

5.3

As you will see, the draft proposed budget for 2022/23 for each service area is also built up
looking at a number of stages. The starting point is the base budget, being the Original Estimate
for the current financial year. A summary of the various elements is given below.
• Original Estimate 2021/22: This represents the base budget for the council and
assumes no change in service level from that set for the previous year's original
estimate.
• Inflation at 2% Pay and 3% Other: The budget forecast allows for inflation on pay
at 2% and prices at 3 % (with some exceptions such as grants). This is where
that general allowance for inflation is brought in to the individual budget areas.
• Movements in Expenditure: This is where any movements in the expenditure
budgets for this committee are shown. This excludes movements in support services
and Capital, which are shown in separate columns.
• Movements in Income: This is where any movements in the income budgets for this
committee are shown.
• Movements in Support Services: Any changes that relate to the recharging of
support service costs are included in this column.
• Movements in Capital: Any changes relating to depreciation and impairment are
included in this column.
• DRAFT Original Estimate 2022/23: The final column is the total all preceding
columns and is constructed from the base budget and any necessary changes to the
base that are needed. If approved this will then form the base budget in next year's
budget process.

03-22pf

4 of 11

Page 34

6

SUMMARIES
6.1

The draft budget is summarised in two ways. One over the cost of the service provided by the committee (objective). The other is over the
type of expenditure and income (subjective)

a) Cost of service provided by the committee (Objective)
Inflation
Original
at 2% Pay
Cost Centre
Estimate
and 3%
2021/22
Other
CEXEC: Chief Executives
0
24,660
Department
CINTR: Clitheroe Interchange

Movements
in Support
Services

Movements
in Capital

64,730

-6,790

-82,600

0

0

0

5,940

0

700

1,460

8,100

62,100

1,190

440

0

1,250

0

64,980

CIVST: Civic Suite

0

840

3,330

0

-4,550

380

0

CLOFF: Council Offices

0

5,520

5,770

-270

-13,770

2,750

0

381,900

-90

-660

1,900

25,770

0

408,820

0

3,560

-11,720

0

8,160

0

0

CORPM: Corporate Management

353,190

0

0

0

12,340

0

365,530

COSDM: Cost of Democracy

506,740

8,150

5,030

0

14,930

16,070

550,920

CSERV: Corporate services

171,400

940

150

0

12,650

0

185,140

34,910

0

0

0

2,050

0

36,960

ELECT: Register of Electors

109,510

1,940

-16,850

0

2,720

0

97,320

EMERG: Community Safety

65,300

270

-250

0

3,130

0

68,450

0

90

-3,150

3,060

0

0

0

46,730

-1,120

430

11,730

2,090

6,630

66,490

Page 35

CLTAX: Council Tax
COMPR: Computer Services

ELADM: Election Administration

ERNET: Emergency Radio
Network
ESTAT: Estates

5 of 11

Further
Movement
in Income

0

CIVCF: Civic Functions

03-22pf

DRAFT
Original
Estimate
2022/23

Further
Movement in
Expenditure

Inflation
at 2% Pay
and 3%
Other

Further
Movement in
Expenditure

Further
Movement
in Income

Movements
in Support
Services

Movements
in Capital

175,640

370

-6,440

0

820

0

170,390

125,630

2,690

29,830

0

3,720

0

161,870

7,650

230

0

0

0

0

7,880

LANDC: Land Charges

13,100

-1,830

-4,860

0

4,230

0

10,640

LICSE: Licensing

40,750

-700

210

-3,040

11,260

0

48,480

LUNCH: Luncheon Clubs

16,250

0

0

0

200

0

16,450

NNDRC: National Non Domestic
Rates

53,320

200

10

-2,240

10,200

0

61,490

QPJUB: Queen's Platinum Jubilee

0

0

10,000

0

0

0

10,000

RESOR: Resources Department

0

44,600

109,680

0

-155,690

1,410

0

93,060

2,720

-7,260

0

0

0

88,520

0

0

0

-12,400

0

0

-12,400

2,257,180

94,230

184,360

-8,050

-140,390

28,700

2,416,030

24,100

0

-9,770

-3,510

0

0

10,820

0

0

0

12,400

0

0

12,400

2,281,280

94,230

174,590

840

-140,390

28,700

2,439,250

Cost Centre
FGSUB: Grants & Subscriptions Policy and Fin
FMISC: Policy & Finance
Miscellaneous
FREED: Freedom of the Borough

Page 36

SUPDF: Superannuation
Deficiency Payments
COVID: Covid-19 Response
Grand Total
Associated Movements in
Earmarked Reserves – Service
Specific Budgets
Associated Movements in
Earmarked Reserves – Covid-19
Budgets
Net after Earmarked Reserves

03-22pf

6 of 11

Original
Estimate
2021/22

DRAFT
Original
Estimate
2022/23

b) Type of Expenditure/Income (Subjective)
Original
Estimate
2021/22

Inflation at
2% Pay
and 3%
Other

Movements
in
Expenditure

Movements
in Income

Movements
in Support
Services

Movements
in Capital

DRAFT
Original
Estimate
2022/23

Employee Related Expenditure

3,155,500

64,050

166,640

0

0

0

3,386,190

Premises Related Expenditure

202,570

5,970

13,570

0

90

0

222,200

Transport Related Expenditure

59,290

1,780

1,890

0

0

0

62,960

970,110

28,790

10,320

0

0

0

1,009,220

87,980

2,630

-1,310

0

0

0

89,300

169,730

0

-6,750

0

0

0

162,980

2,450,790

0

0

0

132,950

0

2,583,740

160,680

0

0

0

0

28,700

189,380

7,256,650

103,220

184,360

0

133,040

28,700

7,705,970

Government Grants

-98,350

0

0

-15,190

0

0

-113,540

Other Grants and Contributions

-37,440

0

0

3,060

0

0

-34,380

-372,740

-8,980

0

4,080

0

0

-377,640

-4,490,580

0

0

0

-273,430

0

-4,764,010

-70

0

0

0

0

0

-70

-290

-10

0

0

0

0

-300

-4,999,470

-8,990

0

-8,050

-273,430

0

-5,289,940

2,257,180

94,230

184,360

-8,050

-140,390

28,700

2,416,030

24,100

0

-9,770

8,890

0

0

23,220

2,281,280

94,230

174,590

840

-140,390

28,700

2,439,250

Supplies & Services
Third Party Payments
Transfer Payments
Support Services
Depreciation and Impairment

Page 37

Total Expenditure

Customer & Client Receipts
Departmental Recharges
Miscellaneous Recharges
Interest
Total Income
Net Expenditure
Associated Movement in
Earmarked Reserves Total
Net After Earmarked Reserves

03-22pf

7 of 11

7

EARMARKED RESERVES

7.1

In the Original Estimate for 2021/22 this committee planned to add £24,100 to earmarked
reserves to support its expenditure in future years. Looking forward to 2022/23, the proposal
included in the estimates is that this committee add £23,220 to earmarked reserves.

7.2

The table below provides a summary of the DRAFT Original Estimate for 2022/23 together
with the budgeted impact on the relevant earmarked reserves. Also detailed is a summary
of the reasons for the movements on the earmarked reserves:
DRAFT
Original
Estimate
2022/23
Committee Net Cost
of Services
FNBAL/H230
Election Fund
FNBAL/H269
Revaluation
Reserve
FNBAL/H294
Cyber Resilience
Grant Reserve

2,416,030
30,000

Reserve established from monies set aside on an annual basis to
smooth out the cost of local elections. Shown here is a contribution to
the reserve of £30,000 in preparation for the next election.

2,420

Reserve established from monies set aside on an annual basis to
smooth out the cost of the full revaluation of the council’s assets that is
carried out every five years. This movement represents the annual
contribution to the reserve for the financial year 2022/23.

-13,600

Release of grant funds held in reserve that are budgeted to be
expended in 2022/23 on cyber resilience and recovery external
consultancy support and training.

FNBAL/H335
Invest to Save
Fund

2,000

The invest to save fund is a reserve that was established to fund
capital schemes that will generate recurring future savings as a result
of the expenditure incurred. Additional income/ savings generated are
paid back to the fund from completed capital projects up to the value
of the original capital expenditure. This movement is final repayment
to the reserve from the completed Queensway Garages capital
scheme.

FNBAL/H326
Performance
Reward Grants

-10,000

Release of funds from reserve for estimated costs associated with the
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee.

12,400

A new burdens payment is to be received in 2022/23 following
submission of evidence of assurance checks undertaken to minimise
the risk of errors and/ or fraud and over-payments for grant schemes
between August 2020 and March 2022. To be moved to the Covid-19
earmarked reserve to help meet the cost of future expenditures
relating to the ongoing coronavirus response.

FNBAL/H379
Covid-19 Reserve

Committee Net
Cost of Services
after Movements
on Earmarked
Reserves
03-22pf

Reason for Movement on Earmarked Reserve

2,439,250

Page 38
8 of 11

8

KEY VARIATIONS

8.1

The net expenditure for this committee has increased by £157,970 after allowing for
associated movements on earmarked reserves. The main reasons for this net increase are
summarised in the table below.
Variance Original
Estimate 2021/22 to
DRAFT Original
Estimate 2022/23
£

Description

Inflation
The budget forecast allows for inflation on pay at 2% and prices at
3%. The net standard inflationary increase for this committee brought
into the estimates is £94k.
Departmental direct employee costs
Salary, national insurance and superannuation expenditure estimates
have been increased by £66k within the Chief Executives Department
and £102k within the Resources Department.
The budget estimates incorporate changes to the payline approved
by Policy and Finance Committee in November 2021 and the cost of
the new Health and Social care levy.
The additional costs of the pay review for the financial years 2022/23
to 2024/25 are to be funded from the Business Rates Growth
earmarked reserve at a corporate level.
Gas and Electricity
Increase to gas and electricity estimates for 2022/23 following a
review of usage and incorporating above inflationary increases.
ELECT: Register of electors
Reduction to the estimated cost of the annual canvass following
changes introduced by the cabinet office that reduce both the number
of reminders that are required to be issued and the number of
household visits.
FMISC: Finance Miscellaneous
Increase to the annual budget provision for the estimated cost of
external audit services following an increase to the 2022/23 fees
(Accounts and Audit Committee July 2021).
Movement in capital (depreciation charges)
There is a net increase in the estimated capital charge for the
2022/23 financial year, mainly due to the completion of committee
capital schemes.
Support Service Costs
There is a net decrease in support service costs following changes to
various departmental cost allocations.

03-22pf

Page 39
9 of 11

94,230

168,490

10,930

-13,210

22,020

28,700

-140,390

9

REQUESTS FOR GROWTH ITEMS

9.1

The September budget forecast did not allow for any growth items, on the assumption that
past policies would continue, in that any growth should be funded from corresponding
savings.

9.2

Since September there has been growth approved in respect of a change to the council’s pay
line, to tackle the issues around staff recruitment and retention. This change to the pay-line,
as agreed at Policy and Finance Committee in November 2021, has been incorporated into
the budgets contained in this report.

9.3

There have been a number of other budget growth requests submitted, which have not been
included in the budget at this stage, and these are shown at Annex 1. Members are asked to
consider these and identify any items that they wish to support. These are summarised in the
table below.
Reference

Description

Amount

Recurring or
non-Recurring

REVPOL01

Increase to the Estates (ESTAT) Repairs
and Maintenance Revenue Budget.

15,000

Recurring

REVPOL02

Reinstatement Valuations of the
Council's Assets for Insurance Purposes.

7,000

Recurring

16,770

Both
Recurring and
Non-Recurring

2,000

Recurring

New Climate Change post

47,820

Recurring

Details for this
request are in Part II

New Post of Payroll Officer

38,090

Recurring

REVPOL07

Increased Staffing Resources in
Communications

10,420

Recurring

Details for this
request are in Part II

Increased Staffing Resources in HR

13,280

Recurring

REVPOL09

Deletion of a post, creation of a new post
and increase in hours to full time for
another post in Legal Services

25,280

Recurring

Additional Revenues Assistant post

29,780

Recurring

REVPOL03

REVPOL04

Employee and Manager Self service
Module of Payroll and HR System.
(£14,970 Non-Recurring implementation
costs and £1,800 Recurring Maintenance
and Support Costs)
Employee Assistance Programme - an
independent and confidential service that
gives staff telephone/online access to
qualified advisors who can provide
support and advice on a wide range of
topics to support mental health and
wellbeing. This will also be an additional
tool for helping to manage staff absence

REVPOL05
Details for this
request are in Part II

REVPOL06

Details for this
request are in Part II

REVPOL08

Details for this
request are in Part II

REVPOL10
Details for this
request are in Part II

205,440
03-22pf

Page 40

10 of 11

10

RISK ASSESSMENT

10.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications
• Resources: approval of the original budget for 2022/23 would see an increase in net
expenditure of £158,850 compared with the original budget for 2021/22 or an increase
of £157,970 after allowing for movements on earmarked reserves.
• Technical, Environmental and Legal: none identified
• Political: none identified
• Reputation: sound financial planning safeguards the reputation of the Council
• Equality and Diversity – Equality and diversity issues are considered in the provision of
all Council services.

11

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

11.1

Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 and submit this to the Special Policy and
Finance Committee.

11.2

Consider the requests that have been submitted for growth items and identify the ones that
are supported.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

PF3-22/VT/AC
7 JANUARY 2022

03-22pf

Page 41

11 of 11

Ribble Valley Borough Council

Annex 1
REVPOL01

Revenue Growth Request Form - Original Revenue Estimate 2022/23
Requested By
Head of Engineering Services

Description of Growth Request
This is a growth request for the Estates 2402 budget. The budget covers any asset owned by the council that does not have
its own budget.
I attach a printout of ther assets owned by the council. Some of the list have budgets and some have not.The assets
comprise open land,private roads and features, garden sites, a quarry tunnel, closed church yards, fences, walls, river walls,
garages and buildings.
Attached also is a breakdown of the monies spent over the last 5 financial years. As you can see there is an increasing
overspend towards the present day.
It shouls also be noted that the overspand shown is no necessarliy the complete overspend as a number of times money is
vired from other budgets to avoid overspending the Estates 2402 budget.

Will this Growth be for 2022/23 only (NON-RECURRING) or for every year after too (RECURRING)
RECURRING

Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
None

Any Risks that may need to be considered
The risk could be to the general public as not all the assets are regularly assessed for safety.

Breakdown of Growth Request - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased COSTS - Enter decreases with a minus sign

£
15,000

Changes to Revenue Costs
Increased/Decreased INCOME - Enter increases with a minus sign
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact of Growth Request

Page 42

15,000
£
0
15,000

Ribble Valley Borough Council

REVPOL02

Revenue Growth Request Form - Original Revenue Estimate 2022/23
Requested By
Head of Financial Services

Description of Growth Request
Reinstatement Valuations of the council’s assets for insurance purposes
At our last insurance renewal I was informed that we will now be required by Zurich Municipal to have our asset valued on a
reinstatement basis. We curently have our assets valued for accountancy purposes, but this is a valuation on a different
basis than for reinstatement purposes
Extract from email from Kate Gibson, Risk & Insurance Consultant at Zurich Municipal
At last renewal we discussed with Lawson that for the 2022/23 renewal we would require the council to obtain updated
reinstatement valuations for the property portfolio. This is due to inflationary uplifts being applied to the sums insured for a
number of years. Therefore although the updated valuations are now an underwriting requirement , they may also
benefit the council by ensuring the adequacy of the sums insured for the future year without the requirement to rely solely
on the above indices.
I have approached one of the valuers that we use for accountancy valuations and they have provided a quote of £7,000 for
undertaking this work. Only one quote has been obtained at this time, but more will be sought in line with financial
regulations.

Will this Growth be for 2022/23 only (NON-RECURRING) or for every year after too (RECURRING)
RECURRING EVERY 3 YEARS

Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
None seem to be applicable in this instance

Any Risks that may need to be considered
There is a risk that any sizeable movements in asset valuations from those currently used for the purposes of our renewal
may result in an increase to our premium. However, there is also the possiblity that our premium may reduce if valuations
are lower.

Breakdown of Growth Request - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased COSTS - Enter decreases with a minus sign

£

Valuation of council owned assets (reinstatement basis) for insurance purposes

Changes to Revenue Costs
Increased/Decreased INCOME - Enter increases with a minus sign
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact of Growth Request

Page 43

7,000

7,000
£
0
7,000

Ribble Valley Borough Council

REVPOL03

Revenue Growth Request Form - Original Revenue Estimate 2022/23
Requested By
Head of Financial Services

Description of Growth Request
Employee and Manager Self service Module of Payroll and HR System (Frontier Software - CHRIS21)
The primary purpose of the request was to allow staff to access payslips online, but it also offers other functionality that
could be beneficial, as detailed in the attached documentation.
Frontier software have said that this is a module that has been taken up by a large number of their client base since Covid
as it allows for the paperless flow of a wide variety of documentation.

Will this Growth be for 2022/23 only (NON-RECURRING) or for every year after too (RECURRING)
NON-RECURRING: INITIAL PURCHASE

RECURRING: ANNUAL MAINTENANCE

Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
Small impact through the reduced use of paper (and delivery by post in some instances)

Any Risks that may need to be considered
May result in additional impact on ICT team/Payments team due to support/access issues.

Breakdown of Growth Request - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased COSTS - Enter decreases with a minus sign

£

Employee and Manager Self service Module (Non-Recurring)
Installation and Training for Employee and Manager Self service Module (Non-Recurring)

9,000
5,970

Annual Maintenance Fee (Recurring)

1,800

Changes to Revenue Costs
Increased/Decreased INCOME - Enter increases with a minus sign

16,770

Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact of Growth Request

Page 44

£
0
16,770

Ribble Valley Borough Council

REVPOL04

Revenue Growth Request Form - Original Revenue Estimate 2022/23
Requested By
Head of HR

Description of Growth Request
Create new budget provision for an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP). As part of our measures to support the health
and well-being staff, manage staff absence and address recruitment and retention issues it would be advantageous to
procure an EAP. Our current Occupational Health advisors can provide an EAP (PAM Assist). Their EAP offesr a
management and personal support service that is available 24 hours a day and 365 days per year. It is an idependent and
confidential service that gives staff telephone access to qualified advisors who can provide support and advice on a wide
range of topics e.g Personal issues such as Divorce, Miscarriage, Anxiety issues, Abuse; Family Crises such as support
following a bereavement, mental health issues; illness such as losing a loved one, funeral arrangements, depression, drug
and alcohol abuse, living with a long term illness. The programme can provide initial advice, plus telephone counselling and
up to six sessions of face-to-face counselling. An EAP would be an attractive and valuable support service for staff and
would greatly enhance our package of benefits when recruiting. It may also allow staff to access support more quickly e.g
counselling services. Breakdown of services provided = Employee Promotional materials includes Bespoke literature,
promotional key fobs
Initial broadcast emailer and bi annual update emailers
365 Day Online Portal and advice service
Mobile App
Health and medical advice portal
365 Telephone Support service
Structured Counselling remote and face to face includes CBT
Up to 6 sessions of Counselling or
Up to 4 sessions of CBT or
8 sessions of Computerised CBT
Trauma Incident Management Advice Line
Legal Guidance and Debt support line
Management Support and adviceline
Quarterly Wellbeing Compass Magazine
Contract and Relationship Management

Will this Growth be for 2022/23 only (NON-RECURRING) or for every year after too (RECURRING)
RECURRING

Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
None

Any Risks that may need to be considered
None

Breakdown of Growth Request - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased COSTS - Enter decreases with a minus sign

£

Costs are £8.35 per annum per employee +VAT so approximately £2,000 pa

Changes to Revenue Costs
Increased/Decreased INCOME - Enter increases with a minus sign
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact of Growth Request

Page 45

2,000

2,000
£
0
2,000

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

DECISION

18 JANUARY 2022
REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
ANDREW COOK

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To approve the 2021/22 revised estimate for this Committee’s capital programme.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:
•

Community Objectives – none identified.

•

Corporate Priorities – to continue to be a well-managed council, providing efficient
services based on identified customer needs.

•

Other Considerations – none identified.

2

2021/22 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BACKGROUND

2.1

Four capital schemes for this Committee’s original estimate budget, totalling £105,510, were
approved by the Special Policy and Finance Committee and Full Council at their meetings in
February 2021 and March 2021 respectively. All four scheme budgets had been moved from
the 2020/21 capital programme to the 2021/22 capital programme.

2.2

In addition to the original estimate budget above, the following budget changes have been
made so far in 2021/22:
•

Four capital schemes were not completed by 31 March 2021 and had unspent budget
available at that date. The total unspent budget of £34,280 on those schemes, known as
slippage, has been moved into the 2021/22 capital programme budget, after approval by
this Committee in June 2021.

•

One additional capital scheme with a budget of £40,000 was approved by this
Committee in September 2021.

2.3

As a result of the above, the total approved budget for this Committee’s capital programme
of eight schemes is £179,790. This is shown at Annex 1.

3

REVISING THE 2021/22 CAPITAL PROGRAMME

3.1

We have now discussed each of the schemes in the capital programme with budget holders
and revised the programme to reflect their progress and estimated full year expenditure.
Following this review, the proposed revised estimate is £70,910 for five schemes, which is a
reduction of £108,880 from the total approved capital budget. The reasons for this are as
follows:
•

04-22pf

1 of 5

Dewhurst Road, Langho – Resurfacing Works (Decrease of £62,850): Following the
completion of the pre-tender works, there has been less progress than previously
planned on specifying the main contract works required and this has been exacerbated
by the recent vacancy in the post of Engineering Services Manager. It is expected that
the main contract works will now take place in 2022/23, but there may be some survey

Page 47

design expenditure before 2021/22 year-end to support the main contract works tender
specification.
Given the above, it is proposed that the 2021/22 revised estimate is reduced to £6,800
to cover the completed pre-tender works and anticipated survey design costs and that
the remainder of the scheme budget, £62,850, is moved to 2022/23.
•

Network Infrastructure (Decrease of £30,000): No progress has been able to be made
on this scheme since the update in September due to other pressures on the ICT service.
This has since been exacerbated by the recent vacancy in the post of ICT Infrastructure
Officer and the re-introduction of home working. The ICT Infrastructure Officer's post has
now been filled and we expect to engage with suppliers in relation to this scheme in the
next month or so. We do not expect the scheme to be complete this financial year.
Given the above, it is proposed that the 2021/22 revised estimate is reduced to nil and
the £30,000 scheme budget is moved to 2022/23.

•

Committee Administration IT System (Decrease of £7,600): The budget moved from
2020/21 was set aside to fund any IT hardware purchases required to support the use of
the system (possibly some laptops). The Head of Legal and Democratic Services wants
the system to be used for face-to-face meetings in the Council chamber for a full year
before deciding whether any IT hardware is required. Given this, it is proposed that the
2021/22 revised estimate is reduced to nil and the £7,600 scheme budget is moved to
2022/23.

•

Financial system upgrade (Decrease of £8,430): Options continue to be appraised for
further enhancement of the system. There will be some trialling of options to assess
workability over the coming months, but some further enhancements, which may incur a
cost, could be needed subject to the outcome of these trials. As such we continue to be
in discussions with the software company, but any further spend would be unlikely to be
needed until the 2022/23 financial year.
Given the above, it is proposed that the 2021/22 revised estimate is reduced to nil and
the £8,430 scheme budget is moved to 2022/23.

3.2

Annex 1 shows the full capital programme by scheme, including the budget and expenditure
to date. The summary position is shown below.

Original
Estimate
2021/22
£

Budget
Moved
from
2020/21
£

Slippage
from
2020/21
£

0

105,510

34,280

Total
Additional Approved
Approvals
Budget
2021/22
2021/22
£
£
40,000

179,790

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£
70,910

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
Budget
as at end of
Moved to
December
2022/23
2021
£
£
108,880

19,450

3.3

At the end of December 2021 £19,450 had been spent or committed. This is 27.4% of the
revised capital programme budget for this Committee.

3.4

Of the five schemes in this Committee’s revised estimate capital programme, one scheme is
complete, two schemes are expected to be completed in-year and there is the possibility but
no certainty that spend on the other two schemes (Dewhurst Road, Langho – Resurfacing
Works survey design costs and Replacement PCs CivicaPay upgrade) will be completed inyear.

04-22pf

2 of 5

Page 48

3.5

Progress on the schemes with the largest remaining 2021/22 budgets is as follows:
•

Re-design of Corporate Website (£12,000): Work is currently on-going. We cancelled
the original go-live date due to technical issues that we encountered with the new site.
We hope to go-live early to mid-February 2022 dependent on the supplier’s technical
staff availability.

•

Replacement IT Equipment for Councillors (£38,436): Spend to date relates to IT
equipment purchased for councillors to trial. The preferred IT equipment has been
chosen and an order has been placed for the remaining hardware. The replacement IT
equipment will be purchased in-year.

4

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications:
•

Resources – Approval of the revised capital programme will see a decrease of £108,880
in the overall level of financing resources needed in 2021/22 and £108,880 of capital
financing resources will be moved into 2022/23.

•

Technical, Environmental and Legal – None.

•

Political – None.

•

Reputation – Sound financial planning for known capital commitments safeguards the
reputation of the Council.

•

Equality and Diversity – Equality and diversity issues are examined as part of the capital
bid appraisal process.

5

CONCLUSION

5.1

The proposed revised estimate for this Committee’s 2021/22 capital programme is £70,910
for five schemes, which is a reduction of £108,880 from the previously approved capital
budget.

5.2

It is recommended that budgets on four schemes, totalling £108,880, are moved to the
2022/23 financial year.

5.3

At the end of December 2021 £19,450 had been spent or committed. This is 27.4% of the
revised capital programme budget for this Committee.

5.4

Of the five schemes in this Committee’s revised estimate capital programme, one scheme is
complete, two schemes are expected to be completed in-year and there is the possibility but
no certainty that spend on the other two schemes will be completed in-year.

6

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

6.1

Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of £70,910 for this Committee’s capital programme,
as set out in Annex 1.

04-22pf

3 of 5

Page 49

6.2

Approve the transfer of the following capital budgets from 2021/22 to 2022/23:
•
•
•
•

Dewhurst Road, Langho – Resurfacing Works, £62,850.
Network Infrastructure, £30,000.
Committee Administration IT System, £7,600.
Financial system upgrade, £8,430.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

PF4-22/AC/AC
7 January 2022
For further background information please ask for Andrew Cook
BACKGROUND PAPERS – None

04-22pf

4 of 5

Page 50

ANNEX 1
POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE – REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22

0

Budget
Moved
from
2020/21
£
65,800

Slippage
from
2020/21
£
3,850

Additional
Approvals
2021/22
£
0

Total
Approved
Budget
2021/22
£
69,650

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£
6,800

Budget
Moved to
2022/23
£
62,850

Actual
Expenditure
including
commitments
as at end of
December
2021
£
5,784

Network Infrastructure

0

30,000

0

0

30,000

0

30,000

0

COLFT

Lift replacement at Council Offices

0

2,110

0

0

2,110

2,110

0

2,102

COADM

Committee Administration IT System

0

7,600

0

0

7,600

0

7,600

0

COWEB

Re-design of Corporate Website

0

0

12,000

0

12,000

12,000

0

0

REPPC

Replacement PCs

0

0

10,000

0

10,000

10,000

0

10,000

CFUPG

Financial system upgrade

0

0

8,430

0

8,430

0

8,430

0

ITEQC

Replacement IT Equipment for Councillors

0

0

0

40,000

40,000

40,000

0

1,564

Total Policy and Finance Committee

0

105,510

34,280

40,000

179,790

70,910

108,880

19,450

Cost
Centre

Scheme

DHRST

Dewhurst Road, Langho - Resurfacing Works

NTWRK

Page 51

04-22pf

5 of 5

Original
Estimate
2021/22
£

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

DECISION

18 JANUARY 2022
CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
ANDREW COOK

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To ask Committee to consider the future capital programme for this Committee
following a review of the existing capital programme and the submission of new
scheme bids. The details within this report cover the period 2022/23 to 2026/27.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

This report will review the schemes that were approved in to the capital programme in
March 2021, for the financial years 2022/23 to 2024/25. Also, new bids received from
Heads of Service covering 2025/26 and 2026/27 are presented for consideration. No
bids have previously been requested for 2025/26 or 2026/27.

2.2

In the same manner as previous years, all Heads of Service were asked to submit new
capital bids. Capital bids from other sources, such as Directors and Committees, have
also been considered where appropriate.

3

REVIEW OF THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 TO 2024/25

3.1

For this Committee there were originally 8 schemes approved for the financial years
2022/23 to 2024/25, totalling £432,880. Review of the schemes by Heads of Service
identified no proposed amendments to the previously approved schemes in the
2022/23 to 2024/25 capital programme.

3.2

The table below summarises the currently approved 2022/23 to 2024/25 capital
programme for this Committee following the above review. The schemes in the
currently approved 2022/23 to 2024/25 capital programme are shown in Annex 1.
2022/23
£
Currently Approved Capital
Programme for Policy and
Finance Committee (Annex 1)

226,600

2023/24
£
118,200

2024/25
£
88,080

TOTAL
£
432,880

4

NEW CAPITAL BIDS FOR 2025/26 AND 2026/27

4.1

Heads of Service were also asked to put forward new bids for 2025/26 and 2026/27.
For this Committee, 6 new bids have been submitted covering 2025/26 and 2026/27,
totalling £415,100. There is 1 joint bid from the Legal, Planning and Environmental
Health departments for Software Upgrade for Regulatory Services (CAPPOL05). The
bid is presented to this Committee because it was submitted by the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services on behalf of all the services involved.

4.2

A summary listing of the 2025/26 and 2026/27 new scheme bids is shown in Annex 2
and detailed information for each new scheme bid is shown in Annex 3.

05-22pf

1 of 5

Page 53

4.3

This Committee should therefore consider the new scheme bids. Members are also
asked to put forward any capital bid suggestions and amendments that they may wish
to make at this stage.

4.4

Please note that other committees will be receiving similar reports for new scheme
bids. Bids from all committees will finally be considered alongside each other by
the Budget Working Group and a future meeting of Policy and Finance
Committee.

4.5

Members will see that for 3 of this Committee’s bids, requests have been made for the
scheme bids to be brought forward to earlier years. These requests will be considered
by Budget Working Group and Policy and Finance Committee as part of the review of
bids from all committees.

5

APPROVED SCHEMES AND NEW CAPITAL PROGRAMME BIDS - 2022/23 TO
2026/27

5.1

The table below provides a summary of the financial impact of the currently approved
capital programme schemes and the new bids that have been received from Heads of
Service for 2025/26 and 2026/27, if all bids were to be approved.
2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

2025/26
£

2026/27
£

TOTAL
£

226,600

118,200

88,080

372,800

42,300

847,980

6

EXTERNAL FUNDING

6.1

No external funding has been identified to help finance the new bids put forward for
2025/26 and 2026/27.

7

ADDITIONAL REVENUE COSTS AND POTENTIAL REVENUE SAVINGS

7.1

Some of the new schemes put forward for 2025/26 and 2026/27 include details of
additional net revenue costs or potential net revenue savings. In considering the
scheme bids, members should be mindful of the revenue impacts that the new bids
would commit the Council to.

8

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications:

05-22pf

2 of 5

•

Resources – The new bids that have been submitted for this Committee
would increase the capital programme by £415,100. This would require
additional funding of £415,100 because no external funding has been
identified to help finance the new bids.

•

Technical, Environmental and Legal – None.

•

Political – None.

•

Reputation – Sound financial planning for known capital commitments
safeguards the reputation of the Council.

•

Equality and Diversity – Equality and Diversity issues are examined as part of
the capital bid appraisal process.

Page 54

9

CONCLUSION

9.1

There are currently 8 schemes in the currently approved capital programme for this
Committee for the period 2022/23 to 2024/25, totalling £432,880.

9.2

There are 6 new capital scheme bids for 2025/26 and 2026/27, totalling £415,100.

10

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

10.1

Confirm the schemes in the currently approved Capital Programme.

10.2

Consider the new capital bids for 2025/26 and 2026/27 and determine which should
be forwarded to a future meeting of Policy and Finance Committee to be considered
alongside the bids from all committees as part of the Overall Capital Programme.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT
CM05-22/AC/AC
7 January 2022

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

For further background information please ask for Andrew Cook
BACKGROUND PAPERS - None

05-22pf

3 of 5

Page 55

ANNEX 1
Policy and Finance Committee
Previously Approved Capital Programme and Proposed
Amendments Summary – 2022/23 to 2024/25
POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

Brookfoot Footbridge, Ribchester –
Replacement of Bridge

110,000

110,000

ICT Infrastructure Refresh

116,600

116,600

Revenues and Benefits Replacement
Server

27,400

27,400

Cyber Security Solutions Refresh

58,300

58,300

Replacement Air Conditioning Units in
Server Room

10,000

10,000

E-Recruitment System

22,500

22,500

Replacement PCs

66,000

66,000

Firewall Refresh

22,080

22,080

88,080

432,880

Previously Approved Capital
Programme for Policy and Finance
Committee

226,600

118,200

NO AMENDMENTS PROPOSED TO
EXISTING CAPITAL PROGRAMME
SCHEMES
Currently Approved Capital
Programme for Policy and Finance
Committee

05-22pf

4 of 5

0

226,600

Page 56

118,200

88,080

432,880

ANNEX 2
Policy and Finance Committee
Summary of New Capital Bids for 2025/26 and 2026/27
Bid Number

2025/26
£

Schemes

2026/27
£

TOTAL
£

CAPPOL01

Council Offices Fire Alarm Upgrade

64,300

64,300

CAPPOL02

Council Offices Mains and LED
Lighting Upgrade

99,400

99,400

CAPPOL03

Smart Heating System

17,800

17,800

CAPPOL04

Townley Building Re-roof

34,400

34,400

CAPPOL05

Software Upgrade for Regulatory
Services

156,900

156,900

CAPPOL06

05-22pf

5 of 5

Replacement ICT Equipment for
Councillors
Total - 2025/26 and 2026/27 New
Bids for Policy and Finance
Committee

Page 57

372,800

42,300

42,300

42,300

415,100

ANNEX 3

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL01

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2025/26
Head of Service
Head Of Engineering Services
Capital Scheme Title
Council Offices Fire Alarm Upgrade
Brief Description of the Scheme
The fire alarm at the Council offices is coming to the end of its economic life. The current system was
installed when the building was built back in 1980. There have been a few alterations to the system to
accommodate compartmentation and some flashing beacons have been installed back in the early 2000's
to comply with regulations. The current beacons positioned over the exit doors can only be seen from
certain locations. It is proposed to replace the current detectors with sounder/detector/beacons that are
designed and approved to meet both EN54-3 and EN54-23. This is the standard RVBC should be
achieving considering the nature of the building. Whilst upgrading the fire alarm it is proposed to install
fire dampers in the AHU to maintain compartmentation. The dampers will prevent the spread of a
potential fire through the AHU ducts, which helps to stop a fire from spreading throughout the rest of the
building. They also help to prevent smoke from travelling through the building's ductwork in the event of a
fire.
This bid was put on hold but the fire detection system is now becoming outdated and the existing
panel is becoming obsolete. It is a statutory requirement to have a compliant system so it is
requested that the bid is brought forward as soon as possible.
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials

A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs
Contractors
Internal Staff Time
Planning Fees/Building Regulations
Total Capital Costs

£
62,300
400
1,600
64,300

Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.
N/A
Timescale for Completion
Approx 3 weeks.
Any Risks to Completion
Lead times.
Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 58

0
0
0

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL02

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2025/26
Head of Service
Head Of Engineering Services
Capital Scheme Title
Council Offices Mains and LED Lighting Upgrade
Brief Description of the Scheme
The Electrical distribution boards (mains boards) at the Council Offices are becoming redundant after the
recent release of the 18th edition back in 2019. The proposed works would ensure surge protection and
residual circuit protection (RCD) to all the circuits in the Council Offices. The proposed works would
significantly reduce the chance of electric shock to employees and help protect equipment to surges.
This will involve removing all distribution boards at the Council Offices and replacing them for new boards
that will meet current legislation.
This scheme also proposes to replace the office lighting for LED lighting as the current fittings are no
longer efficient compared to LED.
It is advised that this capital bid is brought forward as soon as possible.
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
Replacement of the office lighting will be a big step in RVBC's commitment to reduce carbon
consumption.
A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs

£
96,600
1,300
1,500
99,400

Contractors
Internal Staff Time
Planning Fees/Building Regulations
Total Capital Costs
Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.
N/A

Timescale for Completion
April 2025: Tender and undertake programme of works. September 2025: Commencement of works.
November 2025: Works completed.
Any Risks to Completion
IT staff available weekends for power down. Surveying section available to work weekends and evenings.
Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased Costs - Enter decreases with a minus sign
Electricity usage reduced from LED lighting
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 59

£
-6,000
-6,000
0
-6,000

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL03

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2025/26
Head of Service
Head Of Engineering Services
Capital Scheme Title
Smart Heating System
Brief Description of the Scheme
The current heating control system covers most of the Council's main sites, these being the Council
Offices, Civic Suite, Castle Museum, Edisford changing rooms and Ribblesdale Pool. The heating
controllers at these sites are now obsolete, so if they fail then a full system upgrade would be required.
The current system is based on modem technology and is temperamental when dialling out to sites to
configure heating arrangements. We recently upgraded part of the system at the Council Offices, but we
are currently experiencing issues with dialling out to the various sites using outdated modems and phone
line connections.
It is proposed to upgrade the system by purchasing new smart heating control units for each site, which
will also include software that will link all the sites efficiently.
The system will require a maintenance contract for a figure of around £200 per year.
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
A more efficient smart heating system will reduce energy consumption.
A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs

£
17,400
400
17,800

Contractors
Internal Staff Time
Total Capital Costs
Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.

Timescale for Completion
Approx 1 week.
Any Risks to Completion

Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased Costs - Enter decreases with a minus sign
Maintenance contract per annum
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 60

£
200
200
0
200

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL04

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2025/26
Head of Service
Head Of Engineering Services
Capital Scheme Title
Townley Building Re-roof
Brief Description of the Scheme
The existing roof at the Townley Building has fallen into a state of disrepair. The existing roof has a valley
gutter that is not wide enough to dispel the water sufficiently. As a result the building has suffered internal
water damage on the top floor and the battens have become rotten due to the water backing up above
the valley gutter height.
It is proposed to strip the existing roof, replace defective timber, replace and enlarge the valley gutter,
then complete a full re-roof including new battens and felt, whilst re-using as many of the existing slates
as possible.
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials

A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs
Contractors
Internal Staff Time
Total Capital Costs

£
34,000
400
34,400

Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.
A patch repair option has been provided to replace the bottom 4 or 5 tiers of slates and includes to raise
the width of the valley gutters and new battens but it was pointed out at the time of the survey that the
existing felt was in a very poor condition and really needs to be replaced. It means that the felt would
need to be replaced at a later date and the cost for this will be similar to the full new roof cost.
Timescale for Completion
Approx 5 weeks.
Any Risks to Completion
The lead times on materials and adverse weather conditions.
Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 61

0
0
0

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL05

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2025/26

Page 1 of 2

Head of Service
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Capital Scheme Title
Software Upgrade for Regulatory Services
Brief Description of the Scheme
A combined bid from Planning, Legal and Environmental Health departments (including building control).
The bid seeks approval for replacement of the existing software systems used in these departments with
a new cloud-based software system. The current software is outdated, inefficient and does not provide
any facility for mobile/agile working.
All local planning authorities use specialist software to manage the development management process
including enforcement. The Building Control Service can utilise the same software for the effective
running of the service with similar processes.
The Council's current software does not support all functions of a local planning authority/building control
service and does not have an enforcement facility (temporary management measures have been created
for this function).
The Council's current licensing software does not support all the functions of a licensing authority. It does
not allow for online applications. These are currently available for a limited number of applications via the
GOV.UK website but it has been suggested that this will be withdrawn. In the event that happens the
Council has no facility to provide an online service for those applications or indeed any other. It also has
no effective facility for use by the licensing enforcement officers. Information cannot be easily exchanged
between the licensing officer and enforcement. It does not include a document management system
rather each page of a document must be scanned individually as a JPEG in Lalpac and the Planning
department are paying to have each paper file scanned. As a result of the fact that licensing applications
cannot be submitted electronically, payment is currently made either by cheque or over the phone.
Lalpac and Flare have no facility for dealing with renewals. Officers must manually process renewal
reminders and suspensions if fees are not paid. The new system would be configured to prepare these
and send them by email, dramatically reducing Officer time involved in this task.
The licensing service within Environmental Health currently has no provision within its software to ensure
that public registers are displayed on the Council’s website. The public cannot therefore access
information on which establishments are properly licensed.
None of the existing software has provision for mobile working. Mobile working would allow officers to use
a tablet to take the photographs, access documents and input reports straight into the system whilst on
site thus removing duplication of effort and ensuring that records are more accurate as they are made
contemporaneously. Use of mobile technology would also provide an improvement in safety from a lone
worker perspective.
Implementation of the new software would provide: effective and efficient determination of applications;
transparency and appropriate access to information ensuring effective engagement and public
participation; improved customer experience, with a fit for purpose website interface, reflective of the shift
to and current reliance on the Internet; the system could be accessed from anywhere on any device
(subject to security); improvements to the GIS mapping system which will ensure that all map data is up
to date, ensuring sound decisions; and secure storage of all documents.
Within the existing Capital Programme there is a scheme for the introduction of Planning Portal Link to
the Planning Application System and a Planning System Update. Whilst the link has been introduced it is
not compatible with the current MVM software. This existing scheme would be rolled up into the new
scheme.
It should be noted that the bid figures provided are list prices and do not include any negotiation or the
price which may be included at tender stage. They are also based on the 2025/2026 capital programme
and so include 12.6% for inflation between 2021/22 and 2025/2026.
The services request however that the bid be considered for the 2022/2023 capital programme and
if that were approved the capital cost estimate would be £143,600, including 3% for inflation
between 2021/2022 and 2022/2023.
The bid also provides for the purchase of 26 ipads and robust cases to allow officers to utilise the mobile
functions of the software.

Page 62

CAPPOL05
Page 2 of 2
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
Implementation of this new software would radically reduce the amount of paper used and stored in all the
services included within this bid. Each service could move to an almost paperless system. It would also
reduce the use of postage which would again have an impact environmentally as it would reduce the
deliveries to be made and the resources used in processing the post. This would accord with one of the
Council’s short-term climate change priorities.
Reducing the amount of paper used would benefit the Council financially, would improve the efficiency of
the services and lead to less waste and use of resources.
The ability to enable mobile working would also have benefits in terms of officer efficiency. With
technology which enables files to be accessed remotely and notes to be taken along with photographs all
the key elements of each job can be carried out efficiently and effectively as part of one site visit. This will
have associated benefits of reducing carbon emissions through more efficient site visits and additional
officer capacity by a reduction in the time spent updating notes/ photos etc manually.
The Planning White Paper emphasises the need to harness digital technology to make it much easier to
access and understand information about specific planning proposals. The new software will fit within
these aspirations.
A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs

£
144,900
12,000
156,900

Contractors
Equipment/Materials
Total Capital Costs

Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.
The services have looked at upgrading the existing systems. It has been determined that this would not
provide the benefits required in terms of efficiency, and mobile and paperless working.
Timescale for Completion
The services request that this bid be considered as part of the 2022/2023 programme so that it could be
implemented in the next 2 years.
Any Risks to Completion
The ability to implement the system within the desired timescale or indeed within any timescale would be
dependent to some degree on an appropriate team being established to include IT and representatives
from each of the service areas to work with the supplier.
Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Increased/Decreased Costs - Enter decreases with a minus sign
ONE OFF YEAR 1 COST - training costs = £13,200
RECURRING COSTS:
Software Maintenance Increased Costs (Idox hosting fee less current
annual costs for Northgate, Lalpac and Civica)
Mobile Connectivity Costs (SIMs for Ipads)
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 63

£

2,700
7,700
10,400
0
10,400

Ribble Valley Borough Council

CAPPOL06

Capital Scheme Bid Form for 2026/27
Head of Service
Head of Financial Services
Capital Scheme Title
Replacement ICT Equipment for Councillors
Brief Description of the Scheme
This bid is for 2026/27.
There is a current scheme (2021/22) for the replacment of councillor ICT equipment. This scheme
followed a previous scheme for iPads which were bought in 2015.
The equipment being bought in 2021/22 will be 5 years old come 2026/27 and will be due for
replacement.
The costings given in this scheme bid are based on Surface Pro costs (although a decision on the
equipment to be bought in 2021/22 has yet to be made).
An allowance has also been made for Professional Services, as is the case in 2021/22, as it is unknown
at this stage whether such services may be required at that point in time - this would be driven by the
equipment taken up at that time.
Environmental Considerations and Green Credentials
From the Microsoft website:
--------Reduce your impact on the environment
Boost your environmental integrity by investing in technology that meets rigorous eco-standards across
the entire lifecycle. Microsoft Surface laptops and tablets are EPEAT gold-registered.* Microsoft
Corporation is gold-rated by EcoVadis.
--------In 2026/27 we will seek to procure equipment that best fits purpose and has the best lifecycle green
credentials at that time, within budget.
A Breakdown of Your Bid
Costs
Contractors
Equipment/Materials
Total Capital Costs

£
4,060
38,240
42,300

Please detail other solutions that you have considered but dismissed.
The bid is based on the equipment currently being considered in 2021/22. Alternatives to be considered
today will likely not be available in 2026/27 due to technological advances.
Timescale for Completion
Within year. Progress would depend on when a decision is made on the equipment to take forward.
Any Risks to Completion
Technological advances. Five years is a very long time in respect of ICT equipment, and such advances
may change the nature of any solution needed in 2026/27.
Revenue Budget Implications - Income and Expenditure
Changes to Revenue Costs
Changes to Revenue Income
Net Revenue Impact

Page 64

0
0
0

Agenda Item 9
DECISION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

18 JANUARY 2022
CORPORATE DEBT POLICY
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
MARK EDMONDSON

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To agree a new Corporate Debt Policy (CDP).

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council is required to collect debts across several different departments. These
debts can be in relation to a variety of services, ranging from Business Rates,
Council Tax and rent for both commercial and residential properties.

3

ISSUES

3.1

Having a CDP is good practice and ensures that all the people involved in the
collection of money owed to the Council have a consistent approach and
understanding of our procedures.

3.2

The Local Government Ombudsman has recommended that Local Authorities should
have a CDP and publish it on its website so that anyone who owes money to the
Council can understand what approach we will take.

5

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

5.1

Approve the Policy attached at Appendix 1.

MARK EDMONDSON
HEAD OF REVENUES & BENEFITS

JANE PEARSON
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

For further information please ask for Mark Edmondson, extension 4504.
POLICY AND FINANCE – 18 JANUARY 2022

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

CORPORATE DEBT
POLICY

December 2021

Page 67

Page 1 of 9

CONTENTS
1.

SUMMARY OF DOCUMENT ......................................................................................... 3

2.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY ..................................................................................... 3

3.

OUTCOMES OF THE POLICY ...................................................................................... 3

4.

DEBTS TO WHICH THIS POLICY APPLIES ................................................................. 4

5.

PRIORITISING DEBTS .................................................................................................. 4

6.

SOCIAL INCLUSION - ABILITY TO PAY ....................................................................... 5

7.

ENFORCEMENT ACTION THAT CAN BE TAKEN ........................................................ 6

8.

ALTERNATIVE ACTION TO ENFORCEMENT ACTION ................................................ 7

9.

OMISSION, EVASION AND FRAUD .............................................................................. 8

10.

REVIEW AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT ......................................................... 9

11.

MEASURING PERFORMANCE ................................................................................. 9

12.

COMPLAINTS, DISPUTES, MISTAKES AND FEEDBACK ........................................ 9

13.

PROVISION FOR WRITE-OFF .................................................................................. 9

14.

WITHDRAWING SERVICES ...................................................................................... 9

15.

DATA PROTECTION ................................................................................................. 9

Page 68

Page 2 of 9

1.

SUMMARY OF DOCUMENT

1.1

This policy sets out a clear framework on how the Council will collect debt by using a
co-ordinated approach whilst having due regard to customers individual circumstances
and ability to pay. It details the Council’s approach and action it will take to recover
debt.

1.2

The Council has a legal duty to ensure cost-effective billing, collection, and recovery
of all sums due to the Council.

1.3

This policy is designed to support the maximisation of debt collection through adopting
a fair, proportionate and consistent approach taking personal circumstances into
account coupled with a firm and efficient process of escalation where appropriate.

2.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

2.1

To set out the general principles of debt management across all services provided by
the Council.

2.2

To seek payment in advance for a service being provided where possible and make it
easy for customers to pay.

2.3

To raise debt/invoices and collect those due to us in a timely manner.

2.4

To identify and assist those who face difficulties in paying at an early stage and to
actively encourage them to contact us to help to reduce the effect of debt.

2.5

To ensure that where customers can’t pay their debt that we consider their individual
circumstances and take action on a case-by-case basis.

2.6

To signpost potential debtors to advice agencies and other sources of supportand do
everything possible to encourage them to use them.

2.7

To have clarity in the enforcement action process and ensure that customers know
their obligations and potential consequences of not paying.

2.8

To recover and enforce debts in accordance with relevant legislation and guidance and
in a proportionate, consistent and fair manner.

3.

OUTCOMES OF THE POLICY

3.1

The outcomes expected from this Policy are to:
a.

ensure a consistent approach to the management of debts across the Council
and that appropriate action is taken depending on individual circumstances
and whether the customer can’t pay or is a deliberate non- payer;

b.

prevent debt where possible through excellent customer care andproviding
ongoing support where relevant;

c.

reduce debt that is owed to the Council;

d.

take timely, proportionate and consistent enforcement action wheredebtors
choose not to pay debts;

Page 69

Page 3 of 9

e.

set out provisions to assist customers where appropriate to make payment
agreements relevant to their individual circumstances;

f.

ensure individuals financial circumstances are considered on a case by
case basis before enforcement proceedings are commenced.

4.

DEBTS TO WHICH THIS POLICY APPLIES

4.1

This policy relates to all debts owed to the Council including (but not limited to):
a.

Council Tax

b.

on-Domestic Rates (Business Rates)

c.

Overpaid Housing Benefit

d.

Accounts Receivable (Sundry Debt Invoices)

e.

Commercial Income

f.

Rent including Ground rent and any other rents due to the Council

g.

Former Rent Arrears

h.

Recovery of enforcement costs and civil penalties, including works indefault

i.

Support charges

j.

Planning and Building Control fees

k.

Legal Fees / Court Costs

l.

Miscellaneous fees and charges

5.

PRIORITISING DEBTS

5.1

Where the Council is made aware that a debtor owes multiple debts to the Council and
unless the debtor advises to the contrary, debts will be considered in a priority order,
to avoid the customer losing their home, or going to prison for non-payment.

5.2

Where there is insufficient income available to clear all debts, payment will be
appropriated in the following order except in exceptional circumstances:
a.

Rent arrears.

b.

Council Tax Arrears.

c.

Business Rates.

d.

Sundry Income.

Where contact or payments are not made for sundry debts, we may suspend any
non-statutory services.
5.3

Customers who indicate that they have a problem with managing or paying their debts
will be signposted to seek debt advice from relevant agencies.

Page 70

Page 4 of 9

5.4

Priority Debts are those which, if not paid, could cause you to lose your home, fuel or
liberty. Most debts that you are likely to have with the Council would be classified
as Priority Debts.

5.5

You will always be given a warning before any action and will have the chance to
respond. Do so as soon as you can. You will usually be able to stop the loss of your
home or other essentials.

5.6

You should make arrangements to pay Priority Debts as soon as possible and make
arrangements to pay Priority Debts before making any offers to pay non-priority debts.

5.7

Non-priority debts may include:









bank overdraft;
money borrowed from family or friends;
store card;
interest free Hire Purchase agreements;
credit card;
mail order/catalogue;
unsecured personal loans; and
any other debt.

6.

SOCIAL INCLUSION - ABILITY TO PAY

6.1

There will generally be a presumption that any debts incurred should be payable in full
to the Council. Where an issue is identified there shall be an early assessment made
about whether a customer is unable to pay or is choosing not to pay and this shall be
determined on a case by case basis.

6.2

Where a customer chooses not to pay, appropriate and timely action shall be taken to
recover the debt using the enforcement options available.

6.3

Where an assessment has been made that a customer is not able to pay the debt, the
Council will consider aspects of a customer’s situation to establish the level of
vulnerability and the most appropriate course of action. This should seek to recover
the money owed whilst also seeking to avoid exacerbating the customers personal,
social and financial circumstances where possible.

6.4

The Council will have a flexible approach to identifying vulnerability that is able to
respond to the issues presented by individual customers.

6.5

Vulnerability doesn’t mean that the Council will not collect the debt, but it will have
particular regard to:







how vulnerability affects a customer’s ability to pay;
if additional help is needed e.g., support to apply for benefits;
signposting or referral to help and advice;
offering flexible or lower payment plans whilst help and advice is sought;
the method of recovery action that may be used if it becomes necessary to do
so;
allowing extra time to seek advice and support by postponing recovery action if
necessary.

Page 71

Page 5 of 9

7.

ENFORCEMENT ACTION THAT CAN BE TAKEN

7.1

It is recognised that people do not pay their Council bills in a timely way for a variety
of reasons; where appropriate, recovery action will be taken which will:
a.

be proportional – we will strike a balance between the potential loss of income
to the Council and the costs of taking a course of action;

b.

be consistent – with the aim of achieving consistency in the advice we give,
the use of our powers and in the recovery procedures we use;

c.

be transparent – to help customers to understand what is expected of them
and to explain the reasons for taking any recovery/enforcement action.

7.1

We will always seek to make realistic arrangements for customers to clear outstanding
debts by regular payments wherever possible. The arrangement will seek to recover
all monies within the financial year in question. An early review date of the arrangement
will be agreed to review the situation if this is deemed necessary.

7.2

Where arrangements are made with customers there will be an expectation of them
maintaining contact with the Council and proactively advising of any unexpected
situations that will prevent them from meeting their agreed repayments. The Council
reserves the right to reinstitute alternative recovery and enforcement proceedings
should customers fail to satisfactorily meet their obligations in this regard.

7.3

Any reminders we issue will convey a willingness to discuss matters with customers
and encourage them to make contact if they cannot pay as advised. They will also
make the customer aware of the consequences of failing to pay or keeping to
arrangements.

7.4

If a customer fails to make contact or maintain arrangements, we have a duty to collect
what is due and will use all legal means available to recover debts. This includes:
a.

attachment of earnings;

b.

deduction from benefits;

c.

enforcement agent action;

d.

debt collection action;

e.

possession proceedings;

f.

county court proceedings;

g.

charging orders;

h.

Insolvency proceedings including bankruptcy and winding up;

i.

committal to prison proceedings;

j.

direct earnings attachment;

Page 72

Page 6 of 9

7.5

Some of these methods of recovery may incur additional costs that will needto be
passed on to the debtor. Whilst we will seek to recover monies duewithin the
financial year in question, in cases of genuine financial hardship, this may be
unrealistic and therefore the Council will negotiate repayment levels that take into
account individual financial circumstances and accept that for appropriate cases
payment arrangements may fall into the next financial year.

7.6

The table below shows the ultimate recovery action that may be taken:
Priority

1

2

3

8.

Debt Type
Rent
Arrears
Mortgage
arrears
Council
Tax
Business
Rates
Sundry
Debts

Possible Action
Notice Seeking Possession;Direct
Deductions; Possession Proceedings;
County Court Judgement

Ultimate
Recovery Action
Eviction
Repossession
and Eviction

Summons to Court; Liability Order;
Attachment of Benefits/Earnings
Enforcement Agents

Imprisonment
Bankruptcy
Charging Order

County Court Judgment
Attachment of earnings/benefits
Charging order
Direct earnings attachment
Warrant

County Court
Judgements,
Bankruptcy

ALTERNATIVE ACTION TO ENFORCEMENT ACTION
Payment Plans:

8.1

Customers are encouraged to contact us at the earliest opportunity to discuss payment
of their debt. The Council can then consider the customers circumstances with an aim
to agreeing a payment plan that avoids further recovery action being taken.

8.2

Customers will be required to fully co-operate with us and provide information when
requested and to seek debt advice if signposted to do so.

8.3

When considering payment plans the following will be taken into account:


Full payment will always be requested. However, if full payment is not possible a
payment plan may be agreed, in most cases the debt should be fully paid up
before the end of the financial year to which it relates.



Payment plans that go beyond the end of the financial year will only be made in
exceptional circumstances, eg, if the customer is vulnerable and an assessment
of the customer’s ability to pay has been undertaken by a debt advice agency or
an officer using a Standard Financial Statement (SFS) provided by the Money
Advice Service.



Payment plans should start with an initial payment being made within one month
of the date of the agreement.



Payment plans may be conditional ie, the customer will be expected to seek debt
advice and provide evidence of this upon request.

Page 73

Page 7 of 9



Payment plans will be reviewed regularly (ie, every 3,6,12 months) with an
expectation that the customer is able to increase their payments as their personal
circumstances improve.



Payment plans will not automatically prevent us from taking further recovery
action to secure the ongoing recovery of the debt or prevent us from adding costs
ie to obtain a Liability Order or CCJ.



Payment plans may be refused if we are likely to obtain a higher repaymentfrom
an attachment of earnings or benefits.



Payment plans may be refused if we have reason to believe that it will not be
adhered to, ie the customer has a history of failed payment plans, the payment
plan is unrealistic and will not clear the debt in a reasonable time.



Payment plans may be refused if the customer has sufficient assets which could
be used to pay the debt, but the customer is unwilling to do so ie, savings or
investments.



Payment plans will usually be confirmed in writing so that the customer clearly
understands, how much to pay, when payment is due, how to pay, the review
date, and if there are any conditions attached.



The customer is responsible for making their payments on time, reminders will
not be issued.



If the customer has an unexpected change of circumstances and can’t make a
payment on time, they should contact us immediately to explain the reason why.
We will consider the customer’s circumstances and may review or cancel the
payment plan depending on; the reason, previous payment history, the amount
of debt owed, any conditions attached being met.



In the event of failure to pay, the payment plan will be cancelled, and recovery
action will commence or continue as previously notified without any further notice.

9.

OMISSION, EVASION AND FRAUD

9.1

Occasionally customers do not tell us about a change in their circumstances promptly
i.e., an omission eg another adult moves into a taxpayer’s property that removes the
single person discount for council tax. In such cases the Council will backdate the
change to the actual date of the change which can increase the amount of a debt or
create a new debt. The Council will consider how we recover the debt having regard
to the individual’scircumstances and why the omission occurred.

9.2

Evasion of payment and fraud reduces the financial resources available to the Council
and has a direct impact on all residents and businesses that rely on us for their
services. Evasion and fraud will not be tolerated and where identified the Council will
take robust enforcement action to recover the debt as quickly as possible and may
seek to impose further penalties or sanctions as the law allows.

9.3

If a customer vacates and doesn’t provide us with a forwarding address the Council
will try to trace them which may include the use of external specialist tracing agencies.
If we are not able to trace debtors, we will continue to take recovery action by issuing
documents to their last known address.

Page 74

Page 8 of 9

10.

REVIEW AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

10.1

The Council will follow best practice when recovering debt and have regard to good
practice guidance issued by central government and other recognised organisations,
e.g., Charted Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, Institute of Revenues,
Rating and Valuation, Ministry of Justice, Local Government Ombudsman.

10.2

The Policy may be reviewed from time to time and refreshed as appropriate. Minor
changes will be approved by the relevant Director of Resources.

11.

MEASURING PERFORMANCE

11.1

The Council aims to collect debts in a timely and efficient manner, this is essential to
enable us to deliver services to residents and businesses. We will measure our
performance using performance indicators. Key performance indicators are reported
to Committee regularly and published on our website.

11.2

Collection rates and levels of debt will be reported to members regularly.

12.

COMPLAINTS, DISPUTES, MISTAKES AND FEEDBACK

12.1

We recognise that mistakes in the billing, collection and recovery of debts cancause
distress to customers and our aim is to get it right first time. If a genuine mistake is
made and brought to our attention, we will put it right and apologise.We will look at our
processes to see if we can prevent the same mistake happening again.

12.2

Disputes raised by customers about matters covered in this Policy will be investigated
and responded to by a senior officer.

12.3

Complaints raised by customers about matters covered in this Policy will be dealt with
in accordance with the Councils Corporate Complaints Policy.

13.

PROVISION FOR WRITE-OFF

13.1

Every effort will be made to collect debts, however in some circumstances it may be
necessary to write off a debt if it becomes irrecoverable, e.g., the debtor is made
bankrupt or small balances that are uneconomical to pursue.

13.2

Our Financial Standing Orders make provision for the Section 151 Officer to write off
debts to a specified level, debts above this level require approval by Policy and Finance
Committee. A report detailing such debts is taken to Policy and Finance Committee
regularly.

14.

WITHDRAWING SERVICES

14.1

Non statutory services may be withdrawn completely from a nonpayer unless there are
extenuating circumstances.

15.

DATA PROTECTION

15.1

The Council will comply with the General Data Protection Regulations; further details
are available on our website.

Page 75

Page 9 of 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item 10
DECISION
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

18 JANUARY 2022
LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
JANE PEARSON

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To update Committee on the consultation exercise that has been conducted regarding
changes proposed to our Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) for 2022/23.

1.2

To consider next steps with regard to potential changes to our scheme in time for the
2022/23 financial year.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) replaced Council Tax Benefit in 2013/14. Council
Tax Benefit was fully funded by the Government – the Council received 100% subsidy
to compensate us for paying out Council Tax Benefit.

2.2

LCTS however is not paid as a benefit but instead is a discount on an individual’s
council tax bill. The Government replaced the subsidy with a grant payable to councils
for the cost of LCTS. Crucially they reduced the amount from 100% to 90% and
Councils were faced with either absorbing this reduction in funding on their general
fund or meeting this from either reductions in council tax support or elsewhere within
the council tax system. Importantly after the first year this “grant” was rolled-in to grant
settlements and funding was reduced significantly.

2.3

For Ribble Valley (just prior to the start of the scheme) we paid out Council Tax Benefit
of £2.278m. The Government grant was set at 90% leaving a shortfall of around
£228,000. It is important to note this represents the amount to be borne overall by all
preceptors - Ribble Valley’s share of this being around 9% at the time.

2.4

Councils were required to design their own LCTS scheme and had to consult with their
residents (not just claimants) and also the major preceptors regarding their proposals.
At the start of the scheme we proposed to use £120k of council tax income raised on
second homes (by reducing the discount on second homes from 50% to 10%) to
partially offset this shortfall and proposed the balance would be met by reducing an
individual’s LCTS by applying a 12% reduction to working age claimants.

2.5

We used an external consultancy service shared with other local authorities to carry
out the consultation.

2.6

We were about to propose a 12% reduction to members when late in the day the
Government offered a one off transition grant if councils capped their reduction at
8.5%. We took up this offer and for the first year (2013/14) our reduction was 8.5%
and thereafter raised to 12%. Pensioners were protected from any reduction in
support.

2.7

The following are useful documents which provide detailed information:


The original report when the Council agreed our scheme back in 2012
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/3792/localisation_of_c
ouncil_tax_support



A link to a House of Commons Briefing paper produced in August 2020 which
is very informative Council Tax Reduction Schemes - House of Commons
Library (parliament.uk)

Page 77

3

ISSUES

3.1

Across Lancashire you will see there are varying levels of reductions. Lancaster and
recently Chorley being the only councils in Lancashire not to reduce the level of support
at all. Most are around 20%. In the current financial year 2021/22, Ribble Valley has
the 5th lowest % reduction with Lancaster, Chorley, South Ribble (for those not in work)
and Wyre with lower % reductions.
Lancashire Council
Blackburn
Blackpool
Burnley
Chorley
Fylde
Hyndburn
Lancaster
Pendle
Preston
Ribble Valley
Rossendale
South Ribble
West Lancs
Wyre

3.2

LCTS Reduction 2021/22
20%
27.11% but protected groups 13.56%
15%
0%
22.7%
30%
0%
20%
20%
12%
20%
£3.50 per week (equivalent to approximately
20%) in work and 0% non-working
22%
8.5%

We used to have to review and propose our scheme for the forthcoming year to Full
Council by the end of January each year, however following a review in 2016 this has
changed to March 11 each year. This is now aligned to the deadline for setting our
Budget and Council Tax.
COVID – Local Council Tax Hardship Fund

3.3

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Government introduced further support for
recipients of working age local Council Tax Support during the financial year 2020/21
by way of a further reduction in their annual Council Tax bill of up to £150. Ribble
Valley was awarded £222k. We gave grants to 1,849 recipients totalling slightly more
than the Government’s allocation by the end of 2021/22.

3.4

Exceptions to the £150 relief being where a taxpayer’s liability for 2020/21 is, following
the application of Council Tax Support, less than £150, then their liability was reduced
to nil. Where a taxpayer’s liability for 2020/21 is nil, obviously no further reduction to
the Council Tax bill was available.

3.5

For 2021/22 the Government announced £670m of Local Council Tax Support Grants.
This is unringfenced funding that has been provided to authorities in recognition of the
increased costs of providing local council tax support following the pandemic the
impact of which is reductions in the tax base.
Local Council Tax Support Grant share of £670m 2021/22
Ribble Valley share
£40,042
LCC share
£316,465
Police share
£47,787
Fire share
£16,014
£420,308

3.6

During the budget setting debate for the current year it was asked whether the £150
relief should be continued funded from the Council’s share of the £670m grant. This

Page 78

would not be possible given Ribble Valley’s share only amounted to £40k. However it
was felt that consideration should instead be focussed on the removal of the 12%
reduction in support to working age claimants going forward. It was agreed to refer
further consideration of the LCTS to the Budget Working Group early in the 2021/22
financial year.
4

COST OF LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT

4.1

Our current cost of LCTS is shown in below

cost of support to working age
claimants
cost of support to pensioners

Aug-21

Jun-21

May-21

Oct-20

1,088,985

1,129,839

1,073,434
2,162,419

1,085,492 1,089,632. 1,062,227 1,033,767
2,215,332 2,259,699. 2,178,726 1,881,968

1,170,067 1,101,594

Oct-19
815,842

Increase since Oct 19
cost of support to working age
claimants
cost of support to pensioners
extra cost in LCTS since Oct
19
4.2

33%

273,142

4%

39,666
312,809

For illustration purposes the table below shows cost of eliminating the 12% reduction
in support as borne by each preceptor.

As at 10/8/21

Has been
reduced by
12%

Cost at
10/08/2021
cost of support to working age
claimants
cost of support to pensioners

148,498

1,088,985
1,073,434
2,162,419

Share of reduction based on overall share of 2021/22
Council Tax
Ribble Valley BC
155.69
Parishes
20.98
Lancashire County Council
1,456.19
Fire
72.27
Police and Crime Commissioner
226.45
1,931.58

8.1%
1.1%
75.4%
3.7%
11.7%
100.0%

Without
Reduction
full cost
would
therefore
be
1,237,483

11,969
1,613
111,950
5,556
17,409
148,498

5

NEXT STEPS

5.1

The Budget Working Group considered the LCTS scheme at their meeting on 18
August and recommend that Policy and Finance agree to consult on a change to the
scheme specifically the removal of the 12% reduction in support to working age
claimants.

Page 79

5.2

On 14 September 2021 Policy and Finance Committee agreed to consult on the
removal of the 12% reduction in support to working age claimants.

5.3

A consultation exercise ran from 25th October 2021 to 5th December 2021 and an online
survey was set up with paper copies available on request.

5.4

Letters are sent to all major preceptors (Lancashire County Council, Lancashire Police
and Crime Commissioner and Lancashire Combined Fire Authority) on 25 October
2021.

6

RESULT OF CONSULTATION EXERCISE

6.1

All the major preceptors raised concerns about the proposed change and the impact
that it would have on the income that they receive.

6.2

The online survey (Appendix 1) had 58 responses and overwhelmingly 91% agreed
that the Council should remove the 12% reduction applied to LCTS for working age
claimants to bring them into line with pensioner age claimants.

7

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

7.1

Agree that we alter our LCTS Scheme for 2022/23 and remove the 12% reduction
applied to working age claimants to bring them into line with pensioner age claimants.

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
6 JANUARY 2022

Page 80

RIBBLE VALLEY
BOROUGH COUNCIL
Local Council Tax Scheme (LCTS)
Consultation

REPORT

MICHELLE HAWORTH

DECEMBER 2021

Page 81

Methodology
The Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) Survey was set up online with paper copies
available upon request.
The link to the survey was published on the Council’s website and publicised through press
releases, social media and by letters sent to the main preceptors on 25th October 2021 and
the survey closed on 5 December 2021.
In total 58 responses were received.

The Results
Q1 – Are you responding to this consultation as a:…?
58 people responded to this question. 79% replied that they were responding as a Council
Tax payer, 10% as Other, 7% replied that they were a Councillor or Parish Councillor and
3% represented a Community Group or Organisation.

Q2 – Are you in receipt of Local Council Tax support?
Question two asked whether the respondee was in receipt of Local Council Tax support.
Only 5% replied yes.

Page 82

.
Q3 – Which age group do you belong to?
50% of the people who responded to this question were aged 51-65 and 34% were 65+.
Surprisingly there was no response from the 18-30 age group.

Q4 – Are you…?
53% of the people who replied were female and 43% male.

Page 83

Q5 – Do you agree that the Council should remove the 12% reduction applied to LCTS
for working age claimants to bring them in line with pensioner age claimants?
Overwhelmingly 91% agreed that the Council should remove the 12% reduction applied to
LCTS for working age claimants to bring them in line with pensioner age claimants. Only 9%
disagreed.

Q6 – Do you have any additional comments to make?
13 people replied with further comments. These can be found below.
This is laudable and progressive move to make in the current economic environment and I
commend the Council for its community minded approach.
I support the proposal on the grounds it will help the lowest income households in our area
and it makes economic sense.
I support the proposal on the grounds it will help low income households in the area facing
financial hardship.
It will help the lowest income households in our area and makes economic sense.
Any reduction or financial support makes an enormous difference to those on low
incomes.
It's vital we support our lowest level income households in any way we can.
With the increase in fuel costs & the increased cost of living as a result of Covid & the UK
leaving the EU it is vital that we increase council tax subsidies given to those on low
incomes.

Page 84

I find this survey very confusing in that it contains double and triple negatives and the
explanation at the beginning didn't help me clarify. I have had to have clarification before
completing it.
I have already completed this survey in error for the Ribble Valley Gateway Trust - the
answer we meant to say was yes the council should remove the reduction. The question
is, in my opinion, very confusingly phrased.
The situation has got worse for the poorest for a variety of reasons and this will help
This question is not clear. I believe that RVBC should ensure that people on low incomes
or in financial difficulty should be given a reduction in council tax to help ensure that they
can afford their council tax.
Confusing wording. It reads like you are removing eligibility for a reduction. Maybe best to
say that rather than giving a set 12% reduction, people of working age and pensionable
age will be assessed the same way on income and eligible for a reduction of up to 100%?
It is not clear if some people will then get less than a 12% reduction. This needs to be
clear.
Thank you for consulting with me.

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
DECISION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

TUESDAY, 18 JANUARY 2022
COVID 19 ADDITIONAL RELIEF FUND
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
MARK EDMONDSON, HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To update Committee about the Covid 19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) that was
announced by the Chancellor on 21 December 2021.

1.2

To decide on the next steps regarding agreeing a local scheme.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Liability for Business Rates is based upon the rateable value of the property. Rateable
Values are set by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) and appear in the Business Rates
Valuation List.

2.2

Rateable Values are updated at revaluations – the most recent being 2017 when they
were based on the rental market on 1 April 2015. The next revaluation is planned for
1 April 2023 with a valuation date of 1 April 2021.

2.3

The revaluations ensure that rateable values reflect changes in economic factors,
market conditions or changes in the general level of rents.

2.4

Between revaluations rateable values can only be changed to reflect ‘material changes
of circumstances’ including, for example, physical changes to the property or locality.

2.5

Since the start of the pandemic the VOA have received many checks arguing that
interventions concerning the use of property (such as requirements to close
businesses or maintain social distancing to comply with health and safety legislation)
are a material change of circumstances. If successful, there would be a major impact
on the level of rateable values across a wide range of properties.

2.6

The Government did not believe that the challenges to rateable values and the removal
of properties from the rating list was the right mechanism to help businesses that
needed support in the pandemic. On 25 March 2021 the Government announced that
they would introduce primary legislation with retrospective effect to clarify that
Coronavirus and the Government’s response to it are not an appropriate use of the
material change of circumstances provision.

2.7

The Government introduced the Rating (Coronavirus) and Directors Disqualification
(Dissolved Companies) Bill to give effect to their position and it received Royal assent
on 15 December 2021.

2.8

On 25 March 2021 the Government announced a new Covid 19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF) of £1.5 billion. The fund is intended to be available to support businesses
affected by the pandemic that are ineligible for the existing support linked to business
rates, i.e., Small Business Rates Relief, Expand Retail Discount and Nursery Discount.

Page 87

2.9

On 15 December 2021 the Government issued guidance to local authorities (Appendix
1) detailing how the scheme should operate and how much each authority has been
allocated. Ribble Valley Borough Council’s allocation totals £1,239,191.

3

ISSUES

3.1

The guidance states that billing authorities are responsible for designing a
discretionary relief scheme in their area, however they must not award relief to
ratepayers who have received Expanded Retail Discount or Nursery Discount, are
liable for unoccupied properties (except where they are temporarily closed due to
Government advice on Covid 19) and should direct support towards ratepayers who
have been adversely affected by the pandemic and have been unable to adequately
adapt to the impact.

3.2

The relief will be granted using powers contained in Section 47(8A) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988 which prevents awards to certain precepting authorities
and prevents awards being made more than 6 months after the financial year that they
relate to i.e., awards cannot now be made in respect of 2020/21.

3.3

It is for local authorities to determine how much relief shall be awarded to each eligible
business subject to subsidy control rules detailed in the guidance.

3.4

The funding is limited to the allocation referred to at 2.9 and detailed in Appendix 1.

3.5

A meeting is due to take place on Tuesday 11 January 2022, of Lancashire Revenues
Managers, to discuss the issues regarding this scheme and how best to implement it
in each area.

4

SUGGESTED APPROACH

4.1

It is difficult to estimate the level of demand from businesses in this area and therefore
it would be prudent to invite applications from businesses that meet the eligibility
criteria for an initial set period e.g., up to 28 February 2022, and then determine the
level of relief to award to each category of property based on the applications received.

5

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

5.1

Endorse the suggested approach and invite applications from businesses who meet
the eligibility criteria set out in the guidance at Appendix 1, with the view to another
report coming to your next meeting to determine the level of relief to be awarded.

MARK EDMONDSON
HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS

JANE PEARSON
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

For further information please ask for Mark Edmondson, extension 4504.

Page 88

COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF): Local Authority Guidance

December 2021
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

Page 89

© Crown copyright, 2021
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.
You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium,
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence visit
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dluhc
If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at:
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London
SW1P 4DF
Telephone: 030 3444 0000
For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/luhc
December 2021

Page 90

Contents
About this guidance .................................................................................................... 4
Introduction ................................................................................................................ 4
The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) .......................................................... 5
How will the relief be provided? .............................................................................. 5
Which properties will benefit from relief? ................................................................ 6
How much relief will be available? .......................................................................... 6
Recalculation of relief ............................................................................................. 7
Subsidy Control ...................................................................................................... 7
Sample paragraph to include in CARF applications. .......................................... 9
New Burdens ........................................................................................................ 10
Annexes A-F: CARF Allocation methodology, categories and definitions ............. 11
Annex A: COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allocation methodology .................... 11
Annex B: Split of the Transport and Storage SIC1 Category ................................ 14
Annex C: Mapping of SIC to Special Category Code............................................ 15
Annex D: Definition of Retail, Hospitality and Leisure properties .......................... 29
Annex E: Definition of airports .............................................................................. 33
Annex F: Definition of network supplying utilities and associated properties ........ 34

Page 91

About this guidance
1. This guidance is intended to support local authorities in
administering the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF). This guidance
applies to England only.
2. This guidance sets out the scope of CARF and the criteria which local
authorities should have regard to when determining awards from the
fund. The guidance does not replace existing legislation.
3. Enquiries on this measure should be addressed to: ndr@communities.gov.uk

Introduction
4. COVID-19 has presented a significant and unprecedented challenge for
businesses. Since the start of the pandemic the Government’s response to
support businesses has been of a similarly unprecedented scale. The
Government has provided over £400 billion of direct support to the economy
during this financial year and last, which has helped to safeguard jobs,
businesses and public services in every region and nation of the UK through
the pandemic. The Government’s support has included making £16 billion
available to provide business rates relief for retail, hospitality and leisure
properties, given the direct impact of COVID-19 and the Government’s
interventions on businesses in these sectors.
5. On 25 March the Government announced a new COVID-19 Additional Relief
Fund (CARF) of £1.5 billion. The fund will be available to support
those businesses affected by the pandemic but that are ineligible for existing
support linked to business rates.
6. The £1.5 billion will be allocated to local authorities based upon the estimated
rateable value in each local authority rating list which falls within the scope of
the fund, weighted for the Gross Value Added (GVA) impacts of COVID-19
per sector. An explanation of the allocation methodology, categories and
definitions is at Annex A to F. Individual local authority allocations are
published alongside this guidance.
7. This document provides guidance to authorities about the operation and
delivery of the policy.

Page 92

The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
(CARF)
How will the relief be provided?
8. The Government is not changing the legislation relating to the business rates
reliefs available to properties. Instead, the Government will, in line
with the eligibility criteria set out in this guidance, reimburse local
authorities where relief is granted using discretionary relief powers under
section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988. It will be for individual
billing authorities to adopt a local scheme and determine in each individual
case whether, having regard to this guidance and their own local scheme, to
grant relief under section 47. The relief is available to reduce chargeable
amounts in respect of 2021/22.
9. Central government will fully reimburse local authorities for discretionary
relief awards which comply with this guidance up to the maximum level of the
allocations. Because billing authorities have completed their NNDR1s for
2021/22 already, payments to major precepting authorities will be unaffected
by the award of the relief. Therefore, within the year billing authorities only will
be provided with “on account” section 31 payments covering the full amount of
relief awarded to ensure that their cashflow is not
affected.
10. After the end of the year, billing authorities will also be asked to provide
outturn data on the actual total cost of providing the relief via the NNDR3
forms for 2021/22. The loss of income resulting from the relief for each billing
authority and major precepting authority will be reconciled against the onaccount payments made over the course of the year and any difference will
be paid or recovered.
11. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities will undertake a
regular DELTA collection exercise. This will be used to monitor
implementation progress. Authorities should therefore ensure they put in
place arrangements to support this data collection process. Billing authorities
should ensure that they are able to monitor and report the take-up of the
scheme at Parliamentary constituency level and local authority level, and by
the Special Category code of the hereditaments.

Page 93

Which properties will benefit from relief?
12. Billing authorities will be responsible for designing the discretionary relief
schemes that are to operate in their areas. However, in developing and
implementing their schemes local authorities must, if they are funding the
relief from the section 31 grant:
a. not award relief to ratepayers who for the same period of the relief
either are or would have been eligible for the Extended Retail Discount
(covering Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the
Airport and Ground Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS),
b. not award relief to a hereditament for a period when it is unoccupied
(other than hereditaments which have become closed temporarily due
to the government’s advice on COVID-19, which should be treated as
occupied for the purposes of this relief), and
c. direct their support towards ratepayers who have been adversely
affected by the pandemic and have been unable to adequately adapt to
that impact.
13. In line with the legal restrictions in section 47(8A) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988, billing authorities may not grant the discount to
themselves, certain precepting authorities (e.g. a parish or county council) or
a functional body, within the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act
1999.

How much relief will be available?
14. It will be for local authorities to determine the level of relief for individual
hereditaments.
15. The relief should be applied after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary
reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied, excluding those where
billing authorities have provided relief using their wider discretionary relief
powers introduced by the Localism Act 2011 which are not funded by section
31 grants. As required in the NNDR3 guidance notes, the former categories of
discretionary relief prior to the Localism Act should be applied first in the
sequence of discretionary reliefs and, therefore, before any relief provided
under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF). Billing authorities may
wish to use their discretionary powers to offer further discounts outside this
scheme. However, where an authority applies a locally funded relief, this must
be applied after CARF.

Page 94

Recalculation of relief
16. Depending upon how local authorities choose to award CARF, the amount of
relief awarded may need to be recalculated in the event of a change of
circumstances. This could include, for example, a backdated change to the
rateable value or the hereditament. This change of circumstances could arise
during the year in question or during a later year.
17. Under regulations made under section 47 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 authorities must give at least 12 months’ notice of a revocation or
variation of a rate relief scheme the effect of which would be to increase rate
bills (other than to comply with any international agreement). Such a
revocation or variation can only take effect at the end of a financial year but,
within these regulations, local authorities may still make decisions which are
conditional upon eligibility criteria. If a change in circumstances renders a
property ineligible or reduces the value of the award, the relevant bill can be
amended in the year to reflect the loss of the relief.
18. Therefore, when making an award for CARF, local authorities should ensure
in the conditions of the award that the relief are subject to the property’s
continuing eligibility.

Subsidy Control
Trade and Co-operation Agreement
19. Providing discretionary relief to ratepayers is likely to amount to a subsidy.
Any relief provided by Local Authorities under the CARF Scheme will need to
comply with the UK’s domestic and international subsidy control obligations
(see the BEIS guidance for public authorities which explains the subsidies
chapter of the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA), World Trade
Organisation rules on subsidies, and other international subsidy control
commitments).
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance
20. To the extent that a Local Authority is seeking to provide relief that falls within
the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance, Article 364 of the TCA
allows an economic actor (e.g. a holding company and its subsidiaries) to
receive up to 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (£343,000 as at 9 December
2021) in a three-year period (consisting of the current financial year and the
two previous financial years). To administer a subsidy under the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance it is necessary for the Local
Authority to establish that the award of subsidy will not result in the economic
actor having received more than £343,000 of subsidy under the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance.

Page 95

The COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance
21. Where the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance has been
reached, additional relief may be awarded in compliance with the principles
set out in Article 366 of the TCA and in compliance with Article 364.3 of the
TCA. For the purposes of this scheme, the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund
Allowance, permits an economic actor to receive additional relief of up to a
further £1,900,000 for COVID-19 related losses.
22. This may be combined with the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance
Allowance to permit an economic actor to receive up to £2,243,000 from the
CARF Scheme (or less if they have already used some of their Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance limit or claimed other COVID-19 related
subsidies). It should be noted that Extended Retail Discount granted in either
2020/21 or 2021/22 does not count towards these allowances, but BEIS
business grants (throughout the 3 years) and any other subsidies claimed
under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance limit (such as the Retail
Relief in 2019/20), or under the EU State aid de minimis limit, in the last three
years, should be counted.
COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance
23. If an economic actor has reached the £2,243,000 limit set out above, then it
may still be able to receive up to a further £10 million as a COVID-19
Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance under the CARF Scheme, if it
satisfies the following conditions:
a. the relief relates to uncovered fixed costs (i.e. costs not covered by
profits or insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19 (commencing 1
March 2020). An economic actor may benefit from relief up to 70% of
their uncovered costs (although this 70% limit does not apply to small
businesses with fewer than 50 employees and less than £9 million
turnover where the limit is instead 90%), and
b. the enterprise has shown a decline in turnover during the eligible
period of at least 30% compared to the same period in 2019.
24. Therefore, local authorities will wish to ask ratepayers, on a self-assessment
basis, to inform the authority if they are in breach of the above
allowances. Where authorities are delivering CARF via applications then this
declaration can be requested as part of the application process – sample
paragraphs for which are below. As part of awarding the relief, local
authorities should ask businesses to keep necessary documentation to
evidence this.

Page 96

Transparency
25. Local Authorities must also ensure the transparency obligations under Article
369 of the TCA are complied with. The transparency database can be found
at https://manageuksubsidies.beis.gov.uk/
26. If the relief is awarded under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance

Allowance, LAs must ask the recipient whether, when cumulated with any de
minimis EU State Aid or Small Amounts of Financial Assistance under the
TCA that the business has received in the last three years, the relief will mean
that the recipient has received more than 325,000 Special Drawing Rights
(approximately £343,000 as at 9 December). If it has, then the relief must be
declared on the BEIS transparency database within six months of it being
awarded.

27. If the relief is awarded under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allowance,
Local Authorities must ask the recipient whether, when cumulated with any
other support received under the allowances, the recipient has received more
than £500,000. If it has, then the relief must be declared on the BEIS
transparency database within six months of it being made. Awards made
under the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Further Allowance, which by their
nature will be in excess of £500,000, must also be declared on the BEIS
transparency database within six months of it being made.
28. For access to and any further questions on the database, please contact the
BEIS subsidy control team at subsidycontrol@beis.gov.uk.
29. Where Local Authorities have further questions about subsidy control or any
of the above allowance and obligations, they should seek advice from their
legal department in the first instance.

Sample paragraph to include in CARF applications.
The CARF scheme is subject to the subsidies chapter within the UK-EU Trade
and Cooperation Agreement (TCA). However, for CARF there is an
exemption for subsidies under the value of approximately £2,243,000 per
economic actor (broadly speaking, for example, a holding company and its
subsidiaries). This allowance comprises 325,000 Special Drawing Rights (at
current exchange rates about £343,000) for Small Amounts of Financial
Assistance and a further £1,900,000 for COVID-19 related subsidy.
Therefore, to be awarded CARF you must not have claimed over the period
2019/20 to 2021/22 more than £2,243,000 from schemes which fell within the
Small Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related allowances.
COVID-19 business grants you have received from local government and the

Page 97

2019/20 Retail Relief should count towards this limit, but you should not count
any Extended Retail Discount you have received since 1 April 2020. Further
details of subsidy control can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-additional-relief-fundcarf-local-authority-guidance
In your application for CARF you must indicate:
if you have not to date received any subsidy which fell within the Small
Amounts of Financial Assistance or COVID-19 related
allowances, confirm this in your application, or
if you have received other such subsidies, then you should provide the
name and total value of those subsidies.
You must not apply for CARF using this form if you have already exceeded
the £2,243,000 allowance. However, we will still consider applications for
support under the CARF scheme if you have reached this limit provided you
can evidence that you:
Intend to use the support to fund uncovered fixed costs (costs not
covered by profits for insurance etc) during the period of COVID-19.
Economic actors may claim for up to 70% of their uncovered costs
(although this 70% limit does not apply to small businesses with less
than 50 employees and less than £9 million turnover where the limit
is instead 90%), and
have shown a decline in turnover of at least 30% within the April 2020
to March 2021 period, compared to the same 2019 to 2020 period.
You may claim up to a further £10 million of additional allowance (on top of
the £2,243,000) if you meet the above tests and you have not claimed any
other support from the additional allowance up to an aggregate £10 million
limit (such as from the COVID-19 business grants).
The Government and [name of local authority] will not tolerate any business
falsifying their records or providing false evidence to gain this discount,
including claiming support above these thresholds. A ratepayer who falsely
applies for any relief, or provides false information or makes false
representation in order to gain relief may be guilty of fraud under the Fraud
Act 2006.
New Burdens
30. The Government recognises that the implementation of this policy will
place an additional burden on local authorities. In accordance with the New
Burdens doctrine the Government will conduct an assessment of the
expected reasonable additional costs associated with the implementation of
the policy, working closely with local government in doing so.

Page 98

Annexes A-F: CARF Allocation methodology, categories
and definitions
Annex A: COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund Allocation
methodology
Introduction
1.

This document sets out the methodology used to calculate each English local
authority’s allocation of the £1.5bn COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund. Allocations will
be paid to the authorities responsible for billing business ratepayers, known as billing
authorities, which includes Shire Districts, Unitary Authorities, Metropolitan Districts
and London Boroughs.

Proxy for impact of COVID-19
2.

The allocation methodology uses the change in Gross Value Added (GVA) as a proxy
for the economic impacts of COVID-19 on each business sector. The GVA data used
is available here:

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/datasets/monthlygr
ossdomesticproductbygrossvalueadded
3.

The calculation uses the change in GVA compared to Feb-20 for the period April 2020
to March 2021. This data is split by business sector according to the first level
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC), apart from in two cases:
a. Category H (Transport and Storage) has been split into two separate
categories, given the large variance in Covid-19 impact between the transport
and storage sectors. Details of this split are provided in Annex B.
b. Category X is used where a property type doesn’t fit into a specific business
sector (e.g. Offices) but the most common uses are likely fall into SIC
categories J, K, L, M or N.

4.

The allocation method uses the average of the twelve datapoints. Each month
compared to Feb-20 is weighted equally. This data is for the United Kingdom.

SIC
Code
A
B

Definition
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Page 99

Average GVA
Reduction
-13%
-8%

C
D
E
F
G
I
J
K
L
M
N
O
P
Q
R
S

Manufacturing
Energy
Water and Waste Management
Construction
Wholesale and Retail
Hospitality
Information and Communication
Financial Services
Real Estate Activities
Professional Services
Administrative Services
Public administration
Education
Health
Arts, Entertainment and Recreation
Other Services
J-N: Information, Communication, Financial
X
Intermediation, Real Estate and Business Services
Y
Transport
Z
Storage and Distribution
Table 1: Average GVA reduction by SIC category

-9%
-1%
0%
-14%
-8%
-55%
-6%
-2%
-2%
-7%
-21%
1%
-20%
-10%
-34%
-32%
-6%
-32%
-1%

Property stock and COVID-19 impact
5.

For each local authority’s allocation, we use information on the property stock in that
area. We use the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) Ratings List as at October 2021.

6.

The VOA data contains information about the rateable value (RV), location and type of
property for all properties liable for business rates. The type of property is determined
by its Special Category Code, or SCat code.

7.

To account for the differing severity of Covid-19 impacts on sectors, we weight the RV
of each hereditament by GVA impact. In order to do this, we have worked with the
VOA to develop a mapping from SCat codes to SIC codes. This is shown in Annex C.

Calculation of allocation
8.

An authority’s allocation is calculated by summing RV in each SIC category and
weighting it by GVA change. We then sum across each sector to get an authority’s
total GVA-weighted RV. Each authority’s share of the total GVA-weighted RV in
England is applied to the £1.5bn funds available to calculate their allocation. This can
alternatively be represented as:

(1)

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗
= 𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝐺𝑖𝑖 ∗ 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗

(2)

𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤

𝑛𝑛

𝑤𝑤
= � 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑖𝑖,𝑗𝑗
𝑖𝑖=1

Calculate GVA-weighted RV change for sector
𝑖𝑖 and authority 𝑗𝑗.
Calculate sum of GVA-weighted RV for all
sectors 𝑖𝑖 = 1 𝑡𝑡𝑡𝑡 𝑛𝑛, where 𝑛𝑛 is the number of
sectors.

Page 100

(3)

(4)

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸

𝑚𝑚

Calculate sum of GVA-weighted RV for all
authorities 𝑗𝑗 = 1 𝑡𝑡𝑡𝑡 𝑚𝑚, where 𝑚𝑚 is the number
of authorities.

= � 𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤
𝑗𝑗=1

𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝑛𝑛𝑗𝑗 =

𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝑗𝑗𝑤𝑤

𝑤𝑤
𝑅𝑅𝑉𝑉𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸𝐸

∗ 1,500,000,000

Calculate authority 𝑗𝑗’s share of the total GVAweighted RV and multiply by the total funds
available.

9.

Where sectors have seen a positive change to their GVA over the relevant period, the
sector RV has been given a zero weighting, as opposed to a negative weighting, in
order to avoid a detrimental impact on properties within other sectors within that
authority. This applies to SIC code O (Public Administration).

10.

In accordance with the guidance that local authorities should not award relief to
properties that have already been eligible for the Extended Retail Discount (covering
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure), the Nursery Discount or the Airport and Ground
Operations Support Scheme (AGOSS), the following property types have been given a
zero weighting in the allocation: retail, hospitality, leisure, nurseries, and airports. For
the purposes of this allocation, retail, hospitality, leisure and nursery properties are
defined in Annex D, and airports are defined in Annex E.

11.

In order to ensure consistency with the Central Ratings List and the fact that these
industries have been relatively insulated from the adverse impacts of COVID-19, the
following sectors have been deemed out of scope of the relief and given a zero
weighting: networks supplying utilities and associated properties. These are defined at
Annex F.

12.

Allocations are rounded to the nearest pound.

Page 101

Annex B: Split of the Transport and Storage SIC1
Category
Category
Transport

SIC2
Components
49.1-2
49.3-5
50
51
52

Description

Rail transport
Land transport
Water transport
Air transport
Storage and
Warehousing/transport support
Distribution
activities
53
Postal and Courier Activities
This split, and subsequent GVA weighting, uses data from:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/output/datasets/ind
exofservices

Page 102

Annex C: Mapping of SIC to Special Category Code
SCat
code

Special category description

RETAIL SECTOR
Retail - Financial &
Professional Services Subsector
Banks/Insurance/Building
Society Offices and Other A2
021 Uses
Retail - Shops Sub-sector
008 Airport Let Outs

024 Betting Offices
Departmental and Walk Round
086 Stores (Large)
097 Factory Shops
098 Farm Shops
106 Convenience Stores
Hypermarkets/Superstores
139 (over 2500m2)
Large Food Stores (750 152 2500m2)
154 Large Shops (750 - 1850m2)
155 Large Shops (Over 1850m2)
210 Pharmacies
Retail Warehouses and
235 Foodstores
243 Sales Kiosks
249 Shops
251 Showrooms
417 Hairdressing/Beauty Salons
Pharmacies Within/Adjacent to
425 Surgery/Health Centre
429 Post Offices
Takeaway Food Outlet
442 (Predominantly Off Premises)
Kiosks Within/Part of Specialist
504 Property
Salons/Clinics Within/Part of
507 Specialist Property

SIC
cod
e

SIC definition

K

Financial Services

G
X

G

Wholesale and Retail
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
S
Q

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Other Services
Health

G
I

Wholesale and Retail
Hospitality

G

Wholesale and Retail

S

Other Services

Page 103

Shops Within/Part of Specialist
508 Property
710 Residual Malls
738 Builders Merchant
011 Amusement Arcades
165 Markets (Other Than Livestock)
OTHER SECTOR
Assembly And Leisure Subsector
Agricultural Showgrounds
004 (National Scheme)
012 Amusement Parks

025 Bingo Halls (National Scheme)

028 Bowling Alleys
029 Bowling Centres (Indoor)
030 Bowling Greens (Outdoor)
Caravan Parks (Leisure)
047 (National Scheme)
Caravan Sites and Pitches
048 (National Scheme)

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
R

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Wholesale and Retail

G

R

I

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

I

Hospitality

R
R

014 Arenas
022 Beach Huts

026 Bird Sanctuaries

G

I
R
R
R
R
R

R
049 Casinos and Gambling Clubs
054 Chalet Parks (National Scheme) I
R
056 Cinemas (National Scheme)
R
060 Clubhouses
R
061 Clubs and Institutions
Concert Halls (National
R
070 Scheme)
Conference and Exhibition
R
074 Centres
Conference Centres in Country N
075 Houses
R
081 Cricket Centres

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Administrative Services
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 104

082 Cricket Grounds (County)
Cricket Grounds/Pitches (Non083 County)
084
091
092
104

Dance Schools and Centres
Drive-In Restaurants
Drive-Thru Restaurants
Food Courts

R

Football Stadia

R

116 Go Kart Rinks

R

117 Golf Courses

R

118 Golf Driving Ranges

R

121 Greyhound Racetracks

R

125 Health Farms

R

128 Heritage Railways

R

132 Horse Racecourses

R

140 Ice Rinks
Lakes With Water Sport
145 Facilities

R
R

164 Marinas (National Scheme)

R

188 Model Villages

R

191 Motor Racetracks
Museums and Art Galleries
195 (Contractors)
Museums and Art Galleries
196 (Non-Contractors)

R
R

199 Night Clubs and Discotheques

213

Pleasure Piers

R

R

108 Football Pitches

208 Pavilions

R

I
I
I
R

107 Football Grounds

109

R

R
R
R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 105

Point to Point and Eventing
214 Courses

R

225 Public Halls
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants
226 (National Scheme)
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants
227 (Inc. Lodge) (National Scheme)
Racing Stables (National
229 Scheme)
234 Restaurants
Riding Schools and Livery
236 Stables (National Scheme)
237 Rifle and Weapons Ranges
Roadside Restaurants (National
238 Scheme)
239 Roller Skating Rinks

Hospitality

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

R

I
R
R
I
R
R

240 Royal Palaces

R

241 Rugby League Grounds

R

242 Rugby Union Grounds

R

252 Ski Centres

R

253 Snooker Halls/Clubs

R

254 Speedway Racetracks
256 Sporting Rights
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA)
257 (Dry Only) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA)
(Wet and Dry) (National
258 Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres
259 (Private)(Dry Only)
Sports and Leisure Centres
260 (Private)(Wet and Dry)

262 Sports Stadia

I

R

216 Polo Grounds

261 Sports Grounds

I

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality

R
R
R
R
R
R
R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 106

R

263 Squash Courts

R

264 Stables and Loose Boxes
Stately Homes and Historic
265 Houses (National Scheme)
Swimming Pools (Local
272 Authority)

R
R
R

273 Swimming Pools (Private)

R

277 Tennis Centres

R

278 Tennis Courts/Clubs

R

279 Theatres (National Scheme)

R

280 Theme Parks
Totalisators On Horse
283 Racecourses

R

284 Tourist Attractions
Village Halls Scout Huts Cadet
293 Huts etc
War Games Courses/Misc Ag.
296 Use
303 Bars (valued on floorspace)
304 Zoos and Safari Parks

R
R
R
I
R
R

403 Aquaria

R

405 Boathouses
409 Cafes

I
R

410 Changing Rooms

R

416 Gymnasia/Fitness Suites

R

421 Miniature Railways
426 Pitch and Putt/Putting Greens
Religious Retreats/Study
431 Centres (Residential)
Cafes/Restaurants Within/Part
500 of Specialist Property
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites
Within/Part of Specialist
503 Property

R
R
I
R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

Page 107

Sports and Leisure Centres
Within/Part of Specialist
509 Property
715 Football Training Grounds

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation

R

739 Soccer Centres
993 Leisure Miscellaneous
Education Sub-sector
Colleges of Further Education
065 (National Scheme)
085 Day Nurseries/Play Schools
Local Authority Schools
159 (National Scheme)
206 Oxbridge Colleges
Public and Independent Schools
223 (National Scheme)
Universities (Excluding
288 Oxbridge) (National Scheme)
University Occupation Within
440 Hospitals
Nurseries/Creches Within/Part
505 of Specialist Property
995 Educational Miscellaneous
Health Sub-sector
Hospitals and Clinics NHS
134 (National Scheme)
Hospitals and Clinics (Private)
135 (National Scheme)
Surgeries Clinics Health
436 Centres (Contractors Valuation)
Surgeries Clinics Health
437 Centres (Rental Valuation)
Hotels, Guest & Boarding,
Self Catering etc Sub-sector
062 Coaching Inns
077 Country House Hotels
Field Study Activity and
099 Adventure Centres
122 Guest and Boarding Houses
130 Holiday Centres
131 Holiday Homes (Self Catering)
136 Hostels
137 Hotels (3 Star and Under)
Hotels (4 Star and Above) and
Chain Op. 3 Star (National
138 Scheme)
160 Lodges (National Scheme)

R
P

Education

P
P

Education
Education

P
P

Education
Education

P

Education

P

Education

P

Education

P

Education

Q

Health

Q

Health

Q

Health

Q

Health

I
I
R
I
I
I
I
I
I

Hospitality
Hospitality
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality
Hospitality

I

Hospitality

Page 108

281
722
067
156
057
411
415
414
215
418

Timeshare Complexes (National
Scheme)
Serviced Apartments
Non Residential Institutions
Sub-sector
Community Day Centres
Libraries
Other - Offices Sub-sector
Civic and Public Buildings
(Local Authority Occupations)
Coastguard Stations
Courts (Rental Valuation)
Courts (Contractors Valuation)
Police Stations
Information/Visitor Centres

Offices Within/Part of Specialist
506 Property
Other - Other Sub-sector
AA/RAC Service Centres and
001 Boxes
003 Advertising Right
010 Ambulance Stations
013 Animal Boarding
015 Army Hereditaments
Car Parks (NCP and Multi039 Storey)
040 Car Parks (Surfaced Open)
041 Car Parks (Unsurfaced Open)
043 Car Spaces
053 Cemeteries (National Scheme)
058 Civic Amenity Sites
Contractors Huts and
076 Compounds
Crematoria (With and Without
080 Cemeteries) (National Scheme)
100 Film and TV Studios
101 Fire Stations
102 Fish Farms
Funeral Parlours/Chapels Of
111 Rest
112
123
124
141

Game Farms
Gypsy Camp Sites (Short Stay)
Hatcheries/Poultry Farms
Interactive Telephone Kiosks

I

Hospitality

I

Hospitality

Q
O

Health
Public administration

O

Public administration

O
O
O
O
N
X

Public administration
Public administration
Public administration
Public administration
Administrative Services
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

Y

Transport

J
O
I
O
Y

Information and Communication
Public administration
Hospitality
Public administration
Transport

Y
Y
Y
S
E
F

Transport
Transport
Transport
Other Services
Water and Waste Management
Construction

S

Other Services

J
O
A
S

Information and Communication
Public administration
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Other Services

R

Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Hospitality
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Information and Communication

I
A
J

Page 109

X
143
144
146
147
150
189
190
197
202
224
228
230
232

Kennels and Catteries
Laboratories
Land Used For Advertising
Land Used For Car Boot Sales
Landfill Sites
Moorings (Floating
Hereditaments)
Mortuaries
Navy Hereditaments
Observatories
Public Conveniences (National
Scheme)
Public Telephone Kiosks
(National Scheme)
RAF Hereditaments
Recording Studios

269 Stud Farms
270 Studios
Training Centre (Non
285 Residential)
Veterinary Clinics / Animal
292 Clinics
294 Vineyards/Wineries
298 Waste Recycling Plants
302 Windmills
420 Lifeboat Stations
424 Pet Grooming Parlours
428 Police Training Colleges
438 Telescope Sites
University - Ancillary Land or
439 Buildings
Car Parking Within/Part of
501 Specialist Property
Miscellaneous Within/Part of
513 Specialist Property
725 Park and Ride Car Parks

992 Commercial Miscellaneous

M
J
G
E
I

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Professional Services
Information and Communication
Wholesale and Retail
Water and Waste Management
Hospitality

O
O
M
O

Public administration
Public administration
Professional Services
Public administration

J

Information and Communication

O
J
X

Q

Public administration
Information and Communication
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Arts, Entertainment and
Recreation
Health

M

Professional Services

C
E
C
O
M
P
O
P

Manufacturing
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing
Public administration
Professional Services
Education
Public administration
Education

Y

Transport

X

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Transport
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

R

Y
X

Page 110

998 Crown Miscellaneous

999 Miscellaneous
Other - Retail Sub-sector
018 ATMs
019 Auction Rooms
038 Car Auction Buildings/Sites
042 Car Showrooms
044 Car Supermarkets
045 Car Washes (Stand Alone)
Car/Caravan
046 Sales/Display/Hiring Sites
114 Garden Centres
757 Plant Nurseries
133 Hospital Let Outs
Motorway Service Area Let
193 Outs
Motorway and Major Road
194 Service Areas
Petrol Filling Stations (National
209 Scheme)
211 Photographic Booths
250 Showhouses (National Scheme)
266 Station Let Outs
419 Land Used for Display
Pitches for Stalls Sales or
427 Promotions
432 Sales Offices
Residential Institutions Subsector
Nursing Homes (Inc. Old
201 Peoples Homes)
220 Prison Service Hereditaments

286 Training Centre (Residential)
Storage & Distribution Subsector
119 Grain Silos
Granaries and Intervention
120 Stores
Liquid Bulk Storage (Incl Petrol
157 and Oil) (National Scheme)
404 Archives
Cold Stores (Contractors
412 Valuation)

O
X

Public administration
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

K
G
G
G
G
G
G

Financial Services
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G

Wholesale and Retail

G
G
G
G
G

Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail
Wholesale and Retail

L

Real Estate Activities

Q

Health

O
X

Public administration
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

Z
Z

Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

O
Z

Public administration
Storage and Distribution

Page 111

413 Cold Stores (Rental Valuation)
Transport Sub-sector
Air Ports (Minor) (National
005 Scheme)
006 Air Strips (National Scheme)
036 Bus Stations
059 Civil Airports
Docks and Harbours (Non089 Statutory)
126 Heliports
161 Lorry Parks
Railways and Tramways (Non
231 Leisure)
Tolls (Ferries Roads and
282 Bridges)
287 Truck Stops
712 Rail Freight Depots
714 Rail Maintenance Depots
737 Ferry Terminal
Utilities Sub-sector
Communication Stations
066 (National Scheme)
District Heating Undertakings
088 and Networks
090 Domestic Fuel Installations
Electricity Undertakings (Non094 Statutory)
115 Gas Processing Plants
149 Landfill Gas Generator Sites
219 Power Generators
Sewage Works (National
246 Scheme)
Telecommunications Cable
275 Networks (National Scheme)
Telecommunications Switching
276
Centres
Water Undertakings (Non300 Statutory)
Telecommunications Large
726 Broadcast Sites
Renewable Generators – Mixed
729 Technologies
733 Battery Storage
741 Independent Gas Transporter
Independent Distribution
742 Network Operator
Renewable Power Generator 743 Photovoltaic

Z

Storage and Distribution

Y

Transport

Y
Y
Y
Y

Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport

Y
Y
Y

Transport
Transport
Transport

Y

Transport

G
Y
Y
Y

Wholesale and Retail
Transport
Transport
Transport

J

Information and Communication

D

Energy

O
D

Public administration
Energy

D
D
D
E

Energy
Energy
Energy
Water and Waste Management

J

Information and Communication

J

Information and Communication

E

Water and Waste Management

J

Information and Communication

D

Energy

D
D
D

Energy
Energy
Energy

D

Energy

Page 112

744
745
746
747
748

Renewable Power Generator Wind
Renewable Power Generator Other
Renewable Power Generator Hydro
Fossil Fuel Power Station
Nuclear Power Station
OFFICE SECTOR
Offices Sub-sector

203 Offices (Inc Computer Centres)
Offices
204 (Headquarters/Institutional)
INDUSTRY SECTOR
General Industrial Sub-sector
105 Food Processing Centres
110 Foundries
Vehicle Repair Workshops and
289 Garages

408 Business Units
Workshops Within/Part of
512 Specialist Property
Factories Workshops and
Warehouses (Incl Bakeries and
096 Dairies)
Large Industrials (Over 20
153
000m2)
192 Motor Vehicle Works
Newspaper Printing Works
198 (National Scheme)
207 Paper Mills
Industry - Storage &
Distribution Sub-sector
Bullion/Money Stores (National
034 Scheme)
129 High Tech Warehouses
148 Land Used For Storage
151 Large Distribution Warehouses
217 Post Office Sorting Centres
267 Storage Depots
268 Stores

D

Energy

D

Energy

D

Energy

D
D

Energy
Energy

X

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services

X

C
C
G

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Wholesale and Retail

X

C

J-N: Information,
Communication, Financial
Intermediation, Real Estate and
Business Services
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

Z

Storage and Distribution

Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z

Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution
Storage and Distribution

Page 113

301 Wholesale Warehouses
Stores Within/Part of Specialist
510 Property
Warehouses Within/Part of
511 Specialist Property
721 Self Storage Facility
Industry Other Sub-sector
Computer Centres (Non068 Purpose Built)
Computer Centres (Purpose
069 Built)
007 Aircraft Works With Airfields
009 Aluminium Smelting Works
016 Artificial Fibre Works
017 Asphalt Plants
020 Baling Plant
023 Beet Sugar Factories
027 Boat Yards
031 Breweries (National Scheme)
Brickworks (Traditional) Clay
032 Tile/Pipe Works
033 Bulk Cement Storage Depots
037 Cable Head End Buildings
050 Cattle Breeding Centres
051 Cement Tile Works
052 Cement Works
055 Chemical Works
063 Coking and Carbonising Plants
071 Concrete Batching Plants
072 Concrete Block Works
073 Concrete Product Works
079 Creameries
087 Distilleries
Effluent Minewater Treatment
093 Plant and Premises
095 Exhaust and Tyre Centres
103 Flour Mills (National Scheme)
Garages (Transport and
113 Commercial)
Heredits Used For Primary
Treatment/Processing Of
127 Minerals
142 Iron and/or Steel Works
Livestock Markets (National
158 Scheme)
162 Maltings - Non Trad
163 Maltings - Trad
166 Mechanised Handling Depots

G
Z

Wholesale and Retail
Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

Z

Storage and Distribution

N

Administrative Services

N

Administrative Services

C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C
J
A
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
E

Manufacturing
Information and Communication
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Water and Waste Management

G
C
Y

Wholesale and Retail
Manufacturing
Transport

B

Mining and Quarrying

C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing

C
C
Z

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Storage and Distribution

Page 114

167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
186
187
200
205
212
218
221
222
233

Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Blockstone
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Brine
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Chalk
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- China Clay
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Clay
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Coal
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Fluorspar
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Gas
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Hardrock
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Inert
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Oil
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Other Mineral Category
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Putrescible
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Sand and Gravel
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Shale Burnt
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Shale Unburnt
Mineral Producing Hereditament
- Slate
Mineral Producing Hereditament
With Batching Plant
Mineral Producing Hereditament
With Tunnel Kiln
MOD Hereditaments
Nuclear Establishments
Oil Refineries
Pipelines
Potteries
Properties Involving Extraction
Of Materials For Profit
Provender Mills (National
Scheme)
Refuse Destructor
Plants/Disposal Sites

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

E

Water and Waste Management

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

E

Water and Waste Management

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

B

Mining and Quarrying

O
E
C
Y
C
B

Public administration
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing
Transport
Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying

C

Manufacturing

E

Water and Waste Management

Page 115

244 Scrap Metal/Breakers Yard
Sea Dredged Aggregate
245 Processing Plants and Depots
247 Ship Building Yards
248 Ship Repair Yards
255 Spoil Heap Workings
274 Tanneries
Vehicle Testing Centres (With
290 Test Tracks)
Vehicle Testing Centres
291 (Without Test Tracks)
Wafer Fabrications (National
295 Scheme)
297 Waste Incinerator Plants
299 Waste Transfer Stations
Abattoirs and Slaughter Houses
400 (Contractors Valuation)
Abattoirs and Slaughter Houses
401 (Rental Valuation)
402 Agricultural Research Centres
Bus Garages (Contractors
406 Valuation)
407 Bus Garages (Rental Valuation)
422 Pack Houses
423 Peat Fields
430 Pumping Mines
Statutory Docks and Harbours
433 (Formula)
Statutory Docks and Harbours
434 (Non-Formula Prescribed)
Statutory Docks and Harbours
435 (Other)
441 Weighbridges
Garages Within/Part of
502 Specialist Property
994 Industrial Miscellaneous
997 Minerals Miscellaneous

E
B

Water and Waste Management
Mining and Quarrying

C
C
B
C
C

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

O

Public administration

C

Manufacturing

E
E
C

Water and Waste Management
Water and Waste Management
Manufacturing

C

Manufacturing

M
Y

Professional Services
Transport

Y
A
B
B
Y

Transport
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying
Mining and Quarrying
Transport

Y

Transport

Y

Transport

Y
Y

Transport
Transport

C
B

Manufacturing
Mining and Quarrying

Page 116

Annex D: Definition of Retail, Hospitality and Leisure
properties
SCat Code

4
8
11
12
14
19
22
24
25
26
28
29
30
38
42
44
45
46
47
48
49
54
56
60
61
62
70
74
75
77
81
82
83
84
85
86
91
92
97
98
99

Special category description
Agricultural Showgrounds (National Scheme)
Airport Let Outs
Amusement Arcades
Amusement Parks
Arenas
Auction Rooms
Beach Huts
Betting Offices
Bingo Halls (National Scheme)
Bird Sanctuaries
Bowling Alleys
Bowling Centres (Indoor)
Bowling Greens (Outdoor)
Car Auction Buildings/Sites
Car Showrooms
Car Supermarkets
Car Washes (Stand Alone)
Car/Caravan Sales/Display/Hiring Sites
Caravan Parks (Leisure) (National Scheme)
Caravan Sites and Pitches (National Scheme)
Casinos and Gambling Clubs
Chalet Parks (National Scheme)
Cinemas (National Scheme)
Clubhouses
Clubs and Institutions
Coaching Inns
Concert Halls (National Scheme)
Conference and Exhibition Centres
Conference Centres in Country Houses
Country House Hotels
Cricket Centres
Cricket Grounds (County)
Cricket Grounds/Pitches (Non-County)
Dance Schools and Centres
Day Nurseries/Play Schools
Departmental and Walk Round Stores (Large)
Drive-In Restaurants
Drive-Thru Restaurants
Factory Shops
Farm Shops
Field Study Activity and Adventure Centres

Page 117

104
106
107
108
109
114
116
117
118
121
122
125
128
130
131
132
136
137
138
139
140
145
152
154
155
160
164
165
188
191
195
196
199
208
209
210
211
213
214
216
225
226
227
229
234
235

Food Courts
Convenience Stores
Football Grounds
Football Pitches
Football Stadia
Garden Centres
Go Kart Rinks
Golf Courses
Golf Driving Ranges
Greyhound Racetracks
Guest and Boarding Houses
Health Farms
Heritage Railways
Holiday Centres
Holiday Homes (Self Catering)
Horse Racecourses
Hostels
Hotels (3 Star and Under)
Hotels (4 Star and Above) and Chain Op. 3 Star (National Scheme)
Hypermarkets/Superstores (over 2500m2)
Ice Rinks
Lakes With Water Sport Facilities
Large Food Stores (750 - 2500m2)
Large Shops (750 - 1850m2)
Large Shops (Over 1850m2)
Lodges (National Scheme)
Marinas (National Scheme)
Markets (Other Than Livestock)
Model Villages
Motor Racetracks
Museums and Art Galleries (Contractors)
Museums and Art Galleries (Non-Contractors)
Night Clubs and Discotheques
Pavilions
Petrol Filling Stations (National Scheme)
Pharmacies
Photographic Booths
Pleasure Piers
Point to Point and Eventing Courses
Polo Grounds
Public Halls
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants (National Scheme)
Public Houses/Pub Restaurants (Inc. Lodge) (National Scheme)
Racing Stables (National Scheme)
Restaurants
Retail Warehouses and Foodstores

Page 118

236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
249
250
251
252
253
254
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
272
273
277
278
279
280
281
283
284
293
296
303
304
403
405
409
410
416
417
421
425

Riding Schools and Livery Stables (National Scheme)
Rifle and Weapons Ranges
Roadside Restaurants (National Scheme)
Roller Skating Rinks
Royal Palaces
Rugby League Grounds
Rugby Union Grounds
Sales Kiosks
Shops
Showhouses (National Scheme)
Showrooms
Ski Centres
Snooker Halls/Clubs
Speedway Racetracks
Sporting Rights
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA) (Dry Only) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (LA) (Wet and Dry) (National Scheme)
Sports and Leisure Centres (Private)(Dry Only)
Sports and Leisure Centres (Private)(Wet and Dry)
Sports Grounds
Sports Stadia
Squash Courts
Stables and Loose Boxes
Stately Homes and Historic Houses (National Scheme)
Station Let Outs
Swimming Pools (Local Authority)
Swimming Pools (Private)
Tennis Centres
Tennis Courts/Clubs
Theatres (National Scheme)
Theme Parks
Timeshare Complexes (National Scheme)
Totalisators On Horse Racecourses
Tourist Attractions
Village Halls Scout Huts Cadet Huts etc
War Games Courses/Misc Ag. Use
Bars (valued on floorspace)
Zoos and Safari Parks
Aquaria
Boathouses
Cafes
Changing Rooms
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites
Hairdressing/Beauty Salons
Miniature Railways
Pharmacies Within/Adjacent to Surgery/Health Centre

Page 119

426
431
432
442
500
503
504
505
507
508
509
710
722
738
739
757
993

Pitch and Putt/Putting Greens
Religious Retreats/Study Centres (Residential)
Sales Offices
Takeaway Food Outlet (Predominantly Off Premises)
Cafes/Restaurants Within/Part of Specialist Property
Gymnasia/Fitness Suites Within/Part of Specialist Property
Kiosks Within/Part of Specialist Property
Nurseries/Creches Within/Part of Specialist Property
Salons/Clinics Within/Part of Specialist Property
Shops Within/Part of Specialist Property
Sports and Leisure Centres Within/Part of Specialist Property
Residual Malls
Serviced Apartments
Builders Merchant
Soccer Centres
Plant Nurseries
Leisure Miscellaneous

Page 120

Annex E: Definition of airports
SCat code

Special category description
005 Air Ports (Minor) (National Scheme)
059 Civil Airports

Page 121

Annex F: Definition of network supplying utilities and
associated properties
SCat code

094
115
212
275
276
300
726
729
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748

Special category description
Electricity Undertakings (Non-Statutory)
Gas Processing Plants
Pipelines
Telecommunications Cable Networks (National Scheme)
Telecommunications Switching Centres
Water Undertakings (Non-Statutory)
Telecommunications Large Broadcast Sites
Renewable Generators – Mixed Technologies
Independent Gas Transporter
Independent Distribution Network Operator
Renewable Power Generator - Photovoltaic
Renewable Power Generator - Wind
Renewable Power Generator - Other
Renewable Power Generator - Hydro
Fossil Fuel Power Station
Nuclear Power Station

Page 122

Agenda Item 12
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

DECISION

18 JANUARY 2022
COVID 19 BUSINESS GRANTS
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
JANE PEARSON

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To provide update on progress with the existing ARG scheme.

1.2

To update members following the recent announcement made by the Chancellor of
the Exchequer on 21 December 2021 in response to the Omicron variant regarding
further business support.

1.3

To consider a new strand to the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) Scheme for the
Omicron Variant.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

This Council currently has live 3 ARG grant schemes which were agreed in November
by this Committee:
•

Travel Agents - £1,000 to those based at home and £5,000 to those who have
a business premises/shop and are registered for business rates in the Ribble
Valley;

•

Business Recovery – businesses seeking to invest in their premises or
facilities as a direct result of the pandemic who had not received a Restart
Grant.

•

Business Growth – to support businesses in recovering from the impact of the
pandemic and to support businesses in expanding and adapting their
businesses to support long-term sustainability and the Council’s Climate
Change Strategy.

2.2

For the Business Growth and Recovery strands it was agreed the grant would provide
up to 50% of any eligible expenditure with a maximum grant of £25,000. The minimum
level of expenditure would be £5,000. Eligible expenditure would count from 1 July
2021 for those businesses based in Ribble Valley who were trading on 1 April 2021
and registered for business rates.

2.3

On 21 December 2021 the Chancellor announced two further funding streams for
businesses severely affected by the Omicron variant
•

Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant; businesses in the hospitality and
leisure sectors in England will be eligible for one-off grants of up to £6,000 per
premises.

•

A third top-up to local authorities ARG funding to support businesses who
have been severely impacted by the Omicron variant including those outside
the business rate system

Page 123

3

ARG – TRAVEL AGENTS/RECOVERY/GROWTH STRANDS

3.1

Since the last meeting we have received 52 applications. Of these 14 have been
approved and 12 rejected. Approvals total £88k. Unallocated funds at the time of
writing this report were £416k.

4

OMICRON HOSPITALITY AND LEISURE GRANT (OHLG)

4.1

The Government have issued guidance for local authorities to administer this scheme
on their behalf.

4.2

We were notified on Friday 7 January 2022 that the allocation for Ribble Valley will
be £1,056,078. Note if the eligible grants paid out exceed this we will be reimbursed
by the Government.
Who is eligible

4.3

Grants are payable to hospitality, leisure and accommodation business premises.

4.4

Businesses must have been trading or engaged in business activity on 30 December
2021 to be eligible for the grant.

4.5

The business who according to the councils records is the ratepayer will receive the
grant funding.
The value of the grant

4.6

businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a rateable
value of exactly £15,000 or under on 30 December 2021 will receive a payment of
£2,667

4.7

businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a rateable
value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on 30 December 2021 will receive a
payment of £4,000

4.8

businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a rateable
value of exactly £51,000 or over on 30 December 2021 will receive a payment of
£6,000
Exclusions to the grant

4.9

Government guidelines state that hospitality excludes the following businesses:-

4.10 food kiosks and businesses whose main service (generating 50% or more of income)
is a takeaway (not applicable to those that have adapted to offer takeaways during
periods of restrictions, in alignment with previous COVID-19 business grant
schemes)
4.11 Government guidelines state that leisure excludes the following businesses:•

all retail businesses, coach tour operators, and tour operators

4.12 Government guidelines state that accommodation excludes the following
businesses:-

Page 124

•

private dwellings, education accommodation, residential homes, care homes,
residential family centres and beach huts

•

businesses that are not in the rating list

•

businesses that are in Administration, insolvent or where a striking off notice
has been made

•

businesses that have already received grant payments that equal the
maximum permitted subsidy allowances will not be eligible to receive funding

4.13 Grant income received by a business is taxable. This grant will need to be included
as income in the tax return of the business. Only businesses which make an overall
profit once grant income is included will be subject to tax.
Closure date for applications
4.14 The application closure date for this scheme is 28 February 2022 and final payments
must be made by 31 March 2022. This gives us very little time to get the scheme up
and running and process applications.
Next Steps
4.15 Whilst we await the funding from the Government, we have designed an online
application form similar to those created for the previous covid grant schemes in order
that we can do the necessary pre-payment checks required by BEIS.
4.16 We hope to go live soon with our application process.
5

ARG THIRD TOP-UP

5.1

In addition to the OHL scheme the Government have awarded Ribble Valley a third
ARG top-up to be allocated at our discretion to businesses which have been severely
impacted by the Omicron variant, including those outside of the business rates
system.

5.2

They have made clear that the third top-up payment should only be allocated directly
to business and should not fund wider business support measures.

5.3

We were notified on Friday 7 January 2022 that we have been allocated £146,048.
We are not certain when we will receive the funding.
Next Steps

5.4

We suggest due to the relatively small amount of funding available, that grants should
be £1,000 for businesses with a rateable value and £500 for those not registered for
business rates.

5.5

We have to design a scheme and application process as soon as possible in order
the funding is fully spent by 31 March 2022. This will be extremely challenging
especially running alongside the OHLG scheme at the same time as setting the
budget and council tax for next year.

6

RECOMMENDED THAT

6.1

Committee note the progress with the existing ARG scheme

Page 125

6.2

Committee note and welcome the new OHLG scheme.

6.3

Committee agree the amounts of grants available for the new Omicron ARG scheme
and delegate the creation of a detailed scheme to the Director of Resources, in
consultation with the ARG task and finish group.

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
10 JANUARY 2022

Page 126

Agenda Item 14
INFORMATION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

18 JANUARY 2022
QUEEN’S PLATINUM JUBILEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
MARSHAL SCOTT

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To report progress with the selection of appropriate projects to commemorate the
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

At the last meeting Committee considered various options to celebrate and
commemorate the Platinum Jubilee.

2.2

It was agreed to:




have a Beacon Lighting Ceremony at Clitheroe Castle;
agree to give grants of £500 to parish councils to help them commemorate the
Jubilee;
set up a Task and Finish Group to consider in more detail further options to
commemorate the Jubilee.

3

TASK AND FINISH GROUP

3.1

The Task and Finish Group met on 9 December 2021 (minutes attached). You will see
they considered a number of projects and further work is being undertaken to finalise
plans and select the scheme or schemes to be recommended to be carried out. A
further report will be submitted to the next meeting for final approval.

4

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

The approval of this report may have the following implications


Resources – the cost of Parish Grants is estimated at £20,000 which has now been
included in this committees revised budget. A sum of £10,000 has been included
in next year’s draft budget but much will depend on which schemes are chosen.



Technical, Environmental and Legal - None



Political - None



Reputation – the Council should provide a lead for the Community in
commemorating this important event.



Equality & Diversity – None

Page 127

5

RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE

5.1

Note the progress being made.

Marshal Scott
DIRECTOR OF / CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Page 128

Minutes of the Queen's Platinum Jubilee Working Group
Meeting Date:

Thursday, 09 December 2021, started at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor S Atkinson (Chair)

Councillors:
R Thompson
S Fletcher

K Horkin (from 10:18)

In attendance:
Chief Executive, Director of Economic Development and Planning and the Director of
Community Service.
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:
Cllr J Clark sent her apologises.
2. UPDATE ON PARISH COUNCIL GRANT APPLICATIONS:
It was noted that as of 08/12/2021, 12 Parish Councils had applied for a grant, and these
were being processed by Finance. It was confirmed that Parish Meetings would also qualify
for the grant and had been sent application details.
3. SUGGESTIONS for COMMEMORATIONS:
Based on the list of ‘Ideas for Commemorations’ that had been circulated to group members,
the Chairman asked each member for their preferred option. These options and the
discussion each generated and associated actions is set out in the table below.
Option

Discussion / Actions

Commemorative wood or
‘green canopy’.

Plant a small number of ‘exclusive’ Royal Oak trees.
(It was noted that mature trees are very expensive).
Plant several thousand saplings by encouraging land owners to
participate in the commemorations.
Action: On the latter point, the Council contact Hanson Cement,
United Utilities and the Ribble Rivers Trust (please note that the
Trust already has a planting programme in place).

Avenue of trees.

Action: Cllr Thompson will contact Ralph Ashton on this option.

Jubilee park, garden or
play area.

Need to consider the location as some areas can be subject to
vandalism.
It was noted that the Council has been in contact with Lancashire
County Council on specific locations in Clitheroe but has no
update.

Renewal of the Brungerley
Park sculpture trail with
additional sculptures to
represent each decade of
The Queen’s reign.

Need to consider sculptures being available to make a start by
June 2022.

Commemorative trig point
at Dunsop Bridge

Action: The Council to contact the relevant agency to see if this
is possible.

1

Page 129

Queens labyrinth on
Pendle Hill

People and other agencies may consider that such a labyrinth
would impinge on the history and natural beauty of Pendle Hill.

Ribble Valley Way

It was noted that the deputy major is keen on this suggestion.
The design of any route marker needs to be considered and it is
important not to introduce clutter along the route.
Action: Cllr. Thompson to contact the relevant agencies.

Renaming the Castle
grounds

Members were reminded that there could be some sensitivity
and resistance in renaming the Castle grounds.

It was noted that the tree planting season runs between November and March and that
grants are already available via the Woodland Creation and Maintenance Grant scheme for
tree planting
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
a.

Importance of having something in place by 2 June 2022.
It was considered that whatever is chosen to commemorate the Jubilee, it does not have
to be in place by 2 June, if a start on the chosen commemoration has been made.
In this regard, it was suggested that a mock-up/presentation for media consumption be
prepared. Such a presentation would set out the Council’s commemorative intentions.

b.

Commemorative locations:
Members agreed that any commemoration cannot be solely Clitheroe centric and needs
to include Longridge and other larger and important conurbations.

SUMMARY of ACTIONS
Commemorative idea

Action

Commemorative wood or ‘green canopy’.
Plant several thousand saplings by encouraging
land owners to participate in the commemorations.

The Council to contact Hanson Cement,
United Utilities, and the Ribble Valley
Trust.

Avenue of trees.

Cllr Thompson to contact Ralph Assheton

Jubilee Park, garden or play area.

The Council to contact Lancashire County
Council and Cllr Sue Hind for an update on
recent discussions.

Renewal of the Brungerley Park sculpture trail with
additional sculptures to represent each decade of
The Queen’s reign.

The Council to make enquires with the
relevant people.

Commemorative trig point at Dunsop Bridge

The Council to contact Ordnance Survey to
see if this is possible.

Ribble Valley Way

Cllr. Thompson to contact the relevant
agencies.

Preparation of media presentation setting out the
Council’s commemorative intentions

The Council’s Communications Officer.

2

Page 130

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The aim is to have a further meeting in time to prepare a report for submission to the Policy
and Finance Committee currently scheduled for 18 January 2022.

3

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15
INFORMATION
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

18 JANUARY 2022
REVENUES AND BENEFITS GENERAL REPORT
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
MARK EDMONDSON

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To inform committee of debts outstanding for business rates, council tax and sundry debtors.
Also, to update committee on benefits performance, including benefits processing times and
overpayment recovery.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:


Council Ambitions/Community Objectives/Corporate Priorities
Without the revenue collected from rates, council tax and sundry debtors we would be
unable to meet the Council’s ambitions, objectives, and priorities.

2

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR)

2.1

The following is a collection statement to 6 January 2022:
£000

£000

Balance Outstanding 1 April 2021

2021/22
%

2020/21
%

907

NNDR amounts due

21,871

Plus costs

3

Transitional surcharge

7

Write ons

3
21,884

Less
- Transitional relief

4

- Exemptions

-415

- Charity, Rural, Community Amateur Sports
Clubs Relief

-1,317

- Small Business Rate Relief

-3,782

- Nursery Discount, Retail Discount, SSB, Flood
Relief, Revaluation 2017, Pub, SSB and Other
reliefs

-4,076

- Interest Due

0

- Write Offs

-111
-9,697 12,187
13,094

Total amount to recover
Less cash received to 6 January 2022
Amount Outstanding

Page 133

-10,584

80.1

75.9

2,510

19.9

24.1

NB The figures included in the table include not only those charges for 2021/22 but also those
relating to previous years, but we are required to report to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) our in-year collection rate. This figure is
published and is used to compare our performance with other local authorities. On this
measure our current in year collection rate at 31 December 2021 is 81.96% compared with
82.06% at 31 December 2020. The collection rate for 2020/21 was severely impacted by
COVID19 and was 2.10% lower than 2019/20. Based on current estimates it is likely that our
collection rate for this year will be similar to pre pandemic levels.
3

COUNCIL TAX

3.1

The following is a collection statement for Council Tax to 6 January 2022:
£000

£000

Balance Outstanding 1 April 2021

2021/22
%

2020/21
%

1,679

Council Tax amounts due

55,331

Plus costs

86

Transitional relief

2

Write ons

0
55,419

Less - Exemptions

-770

- Discounts

-4,856

- Disabled banding reduction

-66

- Council Tax Benefit

4

- Local Council Tax Support plus Hardship
- Write offs

-2,098
-27
-7,813

Total amount to recover

47,606
49,285

Less cash received to 6 January 2022
Amount Outstanding

-42,422

86.1

84.5

6,863

13.9

15.5

NB The figures included in the table include not only those charges for 2021/22 but also those
relating to previous years, but we are required to report our in-year collection rate to the
MHCLG. This figure is published by them and is used to compare our performance against
other local authorities. On this measure our current in year collection rate on 31 December
2021 is 87.12% compared to 85.41% at 31 December 2020. The collection rate for 2020/21
was severely impacted by COVID19 and was 1.24% lower than 2019/20. Based on current
estimates it is likely that our collection rate for this year will be like pre pandemic levels.

Page 134

4

SUNDRY DEBTORS

4.1

A summary of the sundry debtors account on 10 January 2022 is:
£000

£000

Amount Outstanding 1 April 2021
Invoices Raised

651
2,407

Plus costs

0
2,407

Less credit notes

-194

Total amount to recover

2,864

Less cash received to 10 January 2022

-2,315

Amount outstanding

Aged Debtors

549

000s

%

< 30 days

23

4.19

30 - 59 days

29

5.28

60 - 89 days

82

14.94

90 - 119 days

20

3.64

120 - 149 days

11

2.00

384

69.95

687

100

150+ days

4.2

The balance of debt outstanding for ’60-89 days’ includes debts raised on an annual basis at
the start of the financial year, which are being paid by direct debit monthly throughout the year.
Another substantial element within this balance is debt relating to overpaid housing benefit due
to reasons including fraud. Recovery action continues on such housing benefit debts, with
some being paid by instalments.

5

HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT PERFORMANCE

5.1

The main indicator for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support performance is known as
Right Time. The benefit section also reports on Local Performance Indicators that have been
set within the department for benefit fraud and overpayments.

5.2

The Department for Work and Pensions does not require Local Authorities (LA’s) to report on
any other Performance Measures but encourages them to monitor their own performance
locally.

5.3

We obviously consider it very important to monitor overpayment data.
Housing Benefit Right Time Indicator 2021/2022
The right time indicator measures the time taken to process HB/CTS new claims and change
events; this includes changes in circumstances, interventions, fraud referrals and prints
generated by the benefit department.
Target for year
5 days

Actual Performance
1 October 2021– 31 December 2021
4.78 days

Page 135

Average Performance
20 days per IRRV

New claims performance
Target for year
15 days

Actual Performance
1 October 2021 – 31 December 2021
13.40 days

Top grade 4 for all LA’s 2007/08
Under 30 days

6

HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS

6.1

Overpayment means any amount paid as Housing Benefit when there was no entitlement
under the regulations.

6.2

The figures overleaf are from the previous quarter as the latest figures were not available at
the time of writing the report.
Performance for the period 1 July 2021 – 30 September 2021:
Performance Measure

%

The amount of Housing Benefit (HB) overpayments recovered during the period
being reported on as a percentage of HB overpayments deemed recoverable during
that period.

69.35

The amount of Housing Benefit (HB) overpayments recovered during the period as
a percentage of the total amount of HB overpayment debt outstanding at the start of
the financial year plus amount of HB overpayments identified during the period.

8.37

The amount of Housing Benefit (HB) overpayments written off during the period as
a percentage of the total amount of HB overpayment debt outstanding at the start of
the financial year, plus amount of HB overpayments identified during the period.

Nil

7

CONCLUSION

7.1

Note the continuing progress that we make in collecting these debts, and the performance of
our Housing Benefit Section remains satisfactory.

HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

18 January 2022
For further information please ask for Mark Edmondson.

Page 136

Agenda Item 16
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO POLICY & FINANCE COMMITTEE
Meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

18 JANUARY 2022
TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
VALERIE TAYLOR

1

PURPOSE

1.1

To provide you with a monitoring report on our treasury management activities for the
period 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021.

1.2

Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:
•

In accordance with the corporate strategy priority -“to ensure a well-managed Council,
by maintaining critical financial management and controls.” This report provides
members with information regarding the treasury management activities for the
period.

1.3

In accordance with our treasury management policy, committee receive regular
monitoring reports on treasury management activities throughout the financial year.

2

BACKGROUND

2.1

Treasury management within an organisation is the ‘management of the organisation’s
borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks’

2.2

The council’s approach to treasury management is set out in its ‘Treasury Management
Policies and Practices’ document which governs the way that investments and cashflows
are managed. It is reviewed annually to ensure continued compliance with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management Code of
Practice.

2.3

Treasury Management Policies and Practices were reviewed in advance of the 2021/22
financial year, and were approved by this committee in March 2021 prior to full council in
April 2021.

3

TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

3.1

In accordance with the approved treasury management policies and practices, surplus
funds are temporarily invested via the money market at the best rate of interest available
and with the minimisation of risk to the capital sum. Investment decisions continue to be
primarily concerned with the security of the funds invested and ongoing liquidity to meet
financial commitments.

3.2

The movement in the Council’s external investments during the reporting period are
summarised below:

Page 1 of 14

Page 137

Banks/
Building
Societies
£000

DMO

Other
Local
Authorities
£000

£000

Total
£000

Monies Invested at 1 April 2021

0

5,500

9,000

14,500

Net Movement

0

20,500

-6,500

14,000

Fixed term deposits at 31 December 2021

0

26,000

2,500

28,500

5,042

0

0

5,042

Add funds held with HSBC
Sum of all funds invested

33,542

Interest earned April – December 2021

3.3

3

Funds invested at 31 December were held with the following organisations:
Date Invested

Date of Repayment

Rate %

Aberdeen City
Council

22/12/2021

22/03/2022

0.09%

2,500

20/12/2021

05/01/2022

0.005%

10,000

20/12/2021

10/01/2022

0.02%

15,000

23/12/2021

04/01/2022

-0.10%

1,000

Debt Management
Office (DMO)

SUM of fixed term deposits

28,500

Add funds held with HSBC

5,042

st

SUM of all investments at 31 December 2021

3.4

£’000

Borrower

33,542

A detailed listing of investments placed and repaid during the reporting period is available
in Annex 1. A summary of end of month balances is shown below:

Page 2 of 14

Page 138

Month End Deposit Balances £m
40.0
35.0
30.0
25.0
20.0
15.0
10.0
5.0
0.0

HSBC
Other Local Authorities
Banks/ Building Soc
DMO
TOTAL
DMO

Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21
3.9
3.4
4.7
4.9
9.0
6.5
4.0
2.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
5.5
10.0
8.0
17.0
18.4
19.9
16.7
24.4

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21
4.5
4.6
3.7
4.8
2.8
5.0
2.5
2.5
2.5
2.5
2.5
2.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
16.0
20.0
21.5
17.0
23.0
26.0
23.0
27.1
27.7
24.3
28.3
33.5

Banks/ Building Soc

Other Local Authorities

HSBC

TOTAL

4

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

4.1

The Bank of England base rate reduced to 0.10% in March 2020 where it remained for
the period up to the 16 December when the rate was increased to 0.25%:
Official Base Rate
Date of change
02 August 2018
11 March 2020
19 March 2020
16 December 2021

%
0.75
0.25
0.10
0.25

4.2

The total interest earned on investments between April and December 2021 was £2,878
compared to £32,136 for the same period in 2020.

4.3

The council has once again started accruing interest on balances held with HSBC, the
council’s banking provider, as the rate payable tracks at 0.10% below the base rate.

Page 3 of 14

Page 139

5

COUNTERPARTY LIMITS

5.1

Counterparty limits are set out in the council’s Treasury Management Policies and
Practices document and are approved by this Committee in advance of the financial year.
The decision to vary the limits if required is delegated to the Director of Resources under
schedule D of this document.

5.2

The ordinary maximum amount to be placed with the Debt Management Office (DMO) in
total as set out in these Polices and Practices is £5m, and the ordinary limit for HSBC, the
council’s banking provider, is £1.75m.

5.3

The DMO is an Executive Agency of Her Majesty’s Treasury, responsible for debt and
cash management for the UK Government, lending to local authorities and managing
certain public sector funds. As such this highly secure facility has been the council’s
preferred option for the depositing of short-term cash funds throughout the coronavirus
pandemic, in accordance with the primary objectives of security and liquidity.

5.4

Counterparty limits are regularly reviewed by the Director of Resources. They have been
temporarily varied throughout the coronavirus pandemic as follows:
Organisation

Ordinary
Counterparty
Limit

Limit following
review by Director
of Resources
£25m
£30m

Debt Management Office
(DMO)

£5m

27 March 2020
23 December 2021

HSBC
(the council’s banking provider)

£1.75m

£5m
£6m

27 March 2020
23 December 2021

Other banks and building
societies

£1.75m

£1.75m

No change

Local Authorities

£2.5m

£2.5m

No change

Date of change

5.5

As shown above, counterparty limits were increased for the DMO and HSBC in December
2021. Cash held by the council is higher at this time of the year due to timing differences
between the receipt of funds and the payment of liabilities, mainly in respect of council tax
and business rate receipts and the payment of precepts. There was also a risk that limits
may be breached when grant funds are received from central government for distribution
to businesses impacted by the omicron variant, with the amount and date of receipt
unknown.

5.6

Counterparty limits will be reviewed through January to March as cash balances are
forecast to reduce throughout this period.

6

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BONDS AGENCY

6.1

The Council has one longer-term investment of £10,000 which was placed with the Local
Government Bonds Agency in 2014. The agency is a freestanding independent body that
is owned by the local government sector with the purpose of raising money efficiently on
the capital markets at regular intervals to on-lend to participating bodies.

6.2

The contribution that we have invested will be returned to us after 10 years of successful
operations of the agency, together with interest which will be earned at commercial rates.

Page 4 of 14

Page 140

7

BORROWING

7.1

Changes to the Bank of England base rate only impact on the amount of interest received
on our temporary investments as all interest payable on the Council’s long-term loan debt
from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is at fixed interest rates.

7.2

Principal local authorities previously could qualify for a discounted rate by submitting an
optional Certainty Rate return. Since November 2020, principal local authorities have
been required to submit a Certainty Rate return, that includes a high level description of
their capital spending and financing plans for the following three years, as a condition of
accessing the PWLB.

7.3

As a result, the Certainty Rate is now the default rate that principal local authorities borrow
at. The council has submitted the required information and retains access to the PWLB
borrowing facility.

8

BORROWING REQUIREMENTS

8.1

There has been a reduction in the Council’s level of external borrowing during the period
following payment of the half yearly instalment to the PWLB in September:
Total
£000
External Debt at 1 April 2021
Transactions - New Loans

115
0

- Repayments

-5

st

External debt at 31 December 2021

110

8.2

No temporary loans were taken out in the current financial period up to 31st December
2021, or in the same period in 2020.

9

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

9.1

Local authorities in England and Wales are required by the Local Government Act 2003
to have regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

9.2

In March 2021 this Committee approved a combined Capital and Treasury Management
Strategy for 2021/ 2022 which includes a number of prudential indicators.

9.3

These prudential indicators are designed to deliver accountability in taking capital
financing, borrowing and treasury management decisions.

9.4

The treasury management specific indicators which form part of the prudential code are
the following:
•

Authorised limit for external debt
This sets a limit on the amount of external borrowing that reflects a level of borrowing,
which while not desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable. It is the upper limit
on the level of gross external indebtedness, which must not be breached without council
approval. It is the worse-case scenario.

Page 5 of 14

Page 141

•

9.5

Operational boundary for external debt
This indicator focuses on the day-to-day treasury management activity within the Council
and reflects the most likely prudent but not worse-case scenario. Any sustained breaches
to this boundary would give an indication that the Council may be in danger of stepping
beyond the prudential boundaries it has set itself.
The Council’s actual long-term debt at 31 December 2021 compared to the approved
authorised limit and operational boundary indicators is as follows:
Prudential
Indicator

Authorised Limit
£000’s

Operational
Boundary £000’s

Actual as at
31st December
2021 £000’s

Borrowing

15,992

2,817

110

Other Long-Term
liabilities

0

0

0

9.6

The Treasury Management code requires that where an authority invests, or plans to
invest, for periods of longer than one year that an upper limit for investments maturing in
excess of this timeframe is set. This council currently has a policy of not investing for
periods of longer than one year and so no upper limits have been set and no investments
have been made in the reporting period for longer than 365 days.

10

APPROVED ORGANISATIONS

10.1

Principally, Fitch credit ratings are used as an indication of the probability of organisations
defaulting on our investments. Definitions for the ratings are provided at Annex 2.

10.2

The ratings show an indication of the current credit position and are monitored on a regular
basis with any significant changes to be reported to this committee. Prior to investing any
monies on a day to day basis the ratings given by rating agents S&P Global Ratings and
Moody’s are also monitored and considered alongside the Fitch ratings. The full list of
ratings for our approved institutions at 31 December 2021 is shown at Annex 3.

10.3

Investments with Building Societies are limited to the top eight building societies based
on their total assets (provided they are included in Fitch ratings). Two of the top building
societies do not currently have a Fitch rating, leaving the top six building societies based
on their total assets:
Name

Page 6 of 14

Fitch Rating

Nationwide

Full Transaction
Review Date
05/07/2021

Long
Term
A

Short
Term
F1

Yorkshire

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Coventry

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Skipton

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Leeds

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Principality

17/11/2021

BBB+

F2

Page 142

10.4

The banks we use are reviewed annually as part of the Treasury Management Practices
to take into account their Fitch IBCA long-term and short-term credit rating. The Council
has a policy to only use institutions with a short-term Fitch rating of F2 or above. The
banks on the Council’s approved list meeting this requirement at 31 December 2021 are
as follows:

Name

Fitch’s Full
Transaction
Review Date

Long
Term

Short
Term

Santander UK Plc

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Barclays Bank Plc

13/10/2021

A+

F1

Bank of Scotland Plc

05/07/2021

A+

F1

HSBC Bank Plc

12/10/2021

AA-

F1+

Lloyds Bank Plc

05/07/2021

A+

F1

National Westminster Bank Plc

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Royal Bank of Scotland Plc (The)

05/07/2021

A+

F1

10.5

In addition to the building societies and banks we use for investments, also approved for
use are other Local Authorities and the United Kingdom Debt Management Office, where
the Government guarantees investments.

11

RECENT EVENTS

11.1

Twelve-month CPI inflation rose from 3.1% in September to 5.1% in November. At its
meeting in December 2021 the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)
voted by a majority of 8-1 to increase the Base Rate by 0.15 percentage points, to 0.25%.

11.2

MPC minutes from the December meeting state that ‘Bank staff expect inflation to remain
around 5% through the majority of the winter period, and to peak at around 6% in April
2022’. In response to rising inflation it is likely in the short term that interest rates will
continue to rise. By how much and for how long is unknown.

11.3

The inter authority cash market remains sedentary, meaning that we have not had any
recent further opportunities to invest with other local authorities. By maintaining liquid
funds the council retains the ability to take advantage of future secure investment
opportunities at potentially beneficial rates with other local authorities as they arise.

12

EXPOSURE TO RISK

12.1

The coronavirus pandemic continues to create risks, uncertainties and challenges for
treasury operations. We continue to maintain liquid funds in our cash management
activities to enable the timely distribution of coronavirus grant payments as applications
for local support are received. Counterparty limits are amended as required and secure
home working facilities remain in place to maintain business continuity through potential
periods of officer self-isolation.

12.2

With the risks surrounding the impact of COVID-19 on the economy and the council’s
cashflows, it is imperative that we continue to protect the Council’s principal sums invested
and closely monitor liquidity in order to minimise exposure to risks in an uncertain
environment.

Page 7 of 14

Page 143

12.3

To ensure our exposure is limited as far as possible, we continue with the following
measures:
•

Daily early morning discussions concerning the latest position:

•

Lending arrangements

•

A review of the Markets

•

A review of our current investments and whether we consider they are still safe

•

Institution Ratings

•

Close monitoring of our cash flow position and estimates

•

Authorisation prior to investments with either the Director of Resources or the
Head of Financial Services

•

Keep Leader/Chief Executive informed of any developments when necessary

•

Look to arrange new secure options for investments as necessary.

13

CONCLUSION

13.1

Through the careful investment of sums in line with the Council’s strategy the level of risk
to our investments has been kept to a minimum.

13.2

Due to the continued uncertainty in the global economy, a prudent approach continues to
be followed in the investment of any surplus cash balances on a day to day basis, ensuring
continued liquidity and security of the council’s investments.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

PF1-22/VT/AC
6 January 2022
For further information please ask for Valerie Taylor

Page 8 of 14

Page 144

ANNEX 1

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 2021/22

Reference

Organisation

Invested
£

Date
invested

Interest
rate

Date of
maturity

Interest
£

Principal Repaid
£

Long Term
Rating

Short Term
Rating

-2,500,000

n/a

n/a

-2,500,000

n/a

n/a

-1,500,000

n/a

n/a

Rolled over to
18/5

n/a

n/a

-5,500,000

n/a

n/a

Investments brought forward into 2021/22
11/3

Ashford Borough Council

2,500,000

19/01/2021

0.03%

19/04/2021

Less interest accrued during 2020/21
51

Telford & Wrekin Council

2,500,000

11/02/2021

147.95
0.03%

11/05/2021

Less interest accrued during 2020/21
56

Uttlesford District Council

1,500,000

05/03/2021

Page 145

Aberdeen City Council

2,500,000

22/03/2021

0.10%

07/06/2021

Debt Management Office

5,500,000

29/03/2021

-386.30
110.96

0.10%

22/06/2021

Less interest accrued during 2020/21
62

-182.88
100.68

Less interest accrued during 2020/21
18/4

-184.93

-630.14
68.49

-0.01%

06/04/2021

Less interest accrued during 2020/21

12.05
-4.52

Investments placed April - December 2021
1

Debt Management Office

11,000,000

06/04/2021

0.01%

12/04/2021

-18.08

-11,000,000

n/a

n/a

2

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

12/04/2021

0.01%

19/04/2021

-9.59

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

3

Debt Management Office

4,500,000

12/04/2021

0.01%

16/04/2021

-4.93

-4,500,000

n/a

n/a

4

Debt Management Office

1,000,000

15/04/2021

0.01%

16/04/2021

-0.27

-1,000,000

n/a

n/a

5

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

19/04/2021

0.01%

20/04/2021

-1.37

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

6

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

20/04/2021

0.01%

26/04/2021

-8.22

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

Page 9 of 14

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 2021/22
Invested
Date
Interest
Date of
Interest
£
invested
rate
maturity
£

ANNEX 1
Long Term
Rating

Short Term
Rating

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

-5.48

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

10/05/2021

-14.79

-9,000,000

n/a

n/a

0.01%

17/05/2021

-17.26

-9,000,000

n/a

n/a

11/05/2021

0.01%

17/05/2021

-4.11

-2,500,000

n/a

n/a

13,000,000

17/05/2021

0.01%

24/05/2021

-24.93

-13,000,000

n/a

n/a

Debt Management Office

8,000,000

24/05/2021

0.01%

01/06/2021

-17.53

-8,000,000

n/a

n/a

14

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

24/05/2021

0.01%

25/05/2021

-1.37

-5,000,000

n/a

n/a

15

Debt Management Office

13,000,000

01/06/2021

0.02%

07/06/2021

-42.74

-13,000,000

n/a

n/a

16

Debt Management Office

13,000,000

07/06/2021

0.02%

14/06/2021

-49.86

-13,000,000

n/a

n/a

17

Debt Management Office

13,500,000

14/06/2021

0.02%

21/06/2021

-51.78

-13,500,000

n/a

n/a

18/5

Aberdeen Council

Rolled over
from 18/4

22/06/2021

0.04%

22/12/2021

-501.37

Rolled over to
18/6

n/a

n/a

19

Debt Management Office

13,000,000

21/06/2021

0.02%

28/06/2021

-49.86

-13,000,000

n/a

n/a

20

Debt Management Office

4,000,000

28/06/2021

0.01%

01/07/2021

-3.29

-4,000,000.00

n/a

n/a

21

Debt Management Office

13,000,000

28/06/2021

0.01%

05/07/2021

-24.93

-13,000,000.00

n/a

n/a

22

Debt Management Office

1,000,000

01/07/2021

0.01%

05/07/2021

-1.10

-1,000,000.00

n/a

n/a

23

Debt Management Office

14,000,000

05/07/2021

0.01%

12/07/2021

-26.85

-14,000,000.00

n/a

n/a

24

Debt Management Office

14,000,000

12/07/2021

0.01%

19/07/2021

-26.85

-14,000,000.00

n/a

n/a

25

Debt Management Office

14,500,000

19/07/2021

0.01%

26/07/2021

-27.81

-14,500,000.00

n/a

n/a

Reference

Organisation

7

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

26/04/2021

0.01%

04/05/2021

-10.96

8

Debt Management Office

5,000,000

30/04/2021

0.01%

04/05/2021

9

Debt Management Office

9,000,000

04/05/2021

0.01%

10

Debt Management Office

9,000,000

10/05/2021

11

Debt Management Office

2,500,000

12

Debt Management Office

13

Page 146

Page 10 of 14

Principal Repaid
£

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 2021/22
Invested
Date
Interest
Date of
Interest
£
invested
rate
maturity
£

ANNEX 1
Long Term
Rating

Short Term
Rating

-16,000,000

n/a

n/a

-4.38

-4,000,000

n/a

n/a

09/08/2021

-30.68

-16,000,000

n/a

n/a

0.01%

16/08/2021

-30.68

-16,000,000

n/a

n/a

16/08/2021

0.01%

23/08/2021

-30.68

-16,000,000

n/a

n/a

17,000,000

23/08/2021

0.01%

31/08/2021

-37.26

-17,000,000

n/a

n/a

Debt Management Office

20,000,000

31/08/2021

0.01%

06/09/2021

-32.88

-20,000,000

n/a

n/a

33

Debt Management Office

1,000,000

03/09/2021

0.01%

06/09/2021

-0.82

-1,000,000

n/a

n/a

34

Debt Management Office

21,000,000

06/09/2021

0.01%

13/09/2021

-40.27

-21,000,000

n/a

n/a

35

Debt Management Office

3,000,000

13/09/2021

0.01%

14/09/2021

-0.82

-3,000,000

n/a

n/a

36

Debt Management Office

18,000,000

13/09/2021

0.01%

20/09/2021

-34.52

-18,000,000

n/a

n/a

37

Debt Management Office

17,000,000

20/09/2021

0.01%

27/09/2021

-32.60

-17,000,000

n/a

n/a

38

Debt Management Office

17,000,000

27/09/2021

0.01%

30/09/2021

-13.97

-17,000,000

n/a

n/a

39

Debt Management Office

21,500,000

30/09/2021

0.01%

11/10/2021

-64.79

-21,500,000

n/a

n/a

40

Debt Management Office

22,000,000

11/10/2021

0.01%

20/10/2021

-54.25

-22,000,000

n/a

n/a

41

Debt Management Office

17,000,000

20/10/2021

0.01%

21/10/2021

-4.66

-17,000,000

n/a

n/a

42

Debt Management Office

17,000,000

21/10/2021

0.01%

01/11/2021

-51.23

-17,000,000

n/a

n/a

43

Debt Management Office

22,000,000

01/11/2021

0.01%

22/11/2021

-126.58

-22,000,000

n/a

n/a

44

Debt Management Office

2,000,000

15/11/2021

0.00%

20/12/2021

0.00

-2,000,000

n/a

n/a

Reference

Organisation

26

Debt Management Office

16,000,000

26/07/2021

0.01%

02/08/2021

-30.68

27

Debt Management Office

4,000,000

02/08/2021

0.01%

06/08/2021

28

Debt Management Office

16,000,000

02/08/2021

0.01%

29

Debt Management Office

16,000,000

09/08/2021

30

Debt Management Office

16,000,000

31

Debt Management Office

32

Page 147

Page 11 of 14

Principal Repaid
£

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
TEMPORARY INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 2021/22
Invested
Date
Interest
Date of
Interest
£
invested
rate
maturity
£

Long Term
Rating

Short Term
Rating

-4,000,000

n/a

n/a

-276.16

-18,000,000

n/a

n/a

20/12/2021

49.32

-3,000,000

n/a

n/a

0.005%

05/01/2022

-15.07

still invested

n/a

n/a

20/12/2021

0.02%

10/01/2022

-90.41

still invested

n/a

n/a

Rolled over
from 18/5

22/12/2021

0.09%

22/03/2022

-55.48

still invested

n/a

n/a

1,000,000

23/12/2021

-0.10%

04/01/2022

21.92

still invested

n/a

n/a

Reference

Organisation

45

Debt Management Office

4,000,000

22/11/2021

-0.01%

25/11/2021

3.29

46

Debt Management Office

18,000,000

22/11/2021

0.02%

20/12/2021

47

Debt Management Office

3,000,000

30/11/2021

-0.03%

48

Debt Management Office

10,000,000

20/12/2021

49

Debt Management Office

15,000,000

18_6

Aberdeen Council

50

Debt Management Office

Investments to December 2021

Page 148

Total Investments 2021/22
(including b/f from 2020/21)
Interest received on balances held
at bank
Total Investments 2021/22
(including b/f from 2020/21)

Page 12 of 14

ANNEX 1
Principal Repaid
£

535,500,000

SUM

-1,929.67

-509,500,000

550,000,000

SUM incl b/f

-2,878.31

-521,500,000

0.00
550,000,000

SUM incl b/f

-2,878.31

-521,500,000

Annex 2
Fitch Rating Definitions

Fitch Rating Definitions
International Long-Term Credit Ratings
Long-term credit rating can be used as a benchmark measure of probability of default.

AAA

Highest credit quality. ‘AAA’ denotes the lowest expectation of credit risk. They are
assigned only in case of exceptionally strong capacity for payment of financial
commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by
foreseeable events.

AA

Very high credit quality. ‘AA’ ratings denote expectation of low credit risk. They
indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is
not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

A

BBB

BB

B

High credit quality. ‘A’ ratings denote expectations of low credit risk. The capacity
for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity may,
nevertheless, be more vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic
conditions than in the case for higher ratings.
Good credit quality. ‘BBB’ ratings indicate that expectations of default risk are
currently low. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered
adequate, but adverse business or economic conditions are more likely to impair
this capacity.
Speculative. ‘BB’ ratings indicate an elevated vulnerability to default risk,
particularly in the event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions
over time; however, business or financial flexibility exists that supports the servicing
of financial commitments.
Highly speculative. ‘B’ ratings indicate that material default risk is present, but a
limited margin of safety remains. Financial commitments are currently being met;
however, capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to deterioration in the
business and economic environment.
International Short-Term Credit ratings

Short-term rating has a time horizon of less than 13 months for most obligations and thus
places greater emphasis on the liquidity necessary to meet financial commitments
F1

Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of
financial commitments; may have an added “+” to denote any exceptionally strong
credit feature.

F2

Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of financial
commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in the case of the higher
ratings.

F3

Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is
adequate; however, near term adverse changes could result in a reduction to noninvestment grade.

B

Speculative quality. Minimal capacity for timely payment of financial commitments,
plus heightened vulnerability to near term adverse changes in financial and
economic conditions.

Page 13 of 14

Page 149

Annex 3
Full Rating List of Approved Institutions at 31 December 2021

Moody’s

S&P Global Ratings
Organisation

Long

Short

Term

Term

Outlook

Long

Short

Term

Term

Fitch

Outlook

Full
Review

Long
Term

Short

Outlook

Term

Date
Building Societies

Page 150

Nationwide

A+

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A

F1

Stable

£1m min

Yorkshire

-

-

-

A3

P-2

Stable

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Stable

Coventry

-

-

-

A2

P-1

Stable

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Stable

Skipton

-

-

-

A2

P-1

Stable

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Stable

Leeds

-

-

-

A3

P-2

Stable

17/11/2021

A-

F1

Stable

3 Mnth

Principality

-

-

-

Baa2

P-2

Stable

17/11/2021

BBB+

F2

Stable

No Contact

Sterling Brokers

Banks
Santander UK Plc.

A

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Stable

Barclays Bank Plc.
Bank of Scotland
Plc.
HSBC Bank Plc.

A

A-1

Positive

A1

P-1

Stable

13/10/2021

A+

F1

Stable

A+

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Stable

A+

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

12/10/2021

AA-

F1+

Negative

A+

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Stable

£250k min

A

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Stable

Current a/c
required

A

A-1

Stable

A1

P-1

Stable

05/07/2021

A+

F1

Stable

Current a/c
required

Lloyds Bank Plc.
National
Westminster Bank
Plc.
Royal Bank of
Scotland Plc.

Banks not currently meeting minimum Fitch Short Term requirement of F2 (and not currently approved for investments)
Co-operative Bank
B2
NP
Positive 21/07/2021
B+
B
Stable
£1m min
(The)

Page 14 of 14

Agenda Item 17
MINUTES OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP MEETING
HELD 18 AUGUST 2021
1.1

Present: S Atkinson (Chair), A Brown, S Fletcher, S Hore, D Peat, J Rogerson, Chief
Executive, Director of Resources, Director of Community Services, Director of Economic
Development and Planning, Head of Financial Services, Head of Revenues and Benefits.

2

Apologies

2.1

Cllr S Hirst

3

Minutes of meeting held on 14 May 2021

3.1

Members approved the minutes of the last meeting of the Budget Working Group.

4

Summary Outturn of 2020/21 Accounts

4.1

Members were taken through a report on the overall revenue outturn position. It was
explained that the timeline for the closure of accounts had changed, however it had not
been possible to meet these new national deadlines, but that this was the case at many
authorities due to resource pressures and the complexities around accounting for Covid
income and expenditure.

4.2

The final outturn was a surplus of £158,000 which had been added to general fund
balances. This compared to the forecast position at the revised estimate of taking
£158,000.

4.3

The largest variance had particularly been seen around the substantial overspend on
refuse collection vehicle maintenance. There were also large variances in respect of Covid
related income and expenditure, where the council was acting in the capacity of ‘principal’.

4.4

The large movements in earmarked reserves at year-end had largely been regarding
Covid funding. Part of this was in respect of the balance of general Government funding
towards Covid related costs and would be used to fund costs in 2021/22. Other large
movements were in respect of the Covid-19 impact through the Business Rates Collection
Fund deficit in 2021/22, and the mismatch of timings in the receipt of compensatory
funding through S31 grants on the general fund, which had been received in 2020/21 and
had been set aside in earmarked reserves until 2021/22.

4.5

Details were provided on the key variances, the individual earmarked reserves held and
also the closing position on the collection fund.

5

Local Council Tax Support Scheme

5.1

Members were asked to consider the council’s next steps with regard to the Local Council
Tax Support Scheme for the 2022/23 financial year.

5.2

Members were taken through the varying levels of support seen across Lancashire.

5.3

The Local Government Hardship Fund was also referenced. At the budget setting debate
for the current year it had been discussed whether the £150 relief should be continued,
funded from the Council’s share of the £670m Local Council Tax Support Grant, but it was
agreed at that time that focus should instead be on removing the 12% reduction in support
to working age claimants going forward.

5.4

A summary of the cost of support was given to members in the report, together with details
of how this was borne by each preceptor.

22-21bwg

Page 151
1

5.5

Members were in support of the proposed removal of the 12% reduction in support to
working age claimants. A third party was then to be engaged to carry out the consultation
prior to recommendation to Policy and Finance.

6

2022/23 Revenue and Capital Budgets

6.1

There was a discussion on the way forward for the council’s revenue and capital budgets.

6.2

It was agreed that the capital programme should be returned to a five-year capital
programme at that bids should be sought from Heads of Services for the 2025/26 and
2026/27 years.

6.3

There was a discussion around the overspend on refuse collection vehicle repair costs,
fleet size, spend on hire vehicles and associated previous recruitment issues in the
maintenance service.

6.4

Members were clear that recruitment and retention was the biggest issue facing the
council and that solutions to this should be prioritised. Good quality services were
paramount and recruitment and retention were key to this.

6.5

Members were reminded that they normally set the budget setting parameters for
committees to act on. Members were happy with the assumptions that had been made in
previous budget forecasts.

7

Additional Restrictions Grants

7.1

The Director of Resources took members through a report that looked at the latest position
on the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) Scheme and the amounts paid out to date. The
report also informed members of the second top-up of £567K and asked members to
consider how the additional for ARG grants should be distributed.

7.2

The general consensus was that this tranche of extra funding should be spent more
strategically rather than simply making further payments under the current scheme.

8

Any Other Business

8.1

There were no other items of business.

9

Date and Time of Next Meeting
No further meeting was arranged at this time.

22-21bwg

Page 152
2

Agenda Item 18
JOINT CLIMATE CHANGE / DEVELOPMENT PLAN WORKING GROUP
29 November 2021 at 5.30pm
PRESENT:
Cllr S Atkinson (Chair)
Cllr J Clark
Cllr D Berryman
Cllr S Fletcher
Cllr S Hirst
Cllr R Thompson
Cllr J Hill
Cllr A Brown
Cllr R Sherras
Cllr J Rogerson

Nicola Hopkins – Director of Economic Development & Planning

Colin Hirst – Head of Regeneration and Housing
Mair Hill – Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Mark Waleczek – Planning Policy Assistant

APOLOGIES
Received from Cllrs S Bibby, L Edge and M French, and Marshal Scott, John Heap,
John Macholc and Michelle Haworth.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
PURPOSE OF THE JOINT WORKING GROUP
To explore the relationship between climate change priorities and the development
plan, taking into account economic development issues.
SETTING THE SCENE
The plan is currently being reviewed. Climate change is not a new issue in the plan.
Economic considerations include the growth of the local economy which is linked to
housing numbers.
Spatial planning in the existing strategy includes –
 Main settlements – Clitheroe, Longridge and Whalley
 Standen is the strategic site
 Tier 1 – managed / designated growth
 Tier 2 – identified needs
 Employment – includes main service centres plus locations along A59 corridor
New development patterns –
 Main issues remain – housing @ standard method = 13 years
@ 280 = 6.5 years
- employment – meeting identified shortfall – likely to
have up to 20ha of land to identify
 New requirements – housing supply – 130 – 280pa
- employment land – 18 – 20ha

Page 153

INFLUENCES
Environmental constraints
 Landscape – AONB / open countryside
 Townscape
 Flood risk
 Heritage
 Biodiversity
Transport and connectivity
 Train and bus services are predominantly in the main service areas and SW
corridor towards Clitheroe
 Climate change is to encourage using public transport so it makes sense to
work around the existing infrastructure and contain development in these
areas – however, capacity may become an issue
 In 2020/21 more than 90% of developments were within walking distance of
these services
CLIMATE CHANGE POLICIES
Spatial – where the development goes
Adaption and mitigation – already in the plan but might need more emphasis
Colin showed some extracts from other plans highlighting their climate change
policies. However, it was felt that there needs to be a balance and policies must be
deliverable. These may sit better under Building Regulations rather than planning
policies.
As there is no legal requirement other than electric charging points in new
developments, perhaps the use of Supplementary Planning documents could be
used to strengthen the approach and make climate change issues explicit. These
could be updated as legislation changes / is introduced and supported by a strategic
climate change policy in the plan.
The Leader informed the group that other political issues may also have a bearing in
future eg the County Deal.

The meeting closed at 6.40pm.

Page 154

Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

